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Letter to Shareholders

Greetings to all of our Valued Shareholders, customers, employees and all friends:

With much efforts of the company's management team and all colleagues, we have adopted a stable and business

strategy. In addition to further understanding of market trends and requirements, we focus on cultivating various

product lines and enhancing technical services to increase added values, creating considerable results.

A

The result of our operating performance in 2020, business plan for 2021, are illustrated as follows:

Operating performance in 2020

(A)

(B)

(©)

Implementation of results of business plans

The company serves as a distributor of international famous brands of software and hardware
products of network communication, and provides integrated solutions of information and communication,
such as cloud, network, big data, mobile applications, etc., to users of enterprises.

As for operating conditions in 2020, the company’s total consolidated revenue stood at NT$ 13.513
billion, compared to the preceding year, 10% in year-over-year growth. Consolidated income from
operations was NT$ 0.65 billion, a 39% year-over-year growth. Income before income tax and net income
attributable to shareholders of the parent was NT$ 0.73 and NT$ 0.55 billion, compared to the preceding
year, 41% and 45% in year-over-year growth. Basic earnings per share was NT$2.91, compared to NT$2.58
in the preceding year.

Budget implementation: Not applicable. The company has not announced 2020 financial forecast to the

public.
Financial status and profitability analysis
1. Financial Status :

As for the consolidated financial statements in 2020, the company’s cash provided by operating
activities was NT$ 0.605 billion, and cash used in investing activities was NT$ 0.274 billion, cash used
in financing activities was NT$ 0.296 billion, as well as cash and cash equivalents increase NT$ 0.035
billion during the period. Cash and cash equivalent at the end period were NT$ 0.731 billion.

2. Profitability analysis :
As for the consolidated financial statements in 2020, the company’s ratio of return on total assets, ratio
of return on shareholders’ equity, ratio of profit before income tax to capital stock, and profit ratio were

7.29%, 12.59%, 38.76% and 4.26%, respectively.

(D) Research and the development status :

The company serves as a distributor of global leading brands of software and hardware products in
the information industry. Thus, the company shall increase technical capabilities at times, in order to
provide professional services for customers. The company's technical professionals focus on researching
new various products, and acquire manufacturers’ professional certificates, in order to provide completed

services for customers in the short run.



B.

Business plan for 2021

(A) Business objectives

(B)

The company serves as a distributer for global leading brands of software and hardware products of
network and system, upholds the concept of the integrated marketing of "brands channels; value-added
services", and provides customers with integration of information and communication in different fields,
through cooperation with partners in Taiwan. In addition to continuing to exploit the market in Taiwan
and provide customers with more diversified solutions, the company will gradually expand its business
to overseas markets. In addition to replicating the successful experience in Taiwan for overseas markets,
we also hope to enhance the company as a regional value-added service distributor, and obtain more
cooperation opportunities with global leading brands and enhance the cooperative relationship with the
original distributing brands. In 2021, the company plans to merge Advanced TEK International Corp.,
which specializes in providing import and maintenance services of ERP, and Corex in South Africa, which
also serves as distributor of products of information and communication, shall help increase the breadth
and depth of services as striving for a goal.

Sales forecast and its reference and important policy of production and sales:

1. The company mainly distributes software and hardware products of network and system, most are
project sales and value-added services. As for large product differentiation and higher differences
among unit prices, the sales forecast of each product is difficult to predict. Otherwise, since
requirements of software and hardware products of information and communication has been
increased, the company predicts 2021 sales forecast will be increased compared to 2020’s.

2. The operating strategy and business development focus on consolidation and enhancing “brands
channel; value-added services”: To consider development of traditional distributing business and
cloud business, we promote products in 6 divisions of products, such as network, system, information
security, application software, database, and cloud, etc., maintain a good interaction with important
customers, and maximize the effectiveness of distributing products. As products are diversified and
complete, it will assist digital transformation for partners.

3. Continuing to develop the next stage of SYSAGE information software platform of cloud services, and
incorporate more product lines into the platform, the company expects to expand the product lines of
Microsoft Azure, Citrix, Cisco Webex and AWS, etc., in 2021.



Development strategy of the company in the future

(A)

(B)

©)

(D)

To increase the original distributing product line, and continue to introduce new products with added-value
and synergy: The company serves as a distributor for more than 40 global leading IT brand products, so the
customers shall have thorough understanding with all requirements regarding with software and hardware
of network and system. Based on the forementioned, the company not only continues to satisfy the
requirements of customers with existing distributing products, but introduces new products to enhance the
company's business in response to market requirements.
Integration with group resources, expanding product lines and developing new customers: Resources of
Qisda shall help company expand present product lines, develop new product lines, carry out diversified
business investment plans, and jointly develop opportunities of potential group customers to enhance the
company increases its operating revenues, profits, and shareholders' equity.
To improve demonstration with equipment, display environment, and increase innovation of technical
services: Except for continuing to increase innovation and services in the scope of business and technical
services, and having sufficient support of technical logistics, we provide excellent exercises and
demonstration with equipment. Since our operating sites include 4 sites, in Taipei, Hsinchu, Taichung, and
Kaohsiung, and Demo environments across the island country, it could immediately provide the best
market coverage, technical support, education and training, as well as new equipment and solutions of
exercises and demonstration with equipment to manufacturers and partners, hence we increase gross profit
margin through the increase in the ratio of services revenue.
To enhance internal management, expand and improve development of our organization: To make
organizational adjustments, introduce the concept and structure of the different level of authorization, and
set up business centers, product centers, and operation centers, to conduct product sales, purchases and
reviews, and implement the policy of the different level of authorization, we make the rank and level of
employees be correspondent to salaries, and increase operational performance, through the introduction of
BPM, KPI, etc. In additions, we recruit new employees and talents to join our teams, trains middle and

high-level supervisors, enhance skills of leadership, and the transferring of corporate knowledge.



D. The impact of the external competitive environment, regulatory environment, and macroeconomic conditions
As the pandemic hits the world in 2020, it encourages enterprises to pay attension on relevant basic infrastructure,
and sense importance of qickly implementing digital transformation, with a positve effect on the company’s
operation. However, since macroeconomics became unstable due to the pandemic, enterprises adopt a
conservative attitude in all expenditures, and it triggers challenges to the company that put much effort in
increasing business and we hope to expand business more rapidly, as the pandemic becoming endemic and

economics becoming stable.

While the industry of information and communication booms and brings various business opportunities, possible
malpractices may be occurred as competing for business. For example, the industry outbreaks the case of fraud
between sales of manufacturers and third-parties vendors to swindle bonuses by making a fake business
requirements, and rebates on products provided by manufacturers. Since it indicates importance of legal
compliance in business operations, the company, acting as a distrbutor authorized by the manufacturers, continues
to increase requirements of legal compliance with us. In the light of this, the company hired Mr. TK Young, the
former Chief Legal Officer of Qisda Corporation, as our Chief Operating Officer. With his legal expertise and
years of experiences in legal affairs, he shall consider regulations of laws and requirements of manufacturers, and
continue to adjust the company's each policy for ehancing capabilities of law compaliance, in order to make the

company become the most excellent partenr for global leading brands of information and communication.

We offer our sincerest thanks for shareholders’ trust and all employees’ effort. During a new year, the company
and its subsidiaries shall continue to strive for the increase in operating performance, list earing profits as our
important mission, and focus on becoming a professional suppliers of professional application services of
information and communication of the ICT solution provider. We hope to strive for greatest motive behind
progress and seek for the best interest of the shareholders. Finally, we offer our sincerest thanks for shareholders’

support and sincerely hope you feedbacks.

Sincerely yours,

Chairman: Michael Lee
President: Michael Lee



Company Profile

1. Date of Establishment: April 16, 1998

2. Company History
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Company established at Hsinchu, with a capital of NT$34,300,000, authorized by Ministry of
Economics Affairs, ROC.

Acquisition of distribution rights of network product of Cisco US.

Establishing the Taipei office.
Establishing the Kaohsiung office.

Acquisition of distributing rights of products of the work station of Dell.

Acquisition of distributing rights of products(Oracle) of data base of the US company.
Acquisition of distributing rights of work station products and servers of IBM.

Officially listed at OTC(stock code:6112).

To purchase the office building at 8-11 Floor, No. 512, 514 and 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Neihu

Dist., for integrated requirements of marketing, research and development, test and warehouse.
Acquisition of exclusive distributing rights of the access platform of enterprise information
application of Citrix.

Officially listed at TWSE, from OTC.

To officially become OAEC.

Acquisition of the distributing right of EMC in Taiwan.

Acquisition of the distributing right of IBM Cognos.

Acquisition of the distributing right of HDS.

Acquisition of the distributing right of Informatica.

Acquisition of the distributing right of Novell.

Acquisition of the distributing right of Falconstor in Taiwan.

Acquisition of the distributing right of VMware in Taiwan.

Acquisition of the distributing right of SafeNet in Taiwan.

Acquisition of the distributing right of Red Hat in Taiwan.

Acquisition of the distributing right of Quantum in Taiwan.

Formally distributing the audit system of security control of CPS Systems.

Formally distributing products of Eaton.

To become an enterprise partner authorized by Apple.
To become an authorized partner of the manufacturer(SAP)of the global corporate management.

To become an authorized partner of the manufacturer(STULZ) of conditioning of the data center
in German.

To become a member of DIGI-CLOUD Alliance of Dell.
Acquisition of the distributing right of Akamai in Taiwan.

Merged into Qisda Group.
Acquisition of the distributing right of apigee.
Acquisition of the distributing right of SecurityScorecard.

Acquisition of the distributing right of datto.



2020/05  Acquisition of the distributing right of UiPath.

2020/06  Acquisition of the distributing right of Hubspot.

2020/10  Acquisition of the distributing right of SYNERGIES.

2021/03  QISDA CORPORATION purchased additional 16.37% outstanding shares of the company,

aggregately holding 51.41% of the shares of the company.

Il. Corporate Governance
A. Organization

(A)Organizational Structure

Audit Committee |

Shareholders’ Meeting

Compensation Committee

Board of Directors

Chairman

Internal Audit Office

CSR Management Committee [~

President

Operating Management Center

Product Development &
Support Center

Business Development Group

Financial Division

Human Resources Division

Supply Chain
Management Division

Legal Affairs Division

Marketing & Public Relations
Division

Information
Management Division




(B) Business Scope for Main Departments

Departments and Units

Functions and Responsibilities

Business Development

Group

Responsible for sales management and promotion of network, computing, tools, cloud products and other products,

etc.

Product Development &

1. To Evaluate the feasibility of introducing distribution of network, computing, tools, and cloud products.

Support Center 2. To provide products planning and integrate software and hardware to propose overall solutions.

3. To provide professional and faster technical services, such as, customer networks, systems and storage equipment,
and provide professional services of on-site services for customers to choose, and integrated technical support and
after-sale services of cross-platform of hardware and software.

Internal Audit Office To set the annual plan and execution of audit and implementation, improvement, follow-up survey of the internal

control policy.

Operating Management

Center

To manage all operating related matters and supervise financial division, legal affairs division, human resources
division, information management division, supply chain management division, marketing & public relations division,

etc.

Financial Division

1. Accounting policies, conducting, analysis and planning of accounting and tax.
2. Acquisition, utilization and arranging financial funds and other related matters, etc.
3. Application of various financial statement data for providing business directions.

4. Stock affairs, tax planning and other related businesses, etc.

Human Resources Division

Responsible for the company's personnel appointments, salaries, education and training, and employee benefits.
P pany's p pp g ploy

Supply Chain Management

1. The responsible working includes Purchasing (including import and export), inspection and acceptance.

Division 2. Related operations include purchasing and sales management, warehouse management for inventory.
Legal Affairs Division 1. Drafting of contracts, trial and negotiation.

2. Legal compliance with international operations.

3. Management and execution of non-litigation/litigation cases.

4. Legal aspects of layout of strategies of international business cooperation.

5. Drafting the standard contract template and developing SOP for the company.
Marketing & Public Responsible for marketing of all the company’s products,

Relations Division

Plan and promote the business of all product lines. At the same time, the division is also responsible for negotiating
cooperation plans with media, providing press releases and events information, filing lists, holding and executing

relevant issues of seminars.

Information Management

Division

1. Development and maintenance of the company's internal information system.

2. To plan and establish enterprise network, and to protect network securities, etc.
3. Design and analysis of internal business intelligence system of the enterprise.
4

To assess and improve the current system and to develop structure design of the application system in the future.




B. Directors, Supervisors and Management Team
(A)Directors and Supervisors (1)

DFI Inc.

Vice President

Expert Alliance Systems and Consultancy
(Hong Kong) Limited (EASC)

Expert Alliance Smart Technology Co. Ltd.
Partner Tech Europe GmbH

BenQ Guru Holding Limited

QISDA COPORATION

March 30, 2021 ; Units: Shares
. . Shareholding in the Executives, Directors or
Nationality Date Shareholding When , Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past )
Date Current Shareholding . names of other Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other | Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Gender Term | First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions at c . . o
Elected persons ompanies within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected . . . Non-profit Organizations
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name | Relation
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 | 35.04% 96,841,239 | 51.41% - - - -
The Chairman

AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd
ACE PILLAR CO., LTD.
BENQ ESCO CORP.
BENQ GURU CORP.
BenQ Guru Software Co., Ltd(Suzhou).

PHD of Department of Electrical LA FRESH INFORMATION CO., LTD.

Engineering of NTU, The|Deputy Chairman

Chairman& president of Smart Solution DFI INC.
) 2019. 2019. . .
President ROC Representative 1 06 3 06 Business  Group of Qisda PARTNER TECH CORP. - - -
Male . . - - - - - - - - . . .
(Note) - Michael Lee Corporation, The president of|Director
PARTNER TECH CORP., COO of] APLEX TECHNOLOGY INC.




Shareholding in the

Executives, Directors or

Nationality Date Shareholding When . Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past )
Date Current Shareholding . names of other Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other | Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Gender Term | First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions at c . . o
Elected persons ompanies within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected . . . Non-profit Organizations
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name | Relation
QISDA
CORPORATI - 66,000,000 | 35.04% | 96,841,239 | 51.41% - - - -
ON
Chairman
019 2019 Master of Economics, University GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK| EPIC Chien-
19. 19.
Director ROC 3 of Nottingham, Salesman of] CO., LTD. CLOUD | Cheng, | Spouse
9.26 9.26 ) ] )
Representative Kinmen information CO., LTD.  |Director Director Shih
Female 2,616,127 1.39% 116,127 0.06% 171,425 0.09%

: Shu-Erh Kuo

EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD.
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Title

Nationality
or Place of

Registration

Name

Gender

Date
Elected

Term

Date
First
Elected

Shareholding When
Elected

Current Shareholding

Spouse & Minor

Shareholding

Shareholding in the
names of other

persons

Shares %

Shares

Shares

%

Shares %

Selected Education, Past
Positions & Current Positions at

Non-profit Organizations

Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other

Companies

Executives, Directors or

Supervisors who are spouses or

within two degrees of kinship

Title

Name

Relation

Director

ROC

QISDA CORP.

Representative
: Chiu-Chin
Hung

Female

2019.
9.26

2019.
9.26

66,000,000 | 35.04%

96,841,239

51.41%

Master of Financial Management,
California State University, CFO

of Daxon Technology Inc.

Chairman

Darly Venture Inc.
Director, Darly2 Venture, Inc.
Director, Darly Consulting Corporation.

BENQ CORPORATION

Director

DARFON ELECTRONICS CORP.
DATA IMAGE CORPORATION

K2 INTERNATIONAL MEDICAL INC.
BenQ Biotech (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
BenQ Healthcare Consulting Corporation
Qisda (L) Corp.

Qisda (Hong Kong) Limited

Qisda Sdn. Bhd.

BenQ (Hong Kong) Limited

BenQ BM Holding Cayman Corp.

BenQ BM Holding Corp.

Darly Venture (L) Ltd

NANJING BenQ Hospital Co., Ltd
Suzhou BenQ Hospital Co., Ltd.

BenQ Hospital Management Consulting
(Nanjing) Co., LTD.

Suzhou BenQ Investment Co., Ltd.
Qisda Co., Ltd

BENQ CORPORATION

ALPHA NETWORKS INC.

SIMULA TECHNOLOGY INC.

TECH FILTER (Shanghai) CO., LTD.

Supervisor

BenQ (Shanghai)Limited

QISDA OPTRONICS CORP.

Nanjing Silvertown Health & Development
Co. Ltd.
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Shareholding in the

Executives, Directors or

Nationality Date Shareholding When . Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past )
Date Current Shareholding . names of other Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other | Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Gender Term | First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions at c . . o
Elected persons ompanies within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected . . . Non-profit Organizations
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name | Relation
QISDACORP.| - 66,000,000 | 35.04% | 96,841,239 | 51.41% . . - . |EMBAB  of NTU, Senior
Management & Practices Courses|Chairman
of Elite MBA Program, NTU, Yan Tong Technology Ltd.
Department  of  International DFI AMERICA, LLC.
Business, Department of] DFI CO., Ltd
2019 5019 International Business, Executive Diamond Flower Information (NL) B.V.
Director ROC Representative ’ 3 - Specialist of Qisda Corporation, |Directors - - -
9.26 9.26
: Chi-Nan Tsai Male ) . . : ° B B - Senior director of| DFI INC.
REMARKABLE TEC. CO., AEWIN TECHNOLOGIES CO., LTD.
LTD., ACE PILLAR CO., LTD.
Senior  director of  Foreign|President
Marketing Department of DFI INC.
SAMPO CORPORATION
QISDA CORP. - 66,000,000 | 35.04% | 96,841,239 | 51.41% - - - - Directors
Master of  Department  of
BENQ GURU CORP.
Mechanical Engineering of NTU,
. Representative 2019. 2019. BenQ Guru Software Co., Ltd. (Suzhou).
Director ROC 3 Senior Director of creative . L - - -
: Wen-Hsing Male 9.26 9.26 - - - - - - - - . . BenQ Guru Holding Limited
Strategic  Planning of Qisda .
Tseng President
Corporation
BENQ GURU CORP.
CPA of Biing-Cherng CPAs
Director
Department of Accounting, Feng
Independent Wen-Tsung 2019. 2019. Tia-Nai Art Center Co., Ltd.
ROC Male 3 - - - - 11,903 0.01% - - Chia University, CPA of Hui-Min - - -
Director Wang 9.26 9.26 . . Independent dorectpr
Accounting Firm
COREMAX CORPORATION
Supervisors
EMAX TECH CO., LTD.
PHD of Business Administration, |Chairman
NCCU, MD of Ernst & Young NCKU Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
Global Limited, Chairman of EY |Director
) ) Management Services Inc. GenomeFrontier Therapeutics, INC.
Independent Chin-Lai 2019. 2019.
ROC Male 3 - - - - - - - - Independent director - - -
Director Wang 9.26 9.26
LANDMARK OPTOELECTRONICS
CORPORATION
PCL Technologies, Inc.
TATUNG CO.
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https://web-en.scu.edu.tw/ibsu
https://web-en.scu.edu.tw/ibsu
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. . Shareholding in the Executives, Directors or
Nationality Date Shareholding When . Spouse & Minor Selected Education, Past )
Date Current Shareholding . names of other Selected Current Positions at Sysage and Other | Supervisors who are spouses or
Title or Place of Name Gender Term | First Elected Shareholding Positions & Current Positions at c . . o
Elected persons ompanies within two degrees of kinship
Registration Elected . . . Non-profit Organizations
Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Title Name | Relation
PHD, Business Administration,
NTPU, Master of MBA of Indiana
University ~ of  Pennsylvania, | pjrector
Chairman of TOPCO|  TOPCO SCIENTIFIC CO., LTD.
Independent o 2019. 2019. SCIENTIFIC CO.,  LTD.|Independent director
ROC Shan-Kuei Lai | Male 3 )
Director 9.26 9.26 President of ICSB, Chairman of] YIJINN INDUSTRIAL CO., LTD.
CSBC CORPORATION, LEATEC FINE CERAMICS CO., LTD.
TAIWAN, Director of SMEA,| PHYTOHEALTH CORPORATION
MOEA, Deputy of director,
Department of Commerce, MOEA

Note: The reason why the chairman also serves as the president is to represent the company externally and effectively coordinating the management team. At the same time, in order to strengthen
the independence and supervision function of the board of directors, the board of directors of the company has three independent directors and more than half of the directors are not an
employee or a manager of the Company, so as to improve the operation of the board of directors and comply with the principles of corporate governance.

Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholder

Name of corporate Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholders
shareholders Shareholding
Name
(Note 1) Percentage (%)

AU OPTRONICS CORP. 17.04%
ACER INCORPORATED 4.15%
Cathay Life Insurance Corp. 3.58%
DARFON ELECTRONICS CORP. 1.86%
Citibank Taiwan in Custody for Norges Bank 1.57%

QISDA Polunin Developing Countries Fund, LLC 1.30%

CORPORATION(Note 2)  {JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total International 1.19%
Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds )
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A Series of Vanguard International Equity 1.07%
Index Funds )
CREO VENTURE CORP 0.87%
Dimensional Emerging Markets Value Fund 0.79%

Note 1: For directors acting as the representatives of institutional shareholders.
Note 2 : The book closure date is 2020/4/21.




Substantial shareholders of corporate shareholders who are the substantial shareholders of the Company’s corporate

shareholders

Substantial shareholders
of the corporate

Substantial shareholders of the corporate shareholders

shareholders Name Sharcholding
Percentage (%)
Qisda Corporation 6.90%
ADR of AU Optronics Corp. 5.43%
Quanta Computer Inc. 4.61%
Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd 3.82%
Trust Holding for Employees for AU Optronics Corp. 3.68%
AU Optronics Corp - -
(Note 1) Tong Hwei Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1.56%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 115%
International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds e
Cathay Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 1.07%
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A Series of Vanguard
. . 0.97%
International Equity Index Funds
CTBC bank, Yuanta Taiwan 50 Securities Funds 0.74%
Hung Rouan Investment Corp. 2.39%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 176%
International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds U
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund, A Series of Vanguard
. . 1.39%
International Equity Index Funds
Stan Shih 1.14%
Acer Incorporated  |Management Board of Public Service Pension Fund 1.13%
(Note 2) Acer GDR 0.94%
Acer Inc 0.88%
Polunin Developing Countries Fund, LLC 0.76%
iShares Msci Taiwan ETF 0.76%
iShares Core MSCI Emerging Markets ETF 0.75%
Qisda Corp. 20.72%
BenQ Corp. 5.01%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody for Norges Bank 2.07%
MEGA INTERNATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK CO., LTD. 1.62%
Su, Kai-Chien 1.45%
DARFON Acadian Emerging Markets Small Cap Equity Fund LLC 1.41%
ELECTRONICS CORP. JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., Taipei Branch in custody for Vanguard Total 1.34%
(Note 3) International Stock Index Fund, a series of Vanguard Star Funds o
VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, A SERIES 1.23%
OF VANGUARD INTERNATIONAL EQUITY INDEX FUNDS e
iShares Core MSCI Emerging Markets ETF 0.74%
The University of Texas Investment Management Company as agent for the 0.63%
. (|

Board of Regents of the University of Texas System

Note 1 : The book closure date is 2019/7/19.
Note 2 : The book closure date is 2020/4/14.
Note 3 : The book closure date is 2020/4/20.




Professional qualifications and independence analysis of directors

Has more than 5 years of work experience and the following

professional qualifications

Meet conditions of independence

(Note 1)

Meet conditions of
independence
Number of other
public companies
where the Director
concurrently serves
as an Independent

Condition Director
A JUUYE, ProSECUTOT,
An Instructor or higher | lawyer, CPA or other
Name position in a private or | specialist or technical Work experience
public college or professional who is | necessary for business
university in the field necessary for the administration, legal
of business, law, Company's business affairs, finance, 1 21345 6171 8l9olwolnn]i
finance, and who has been  |accounting, or business
accounting, or the certified by national sector of the
business sector of the |  examinations and Company
Company licensed by the
competent authorities
Qisda Corporation Representative:
M vi|ivi|v
Michael Lee
Qisda Corporation Representative:
M vi|ivi|v
Shu-Erh Kuo
Qisda Corporation Representative:
v viivi|v
Chiu-Chin Hung
Qisda Corporation Representative:
v viivi|v
Chi-Nan Tsai
Qisda Corporation Representative:
v viivi|v
Wen-Hsing Tseng
Wen-Tsung Wang 4 4 Vv v |v|v|viivi|iv] v ]|v]|v ]|V
Chin-Lai Wang v v viivi ivi|iv|iv]|v]|iv]|viiv]|v|iv]|v
Shan-Kuei Lai v v vivivi|iv]|v|iv]|iv]|iv]|v|iv]|v]|v

Note 1: Please add " "in the field under each criteria number if the director meets the criteria two years prior to being elected and during his/her term of service.

(1)Not an employee of the company or any of its affiliates.

(2)Not a director or supervisor of the company’s affiliates. The same does not apply, however, in cases where the person is an independent director of the company, its parent company, or
any subsidiary, as appointed in accordance with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

(3)Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate amount
of one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or ranking in the top 10 in holdings.

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial officer under (1) or any of the persons under (2) and (3).

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company, or that ranks among the
top five in shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve as a director or supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act. (Do not apply
to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or
subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.).

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares and those of that other company are controlled by the same
person. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the
Company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.).

(7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company or institution if the chairman, general manager, or person holding an equivalent position of the company and a person in any
of those positions at that other company or institution are the same person or are spouses.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business relationship with the
company. (Do not apply in cases where the specified company or institution holds more than 20 percent but less than 50 percent of the Company’s issued shares and are the
independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or
subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing services to
the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the
provider in the past 2 years has received cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the
remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the
Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations.

(10) Not a spouse or a relative within the second degree of kinship to any director.

(11) Not been involved in any of situations defined in Article 30 of the Company Act.

(12) Not elected on behalf of a government agency or corporate or as a representative of these organizations as defined in Article 27 of the Company Act.
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(B)Documents of president, vice president, associate vice president and managers of each department and division March 30, 2021 ; Unit : Shares
Shareholdingby

Shares held by spouse or

Nationality Number of shares held underage children Nominee
Date
Gender Arrangement

Appointed  [Number T STeremoramz T Number - Number T STarcroraTs experiences companies
Shareholding

Percentage (%)

Managers who are Spouses or Within

Primary work or academic Position concurrently held in other TwoDegrees of Kinship

Title or Place of Name

Registration

of Percentage of of Percentage Title

shares (%)

Name Relation
shares (%) shares

The Chairman
AEWIN Technologies Co., Ltd
ACE PILLAR CO., LTD.
BENQ ESCO CORP.
BENQ GURU CORP.
BenQ Guru Software Co., Ltd.
(Suzhou).
LA FRESH INFORMATION CO.,
LTD.

PHD of Department of Electrical
Deputy Chairman

DFI INC.
Chairman & of Smart Solution Business Group of
. ROC Michael Lee Male 2020/11/05 - - - - - -l . . PARTNER TECH CORP. NA NA NA
President(Note) Qisda Corporation, The president of
PARTNER TECH CORP., COO of

DFI Inc.

Engineering of NTU, The president

Director
APLEX TECHNOLOGY INC.
Expert Alliance Systems and
Consultancy (Hong Kong) Limited
(EASC)
Expert Alliance Smart Technology Co.
Ltd.
Partner Tech Europe GmbH
BenQ Guru Holding Limited

Vice President
QISDA COPORATION

Chairman
Master of Economics of University
President of GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE EPIC
of Nottingham, Salesman of Chieh-
Business ROC Shu-Erh Kuo | Female | 2016/05/01 116,127 0.06%| 171,425 0.09% - - NETWORK CO., LTD. CLOUD Spouse
Kinmen Information Co., Ltd. Cheng Shih
Development Group Director Director

EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD.

GLOBAL

President of Product PHD of Computer Science of
Chieh-Cheng Director INTELLIGE | Shu-Erh
Development & ROC Male 2019/10/01 171,425 0.09%| 116,127 0.06% - -|University of Nottingham, Engineer Spouse
Shih EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD. NCE Kuo
Support Center of Kinmen Information Co., Ltd.
Chairman
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Shares held by spouse or

Shareholdingby

Managers who are Spouses or Within

Nationality Number of shares held underage children Nominee Lo
Date Arrangement Primary work or academic Position concurrently held in other TwoDegrees of Kinship
Title or Place of Name Gender .
Appointed ["Number | ST CIUNITE [ Number - Number [ STarcTroTamT experiences companies
Registration £ £ Shareholding £
o Percentage o o Percentage Title Name Relation
h h Percentage (%) h
shares (%) shares shares (%)
Chairman
EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD.
Everlasting Digital ESG Co., Ltd.
Director
Juris Doctor, Suffolk University Law | GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK
COO & CLO ROC TK Young Male 2020/11/05 - - - - - i i NA NA NA
School, CLO of Qisda Corporation |CO., LTD.
UNISAGE DIGITAL CO., LTD.
GRANDSYS INC.
Statinc Co., Ltd.
COREX (PTY) LTD.
Mechanical Engineering of NTU,
Consultant of TAISIN BUILDING
Vice president of]
SYSTEM CORP., Officer of the
Business First ROC Hui-Fen Liao | Female | 2019/10/01 101,634 0.05% - - - - - NA NA NA
department of Information
Group
Management of Concord Chemical
Industrial Co., Ltd.
Vice President of
Bachelor of Business Administration
Product
ROC Li-Tsung Lin | Male 2020/11/05 50,592 0.03%| 16,789 0.01% - -|of NCU, PM of Sysage Technology|- NA NA NA
Development &
Co., Ltd.
Support Center
Director
GRANDSYS INC.
) COREX (PTY) LTD.
Department of Accounting, MCU,
X . |Supervisor
CFO ROC Mavis Lin | Female | 2021/01/01 - - - - -|Senior Investment Manager of Qisda NA NA NA
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK
Corporation
CO., LTD.
EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD.
Statinc Co., Ltd.

Note: The reason why the chairman also serves as the president is to represent the company externally and effectively coordinating the management team. At the same time, in order
to strengthen the independence and supervision function of the board of directors, the board of directors of the company has three independent directors and more than half

of the directors are not an employee or a manager of the Company, so as to improve the operation of the board of directors and comply with the principles of corporate
governance.
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C. Documents of directors, president, vice presidents, associate vice presidents, and managers of each departments and divisions
(A) Director Information

December 31, 2020 ; Unit: NT$ 1,000

Title

Name

Remuneration

Base Compensation (A)

retirement pension (B)

Directors Compensation (C)

Allowances (D)

Ratio of Total Remuneration
(A+B+C+D) to Net

Income (%)

Relevant Remuneration Received by Directors Who are Also Employees

Salary, Bonuses,
and Allowances
(O]

retirement pension (F)

Employee Compensation (G)

Ratio of Total
Compensation
(A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

to Net Income (%)

All companies

inthe
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in

the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in

the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in

the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in
the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in

the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Companies in

the
The
consolidated
Company
financial

The

Companies in
the
consolidated
financial
statements

Company

Companies

inthe
The
consolidated
Company
financial

statements

Compen-
sation Paid
to
Directors
from an
Invested
Company
Other than
the
Company’s

Subsidiary

Cash

Stock Cash Stock

1030211(]

Chairman

Qisda
Corporation

Corporate

Michael Lee

Representative:

Vice

Chairman

Tso-Sui Wu
(Note)

Director

Qisda
Corporation

Corporate

Shu-Erh Kuo

Representative:

Director

Qisda
Corporation

Corporate

Chiu-Chin
Hung

Representative:

Director

Qisda
Corporation

Corporate

Chi-Nan Tsai

Representative:

Director

Qisda
Corporation

Corporate

Wen-Hsing

Tseng

Representative:

6,087 6,087

3,912 3,912

810 810

1.97% 1.97%

17,153 17,153

153 153

3,800

0 3,800 0

5.81% 5.81%

21,113
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Remuneration Relevant Remuneration Received by Directors Who are Also Employees Ratio of Total Compen-
Ratio of Total Remuneration X . X
(A+BACHD) to Net Salary, Bonuses, Compensation sation Paid
Base Compensation (A) retirement pension (B) Directors Compensation (C) Allowances (D) and Allowances retirement pension (F) Employee Compensation (G) (A+B+C+D+E+F+G) to
Income (%) (E)
to Net Income (%) Directors
from an
Companies Invested
3 Companies in
Title Name All comparnies Companies in Companies in Companies in Companies in Companies in Companies in the The inthe Company
inthe the the the the the the The Company consolidated consolidated Other than
The The The The The The The financial Company
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated statements financial the
Company N Company N Company ) i Company ) i Company N i Company ) i Company ) i R
financial financial financial financial financial financial financial statements Company’s
statements statements statements statements statements statements Subsidiary
Cash Stock Cash Stock
Indepen
Wen-Tsung
dent
Wang
'g_ Director
g Indepen
g dent Chin-Lai Wang 2,977 2,977 0 0 1,738 1,738 135 135 0.88% 0.88% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.88% 0.88% 0
g‘ Director
= Indepen
dent Shan-Kuei Lai
Director
(A) Please describe the policy, system, standard, and structure of remuneration to independent directors, and the correlation between duties, risk, and time input with the amount of
remuneration: Directors’ remuneration includes monthly fixed remuneration and directors’ remuneration in accordance with the company’s Articles of Incorporation, based on the
company’s current operating conditions and scale of operations, and with reference to industry standards. It will be implemented in accordance with the company's directors and
functional committee members' remuneration procedures. . . . o . . . .
(B) Inaddition to the information disclosed in the table above, has any Director of the Company provided services to any of the companies included in the Financial Statements and received
compensation for such services (e.g. provided consultation services in a non-employee capacity): None.

Note: Vice Chairman Wu Zuo-Sui resigned on 2020/11/05.
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Compensation range for each Director

Names of Director

Sum of the first 4 items (A+B+C+D)

Sum of the first 7 items (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The Company

Companies in the
consolidated
financial statements I

The Company

Companies in the
consolidated
financial statements I

Less than NT 1,000,000

NT$1,000,000 (included)~2,000,000 (excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan
Tsai, Wen-Hsing Tseng,
Chiu-Chin Hung),
Independent Director (Chin-
Lai Wang, Wen-Tsung
Wang, Shan-Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan
Tsai, Wen-Hsing Tseng,
Chiu-Chin Hung),
Independent Director (Chin-
Lai Wang, Wen-Tsung
Wang, Shan-Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan
Tsai, Wen-Hsing Tseng,
Chiu-Chin Hung),
Independent Director (Chin-
Lai Wang, Wen-Tsung
Wang, Shan-Kuei Lai)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo, Chi-Nan
Tsai, Wen-Hsing Tseng,
Chiu-Chin Hung),
Independent Director (Chin-
Lai Wang, Wen-Tsung
Wang, Shan-Kuei Lai)

NT$2,000,000 (included)~3,500,000 (excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee), Tso-Sui Wu

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee), Tso-Sui Wu

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee), Tso-Sui Wu

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Michael Lee), Tso-Sui Wu

NT$3,500,000 (included)~5,000,000 (excluded)

NT$5,000,000 (included)~1,000,000 (excluded)

NT$10,000,000(included)~15,000,000
(excluded)

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo), Tso-Sui Wu

Qisda Corporation
Corporate Representative
(Shu-Erh Kuo), Tso-Sui Wu

NT$15,000,000(included)~30,000,000
(excluded)

NT$30,000,000(included)~50,000,000
(excluded)

NT$50,000,000(included)~100,000,000

(excluded)
More than NT$100,000,000 - - - -
Total 9 Persons 9 Persons 9 Persons 9 Persons
(including 5 corporate (including 5 corporate (including 5 corporate (including 5 corporate
Directors) Directors) Directors) Directors)
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(B)Compensation for President and Vice Presidents

December 31,2020 ; Unit: NT$ 1,000

Ratio of total compensation Com.pensation
Salary(A) Retirement Pension (B) Bonuses and Allowances(C) Employee Compensation (D) (A+B+C+D) to net income Paid to the
(%) President and
— Vice President
. . . Companies in o f
Title Name Companies Companies Companies theconsolidated Companies in oman
in the in the in the The Company financial the Invested
The . The - The . nancia The . Compan
Compan consolidated Compan consolidated Compan consolidated statements Compan consolidated pany
pany financial pany financial pany financial pany financial Other than Ehe
statements statements statements Cash Stock | Cash Stock statements Coml?aFlY §
Subsidiary
Michael Lee
President Appointment:
2020/11/05
Vice Chairman & TSO-.SU.I Wu
President Designation:
2020/11/05
President of
Business Shu-Erh Kuo
Development Group
President of Product Chieh-Cheng
Development & Shih
Support Center
TK Young
COO & CLO Appointment:
2020/11/05
Vice president of | i kel Liao | 13642 13,642 600 600 29,533 29,533 11,950 | 0 | 11,950 10.15% 10.15% 0

Business First Group

Vice president of
Business Third };\; er:gChuan
Group
Vice President of Li-Tsung Lin
Eroduct Appointment:
evelopment & | 5>0/11/05
Support Center
Vice President of | Hsiu-Ching
Financial & | Cheng
Administration Removal:
Center 2020/12/31
Vice President of | Chih-Hui
Accounting & | Hsu
Business Removal:
Management Center | 2020/10/15
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Compensation range for each President and Vice President

Name of President and Vice President

The Company

Companies in the consolidated financial

statements
Less than NT 1,000,000 Michael Lee Michael Lee
NT$1,000,000 (included)~2,000,000 (excluded) Li-Tsung Lin Li-Tsung Lin

NT$2,000,000 (included)~3,500,000 (excluded)

NT$3,500,000 (included)~5,000,000 (excluded)

Chih-Hui Hsu, Hsiu-Ching Cheng, TK Young

Chih-Hui Hsu, Hsiu-Ching Cheng, TK Young

NT$5,000,000 (included)~10,000,000 (excluded)

Tso-Sui Wu, Wen-Chuan Tseng, Chieh-Cheng
Shih, Hui-Fen Liao

Tso-Sui Wu, Wen-Chuan Tseng, Chieh-Cheng
Shih, Hui-Fen Liao

NT$10,000,000 (included)~15,000,000 (excluded)

Shu-Erh Kuo

Shu-Erh Kuo

NT$15,000,000 (included)~30,000,000 (excluded)

NT$30,000,000(included)~50,000,000 (excluded)

NT$50,000,000 (included)~100,000,000 (excluded)

More than NT$100,000,000

Total

10 Persons

10 Persons




(C)Names of managers provided with employee's remunerations and state of payments

December 31, 2020 ; Unit: NT$ 1,000

Ratio of total amount to the

Title Name Stock | Cash | Total .
net income after taxes (%)

President

Michael Lee
Appointment:2020/11/05

Vice Chairman& President

Tso-Sui Wu
Designation:2020/11/05

President of Business Development Group Shu-Erh Kuo
President of Product Development & Support Center Chieh-Cheng Shih
TK Young

%Z’ €00 & CLO Appointment:2020/11/05 0 11.950 | 11.950 2 18%
& |Vice president of Business First Group Hui-Fen Liao ’ ’ '
™ |Vice president of Business Third Group Wen-Chuan Tseng

Vice President of Product Development & Support Li-Tsung Lin

Center Appointment:2020/11/05

Vice President of Financial & Administration Center

Hsiu-Ching Cheng
Removal:2020/12/31

Vice President of Accounting & Business Management |Chih-Hui Hsu
Center

Removal:2020/10/15

(D)Compare and analyze the total compensation as a percentage of net income after taxes stated in the parent company
only or individual financial statements paid by the Company and by all companies listed in the consolidated financial
statement in the most recent two years to the Company's Directors, supervisors, president and vice president. Describe
the policies, standards, and packages for payment of compensation, the procedures for determining compensation, and
its linkage to business performance and future risk exposure:

1.

2.

The ratio of total remuneration paid by the Company and by all companies included in the consolidated
financial statements for the two most recent fiscal years to directors, supervisors, president and vice
president of the Company, to the net income.

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Proportion of the total remuneration to net profit after tax %

2019 2020
Title Companies in the Companies in the
The Company | consolidatedfinanciall The Company | consolidatedfinancial
statements statements

Directors 11.23% 11.23% 5.81% 5.81%
g‘ﬁ:ﬁ’fggem 0.46% 0.46% 0.88% 0.88%
Supervisors 0.22% 0.22% - -

the President and 16.61% 16.61% 10.15% 10.15%

The policies and standards for the payment of remuneration

(1)

(2)

According to Article 22 of the Articles of Incorporation, the company, if profitable
in the year, shall set aside no less than 8% of the profit as compensation for the
employees and no higher than 2% as remuneration for the directors. However, the
company, when accumulated losses remain on the account, shall reserve a portion
of its earnings to offset the losses first.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities
relating to the Company’s compensation and benefits policies, plans and programs,
and the evaluation of the directors’ and supervisors’ compensation. Remuneration
is appropriated according to the business performance of the Company in the year
and the stipulated percentage of less 3% in Article 19 of the Articles of
Incorporation. At present, the directors’ and supervisors’ compensation is
appropriated by 2% of profits in the current year. Procedure for the compensation
were determined by the Regulations governing the performance assessment and
compensation of directors and supervisors in accordance with operating
performance of the Company, operational risks and trend of the industries, and the
employee’s personal achievements, contribution made to the business operation.
Evaluation items includes risks of moral risks, negative influences on corporate
reputation and goodwill of the Company triggered by directors and managers’
misacts of internal controls, employee fraud; and considering remuneration by
reaching rate of achievement, profitability ratio, operating profitability and

~ 22 ~




(3)

contribution of directors and managers. The procedures for determining
remuneration is based on key performance indicators of the Company. Relevant
performance indicators and reasonability of remuneration shall be approved by the
remuneration committee and the board of the directors, and reviewed in relation to
business operation and relevant laws and regulations, for a positive correlation with
the Company, and risk management.

Senior managers were determined in accordance with the salary considerations,
market averages and individual performances. The procedures for determining
remuneration is based on key performance indicators of the Company, including the
financial index (such as operating revenue, profit before income tax and net profit)
and non-financial index (such as being a lecturer of education and training,
completion of compliance with laws and reviewing material error of operation risks
for managing the divisions). Relevant performance indicators and reasonability of
remuneration shall be approved by the remuneration committee the and board of the
directors, and reviewed in relation to business operation and relevant laws and
regulations, for effectiveness of continuity of the Company, and risk management.

D. Implementation of Corporate Governance
(A)Operations of the Board of Directors
A total of 7 meetings of the Board of Directors were held in 2020. The attendance of director and supervisor
were as follows:

Number of Number of
Actual attendance K
Title Name actual proxy Remar
rate (%) (B/A)
attendance (B) | attendance
Qisda Corporation
Chairman | Corporate Representative : 7 0 100%
Michael Lee
Vice . Designation:
. Tso-Sui Wu(Note) 4 0 80%
Chairman 2020/11/05
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 7 0 100%
Shu-Erh Kuo
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 7 0 100%
Chiu-Chin Hung
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 7 0 100%
Chi-Nan Tsai
Qisda Corporation
Director Corporate Representative : 7 0 100%
Wen-Hsing Tseng
Independent Wen-Tsung Wang 7 0 100%
Director
Independent | cpin. i Wang 7 0 100%
Director
Independent -
. Shan-Kuei Lai 7 0 100%
Director

Note: The number of actual attendance shall be five.
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Other items that shall be recorded:

(A) When one of the following matters occurs during the operation of the Board of Directors, the dates, terms,

contents of proposals of the meetings, the opinions of all Independent Directors and the responses by the
Company shall be clearly described:

A. Items specified in Article 14-3 of Securities and Exchange Act:

BOD
Date/Terms

Discussions

Opinions by Independent
Directors and Treatment
by the Company

10%-3
2020/03/05
BOD

Announcement of Statement of internal control system and
Reporting self-assessment implementation results in 2019.

To amend the "Handling Procedures for the Acquisition or
Disposal of Assets".

To revise the "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and
Endorsement Guarantee".

It is proposed to review the case of expenses of CPAs in 2020.

10%-5
2020/05/05
BOD

The case of the change of CPAs.
It is proposed to acquire common stocks of GRANDSY'S INC.

10%h-7
2020/11/05
BOD

It is proposed to appoint CPAs for the company's financial
statements in 2021.

It is proposed to increase the shareholding of the subsidiary-
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO., LTD.

It is proposed to increase the shareholding of the subsidiary-
DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC.

It is proposed to appointment of Michael Li as president of the

company.

10%-8
2020/12/09
BOD

The company has established an Application Review
Committee and selection of members of the Application
Review Committee in accordance with the law.

To Appoint an independent expert to issue an opinion on the

reasonableness of the acquisition price.

10%-9
2020/12/18
BOD

The company's reviews on the public acquisition of the
company's common stocks by Qisda Corporation.

The company's reinvestment in the equity of Corex (PTY)
LTD.

It is proposed to make endorsements to Corex (PTY) LTD.

The appointment of CFO, financial and accounting officer.

All Independent
Directors presented
at the meeting
agreed without
objection.

Treatment to
opinions by
Independent

Directors: None.
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(B) In addition to the aforementioned matters, any other resolutions from the Board of Directors where an
Independent Director expressed a dissenting or qualified opinion that has been recorded or stated by
writing: None.

B. When Directors abstain themselves for being a stakeholder in certain proposals, the name of the Directors,
the content of the proposal, reasons for abstentions and the results of voting counts should be stated.
The name The results of
Date of the The content of the proposal Reasons for abstentions :
. voting counts
directors
Michael |1t is proposed to appointment of |Due to the directors’ own interests. |Except for
2020/11/05 Michael Li as president of the .
Lee directors
company. ]
The company has established an abstain
Application Review Committee themsel.ves
and selection of members of the for being .a
Application Review Committee The case was prop_oge_d because of|  stakeholder in
2020/12/09 i ) the public acquisition of the| certain
in accordance Wlth the law. company’s  stock by Qisda onosals. Al
To Appoint an independent Corporation. The corporate directors| PrOPo%als:
expert to issue an opinion on the |of Qisda and their representatives| ~Directors
Michael ~ |reasonableness of the did not participate in the voting of| presented
Lee, Chiu-[acquisition price. this case, due to their own interests. | .4
Chin Hung,|The company's reviews on the g
Shu-Erh  |public acquisition of the without
Kuo, Chi-|company's common stocks by objection.
Nan TsailQisda Corporation.
and  Wen- The case is to obtain equity from
Hsing PARTNER TECH CORP (the
Tseng ultimate parent company is also
2020/12/18 The company's reinvestment in  |Qisda Coporation), so The corporate
the equity of Corex (PTY) LTD. |directors of Qisda and their
representatives did not participate in
the voting of this case, due to their
own interests.
It is proposed to make|TN€ corporate directors of Qisda
d C PTY and their representatives did not
endorsements to Corex (PTY)| o ticinate in the voting of this case,
LTD. due to their own interests.
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C. Implementation Status of Board Evaluations:

The Board of Directors of the company approved the "Board Performance Evaluation Measures™ on

September 18, 2019, stipulating that the Board of Directors shall perform at least one performance

evaluation for the Board of Directors and its directors each year. The company began to conduct board

evaluations every year in 2020. In 2020, the internal self-evaluation rate of the company's Board of

Directors was 100%, and the evaluation result was “superior”, which is sufficient to indicate that the

company's Board of Directors is functional and efficient.

Evaluation Evaluation Scope of Evaluation o
i ) Evaluation items
cycle period evaluation | method
Their grasp of the Company's goals and
missions.
The degree of participation in the
Company's operations.
Their management of internal
January, Internal self- ) ) o
A 1 2020 to Board of assessment made relatlonshlps and communication.
nnuatty December, Directors by the Board of The decision-making quality of the
2020 Directors Board of Directors.
The composition and structure of
the Board of Directors.
Their recognition of director's duties
Selection and appointment of directors
and continuous education.
Internal control.

D. Targets for strengthening the functions of the Board of Directors in the current and the most recent year
(e.g., setting up an Audit Committee and enhancing information transparency) and evaluation of target
implementation: The company has set up the Audit Committee on May 28, 2019.

(B)Operations of the Audit Committee

1. Operations of the Audit Committee:

The Company had convened 5 Audit Committee meetings in 2020 with the following attendance:

Attendance Number of
Title Name in times attended Attendance rate (B/A) Remark
Person(B) by proxy
Independent | Wen-Tsung
. 5 0 100%
Director Wang
Independent | Chin-Lai
. 5 0 100%
Director Wang
Independent | Shan-Kuei
. . 5 0 100%
Director Lai

Other items that shall be recorded:

A. If any of the following matters occurs during the operation of the Audit Committee, the dates, terms, contents

of the proposal of the Board meetings, the opinions of all Independent Directors and the responses by the

Company shall be cleanly described:
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(A)Items specified in Article 14-5 of Securities and Exchange Act:

BOD
Date/Terms

Discussions

Opinions by Independent
Directors and Treatment by
the Company

10%-3
2020/03/05
BOD

Announcement of Statement of internal control system
and Reporting self-assessment implementation results in
2019.

The 2019 financial statements and business report, and
the 2020 business plan.

It is proposed to amend the "Handling Procedures for
Acquiring or Disposing of Assets".

It is proposed to amend the " Handling Procedures for
Fund Loan and Endorsement Guarantee".

It is proposed to review the case of expenses of CPAs in
2020.

10%-5
2020/05/05
BOD

The case of the change of CPAs.
It is proposed to acquire common stocks of GRANDSYS
INC.

10"-6
2020/08/06
BOD

It is proposed to recognize the 2020Q2 consolidated
financial report.

10h-7
2020/11/05
BOD

To set up the internal audit plan in 2021.

It is proposed to appoint CPAs for the company's
financial statements in 2021.

It is proposed to increase the sharecholding of the
subsidiary-GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK
CO., LTD.

It is proposed to increase the shareholding of the
subsidiary- DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC.

10%h-9
2020/12/18
BOD

The company's reinvestment in the equity of Corex
(PTY) LTD.

It is proposed to make endorsements to Corex (PTY)
LTD.

The appointment of CFO, financial and accounting

officer.

All  Audit Committee
Members presented at
the meeting agreed
without objection.

Treatment to opinions by
Audit Committee
Members: None.

(B)Other matters except the preceding ones, which are not approved by the Audit Committee but approved by

two-thirds or more of the Directors: None.

B. For the implementation of Directors’ avoidance due to conflicts of interest of Directors, please clearly specify

the names of Directors, the content of the proposals, the reasons of avoidance due to conflicts of interest and

the participation in the voting and resolution: None.
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C. Communication between Independent Directors, the Internal Audit Director and CPAs (the major issues,

methods and results of the Company's financial and business conditions shall be descripted in details):

(A) The audit manager shall submit audit report to the independent directors next month from the completion of

the audit project, and the independent directors haven’t objected about any matters.

(B) The audit supervisor attends the company's periodic audit committee as non-voting delegates and makes
audit business reports. Independent directors have no objection. The independent directors may contact the
accountant when they deem it necessary to understand the findings of the inspection and the improvement

of the deficiency.

(C) The accountant reports to the independent directors at least once a year on the company's financial status,
overall operation status and internal control review, and fully communicates whether there are major
adjustment entries or legal amendments that affect the accounting situation.

D. Annual key functions and operations:
(A) Annual key functions
1. Communicate results of audit report with the head of internal audit regularly according to the annual audit
plan.
. Communicate with CPA regularly over financial statement review or audit results in each quarter.
. Review financial reports.
. Assessment of the effectiveness of internal control system.

. Review the hiring, dismissal, compensation, and service matters concerning CPAs

o 00~ WD

. Review the Company's operational procedures and material transactions of assets, derivatives, capital lending
and endorsement/guarantees.

7. Legal compliance.

(B)2020 operations: Proposals of the Audit Committee meetings have all been reviewed or approved by members

of the Audit Committee with no dissent from any of the Independent Directors.
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Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEXx Listed Companies and Reasons:

(C) Implementation of Corporate Governance, and Differences with Contents of Corporate Governance Best

Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles

Yes No Summary Description for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons
A. Does the Company establish and| V With having the prior approval of the :
disclose the Corporate Governance board of d%rectors on l\ggy 12, 2017, No differences
Best-Practice Principles based on relevant matters were revealed in
“Corporate  Governance  Best Sysage ’s website.
Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies™?
B. Corporate Ownership Structure and :
shareholders' equity establish. No differences
a. Does the Company establish the internal]  V 1. The company establishes a stakeholder
operating procedures to handle the area on the website and establishes a
shareholders’  proposals, inquiries, spokesperson and acting spokesperson
disputes and litigations issues as well as policies to handle shareholders’
carry  out  through  following suggestions, doubts, disputes and
procedures? litigation matters.
b. Does the Company retain at all timesa| V 2. The company regularly updates the list
register of major shareholders who have of shareholders and major
controlling power, and of the persons shareholders in accordance with
with ultimate control over those major regulations, and acquires the list of
shareholders? major shareholders who actually
control the company and the final
controllers of major shareholders.
c. Does the Company establish and| V 3. The company handles various financial
implement the risk management and and business matters amount the
firewall mechanism between affiliated related parties, in accordance with the
enterprises? company's internal control system,
internal audit system and relevant laws
and regulations.
d. Does the Company establish the| V 4.The company has established the " the
internal guidelines prohibiting Ethical  Corporate =~ Management
company insiders from trading Policies" and " Ethical Corporate
securities using information  not Management Best Practice Principles
disclosed to the market? of Employees" and " Procedures for
Handling Material Inside Information
" to regulate the use of undisclosed
information on the market by insiders
to buy and sell securities.
C. Organization and Responsibilities of ;
the E?oard of Directors P No differences
a. Does the Board of Directors formulate| V 1. The company has formulated a

the  diversified approaches and
implement aimed at Board Member
organization?

diversification  policy  for  the
composition of the Board of Directors
in Article 20 of the " Corporate

Governance Best Practice Principles ".
Based on the professional background
and working fields, the company
selects the directors with capabilities
of business management, leadership
decision-making, and industry
experience (finance, international
markets, IT Industry, accounting
practice), professional abilities
(information technology, accounting),
in order to implement the company's
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles

Yes No Summary Description for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons
policy of diversity for the composition
of the Board of Directors. The
company's  situation of taking
Diversity of the Board of Directors
(note 1).
b.Aside  from  establishing  the| V 2. The company has set up a CSR,
Remuneration Committee and Audit management committee to analyze and
Committee, does the Company also discuss issues such as, environmental
voluntarily establish other types of sustainability, corporate governance,
functional committees? social commitment, customer and
product services, and employee care at
times to implement the spirit of]
corporate social responsibility and
sustainability.
c. Does the Company establish the rules| V 3. The company has established a
for the board performance evaluation performance evaluation method for
and its assessment methods for annual the Board of Directors, and conducts
performance evaluation on an annual evaluations through internal
basis, as well as report its result to the questionnaires regularly every year
Board of Directors by applying that as as a reference for determining the
a reference to remuneration of remuneration of individual directors
individual director and to nomination and nomination for renewal of
and continuous employment? directors.
d. Does the Company regularly evaluate| V 4. At least once a year, the Company
and the independency of an evaluates the independence and
attesting CPA? suitability of its CPA, and submits the
result for reviewing and an approval by
the Board of the Directors on
November 05, 2020.The Company's
Hung-Wen Fu and Mei-Ping Wu of]
CPAs has been verified to be in
compliance with requirement for
independence as specified in the
related independence regulations(see
note 2), and CPAs have issued a
statement of independence based on
No. 10 report of code of professional
ethics of CPAs of ROC.
D. Does the TWSE/GTSM Listed] V On February 25, 2021, Sysage may, after

Companies allocate the adaptation
and appropriate number of corporate
governance personnel as well as
assign the corporate governance
supervisors to be responsible for

matters  related to  corporate
governance (including but not
limited to required information

provided to directors and supervisors
performing their duties, assistance
provided to directors, legal
compliance of supervisors, handling
matters related to Board of
Directors’ and shareholders' meeting
in accordance with the laws,
preparation of the minutes of Board

of

having a resolution adopted by the Board
of Directors, hire Mavis Lin to take part as
a role of corporate governance personnel
responsible for supervision and planning

qualifications for the position meet the
provisions

Governance
Paragraph One of Article 3-1 of Corporate
Governance Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies.
official

corporate
include:

required by the directors and Audit
Committee and the latest regulations

corporate  governance. Hung’s
regarding
Supervisors

Corporate

set out in

The
the
supervisors

information

powers performed by
governance
Providing the

No differences

~ 30 ~




Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons

of Directors’ and shareholders'
meeting, and more.)?

regarding corporate operation, providing
assistance in legal Compliance of the
directors and Audit Committee, regularly
reporting the operations of corporate
governance to Corporate Governance
Committee and Board of Directors on an
annual basis, handling matters related to
Board of Directors’ and shareholders'
meeting in accordance with the laws,
preparation of the minutes of Board of
Directors’ and sharcholders’ meeting,
providing assistance in assuming office to
directors and Audit Committee members
and continuing education.

The operation in 2021 is updated as
follows:

1. Assist the independent directors and
general directors to perform their
duties,  provide the  required
information and arrange the continuing
education for directors.

2. Regularly inform the Board members
dedicated to the revised regulations
regarding corporate operating domain
and corporate governance.

3. Inspect the confidential levels of]
relevant information and provide the
corporate information required by the
directors to maintain the
communication and smooth interaction
between directors and supervisors.

4. Review the release of announcement of
material news upon the adoption of]
important resolutions after meetings to
ensure the lawfulness and correctness
as well as protect the equal information
on transactions for investors.

5.The Company has convened 2 times of]
the Board of Directors and 2 times of
Audit Committee in 2021.

6. The Company will convene the regular
shareholders' meeting once in 2021.

7.Sysage has helped the directors and
important employees apply for liability
insurance and has reported to the
Board of Directors after renewal of

insurance.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Comparison

Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles

months after the close of each fiscal
year, as well as the financial reports in
Q1, Q2 and Q3, plus the addition of
monthly operating status prior to the
designated deadlines in advance?

Yes No Summary Description for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons
E. Does the Company build the channels| Vv The Company has established a means of| 1 differences
of communication with stakeholders communicating with its Stakeholders on
(including but not limited to the website, for receiving issues of
shareholders, employees, customers, important CSR by Stakeholders.
suppliers and so on.) as well as
designate a stakeholder area on its
website in response to important issues
on corporate social responsibility
concerned by stakeholders in a proper
manner and in good faith?
F.Does the Company engage al V The company has appointed the No differences
professional shareholder services agent professional registrar & transfer agency of
to handle shareholders meeting securities as our registrar for our stock
maitters? affairs.
G. Information Disclosure 1. The company shall appoint a person No differences
a. Does the Company set up a website] V who is responsible for the collection
containing the information regarding and disclosure of the company’s
financial or business operations as well information.  According to the
as corporate governance? regulations, it will announce various
financial, business information, and
the procedure of legal person briefings
to the public information observatory
regularly and irregularly, and disclose
relevant information on the company
website:
http ://www.sysage.com.tw; We set up
an investor area on the company's
website to disclose financial, stock
affairs and product-related
information.
b.Does the Company adopt other methods| V 2. The Company has established a
of information disclosure (such as set spokesperson and acting
up the English website, appoint spokespersons system to deal with
personnel responsible for gathering and related matters,
disclosing the information, establish a
spokesperson  system, display the
Company’s website during the investor
conference briefing, and more.)?
¢. Does the Company publicly announce
the annual financial reports within two| V 3. The Company announce and report the

financial statements, in accordance
with Article 36 of Securities and
Exchange Act. The company has
announced 2020 financial statements
on February 25, 2021.
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Evaluation Item

The Operations

Yes

Summary Description

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons

H. Has the Company disclosed other

information to facilitate a better
understanding of its corporate
governance  practices  (e.g.
including but not limited to
employee  rights, employee
wellness,  investor  relations,
supplier relations, rights of
stakeholders, directors’ training
records, the implementation of
risk management policies and risk
evaluation measures, the
implementation  of  customer
relations policies, and purchasing
insurance for directors)?

Employee rights and care: To
Continuously plan various welfare
measures for employees, and set up
an employee welfare committee to
protect employee rights, in order to
enhance employee welfare, and give
employees a  better working
environment and development. In
addition, to establish good employee
relations and Dbenefits, so that
employees have job satisfaction and
provide equal employment
opportunities; To provide employees
with a comfortable and safe working
environment, etc.; To protect
employee basic rights and interests,
such as, working rules, pensions,
medical care, accident insurance,
education and training, etc.

Investor relations: The company has a
person responsible for investor
relations and maintains a perfect
communication with shareholders at
times.

Supplier relationship: A strict
requirement for the purchased goods,
equipment, services and the content
of contracts to comply with social
justice, environmental protection
policies and legal regulations.

Stakeholders' rights: To set up a
spokesperson as for communication
with stakeholders, and stakeholders
can also obtain relevant information
through the spokesperson; To set up
an area for stakeholders on the
company's website and respond to
importance important issues of CSR
by stakeholders.
Directors’ training records: The
company holds trainings for
directors, in accordance with
“Directions for the Implementation
of Continuing Education for
Directors of TWSE Listed and TPEx
Listed Companies”. The situation of]
Directors ‘training of the company in
2020(see note 3).

The implementation of risk
management policies and risk
evaluation measures: The Company
has already instituted internal control
systems as required by law and has

properly reviewed regulations of]

No differences
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The Operations

Evaluation Item
Yes

Summary Description

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for
TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
And Their
Reasons

internal controls of risk management
and assessments at any time. The
Company also purchases insurance
for directors, in order to reduce
management risks.

7. The implementation of customer

relations policies: The Company
maintains a good relationship with
customers for increasing profits.

Purchasing insurance for directors:
The Company maintains liability
Insurance for its directors, and
submits it to the Board of Directors.

I. Please describe the improvement status according to the evaluation results of Corporate Governance Evaluation publicly
announced by Governance Center of Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporate (TWSE) in recent years. In addition, the
Company shall propose the matters and measures given priority to strengthen.

1. The company has set up a head of corporate governance in 2021 years.

2. The company expects to upload the English version of the shareholders' meeting manual and annual report in

FY2021.
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Note 1 :

The situation of taking Diversity of the Board of Directors goes as follows:

Manage- Lead industry experience professional skills
Name Gender me.nt. &. . . Internationa IT Accountin | Information | Accounting
admini- Decisi Finance . .
. 1 market industry g practices | technology
stration on
Michael Lee Male v v v v v
Shu-Erh 1 pomale v v v v v
Kuo
Chiu-Chin Female v v v v v v
Hung
Chi-Nan Male v v v v v
Tsai
Wen-Hsing Male v v v v v
Tseng
Wen-Tsung Male v v v v v
Wang
Chin-Lai Male v v v v v
Wang
Shan-Kuei Male v v v v v v
Lai
Note 2 : The assessment standard of independence of CPAs goes as follows:
Evaluation Correspondent to
No. The assessment items results independence
Y/N Y/N
1 Does CPAs have direct and material financial interests with the N v
Company.
2 Does CPAs make endorsements/ guarantees with the Company. N Y
3 Does CPAs have a closer relationship regarding the business N v
and employment with the company.
CPAs and their members of audit team have served as directors,
managers of the company or any job positions that have a
4 . . . . . . N Y
significant impact on the audit work, during the audit period.
5 Does CPAs have any services items of non-audit, which may N v
affect the company’s audit work.
Whether CPAs have brokered stocks or other securities issued
6 by the company. N Y
7 Whether CPAs have acted as the defender of the company or N v
coordinated conflicts with other third parties on behalf of the
company.
Whether CPAs are relatives of the company’s directors,
8 managers, or persons in a job position that have a significant N Y
influence on the audit work.
Conclusion: After evaluation by the company, the appointment of CPAs does not have any situations in the
above independence assessment items, and it can be confirmed that the appointment of CPAs complies
with requirement for independence.
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Note 3: The situation of Directors ‘training of the company in 2020 goes as follows:

in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts

ini Length of
Title Name Training Organizer Course Name the
Date curriculum
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
Corporate 2020/08/18 i 30
. . changing
Director | Michael Lee
. Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
Representative 2020/11/19 3.0
in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
Corporate 2020/08/18 ) 3.0
) changing
Director  |Shu-Erh Kuo
. Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
Representative 2020/11/19 3.0
in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
Corporate ) ) 2020/08/18 ] 3.0
. Chiu-Chin changing
Director
. Hung Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
Representative 2020/11/19 ) 3.0
in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
Corporate 2020/08/18 . 3.0
] ) ] changing
Director  |Chi-Nan Tsai
. Securities and Futures|The value of information security in the post-
Representative 2020/11/30 ) ) ) i 3.0
Institute epidemic era and the US-China trade war
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
Corporate ] 2020/08/18 ) 3.0
. Wen-Hsing changing
Director . . . o .
. Tseng Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
Representative 2020/11/19 3.0
in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts
o To prevent money laundering and combat
2020/07/24 |CPA Association R.O.C. . . 3.0
Independent | Wen-Tsung information attack
Director Wang Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
2020/10/27 ) ) ) 3.0
in the U.S.-China Trade Conflicts
Corporate Operation|The forum of Aspects of Shareholders' Rights
1 2020/08/04 |Association and Interests-Talking from the Dispute of 3.0
Independent | Shan-Kuei .
] ] Management Rights
Director Lai
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era of
2020/08/18 ) 3.0
changing
Taiwan Institute of Directors |Enterprise transformation in the era off
) ~12020/08/18 . 3.0
Independent | Chin-Lai changing
Director Wang Taiwan Institute of Directors |Opportunities and Challenges for Enterprises
2020/11/19 3.0
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(D)Composition, duties, and operations of the Company's Remuneration Committee:

1. Information on the members of the Remuneration Committee

Criteria

Meet One of the Following Professional Qualification Requirements, Together

with at Least Five Years Work Experience

Independence Criteria (Note 1)

An Instructor or Higher

Position in a Department

of Commerce, Law,

A Judge, Public Prosecutor,

Attorney, Certified Public

Accountant, or Other

Have Work

Experience in the

Number of

Other Public

Companies in

Which the
Finance, Accounting, or | Professional or Technical |Areas of Commerce,
Position Individual is | Remark
Other Academic Specialist Who has Passed a| Law, Finance, or
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 | Concurrently
Department Related to the| National Examination and Accounting, or
Serving as an
Business Needs of the | been Awarded a Certificate |Otherwise Necessary
Independent
Company in a Public or | in a Profession Necessary | for the Business of
Director
Name Private Junior College, for the Business of the the Company
College or University Company
Independent Wen-Tsung Wang A% v \Y% v \Y% \% \Y% \Y% \Y% 1
Director
Independent Chin-Lai Wang \% \% VIV VIV |V \% \% 3
Director
Independent Shan-Kuei Lai v A% V]|V ]|V | V|V |V]|V 3
Director

Note 1: Please add " v " in the field under each criteria number if the member meets the criteria two years prior to being elected and during his/her

term of service.

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with

the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary

or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by the

person under others’ names, in an aggregate amount of 1% or more of the total number of issued shares of the Company or is ranked in

the top 10 in shareholdings.

(4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial officer

under (1) or any of the persons under (2) and (3).

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate shareholder that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of issued

shares of the company, or that ranks among the top five in shareholdings, or that designates its representative to serve as a director or

supervisor of the company under Article 27, paragraph 1 or 2 of the Company Act. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in

accordance with the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its

parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company if a majority of the company's director seats or voting shares and those of that

other company are controlled by the same person. (Do not apply to independent directors appointed in accordance with the Act or the

laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary or a subsidiary

of the same parent.)
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(7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of other company or institution if the chairman, general manager, or person holding an equivalent
position of the company and a person in any of those positions at that other company or institution are the same person or are spouses.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding five percent or more of the shares, of a specified company or institution that
has a financial or business relationship with the company. (Do not apply in cases where the specified company or institution holds more
than 20 percent but less than 50 percent of the Company’s issued shares and are the independent directors appointed in accordance with
the Act or the laws and regulations of the local country by, and concurrently serving as such at, the Company and its parent or subsidiary
or a subsidiary of the same parent.)

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company,
or institution that, provides auditing services to the company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial,
accounting or related services to the company or any affiliate of the company for which the provider in the past 2 years has received
cumulative compensation exceeding NT$500,000, or a spouse thereof; provided, this restriction does not apply to a member of the
remuneration committee, public tender offer review committee, or special committee for merger/consolidation and acquisition, who
exercises powers pursuant to the Act or to the Business Mergers and Acquisitions Act or related laws or regulations.

(10) Not been involved in any of situations defined in Article 30 of the Company Act.
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2.Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee:
(1) There are 3 members in the Remuneration Committee.
A total of 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were held in 2020.
Duties of the Remuneration Committee:
A. To review regulations of the remuneration committee and propose amendment of it at all times.
B. To establish and regularly review the policies, systems, standards and structures for performance
assessment and remuneration of directors and managers.

C. To regularly assess renumeration of directors, and managers, and set their renumeration.

(2)The 5 Term: From September 26, 2019 to September 25, 2022; The current term is the same as that of the
board of directors. A total of 2 Remuneration Committee meetings were held in 2020. The attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee members was as follows:

Positi N Attendance in | Attended | Attendance Rate R "

osition ame emar
Person (B) by Proxy (%) (B/A)

Convener Wen-Tsung Wang 2 0 100%

Committee Chin-Lai Wang 2 0 100%

Member

Committee Shan-Kuei Lai 2 0 100%

Member

Other items that shall be recorded:

1.If the Board of Directors chooses not to adopt or revise recommendations proposed by the
Remuneration Committee, the date of the Directors’ Meeting, session, contents of proposals,
results of meeting resolutions, and the Company’s disposition of opinions provided by the
Remuneration Committee shall be described in detail (also, where the salary and compensation
approved by the Directors’ Meeting is better than that recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, the differences and the reason for the approval shall be described in detail): None.

2. For the decisions made by the Remuneration Committee, if there are members who hold objection
or reservation to a resolution and such objection or reservation is on record or raised through a

written statement, the date, session, contents of proposals, all members’ opinions, and ways in

handling these opinions should be elaborated: None
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handled opinions from committee members in 2020.

(3)The Remuneration Committee meetings’ date, period, the content of motions, Resolutions and The Company

Remuneration
Committee

meeting

Item

Resolutions

The Company
handled opinions
from committee

members

5t -2
2020/03/05

. The renumeration distribution plan for

employees and directors in 2019.

. It is proposed to re-examine the

remuneration methods of the

company and its managers.

5t -3
2020/11/05

. To discuss performance regarding

with the total remuneration achieved
by managers in 2020.

To discuss the schedule of the
company's remuneration committee

in 2021.

Convener of
the
Remuneration
Committee
consulted the
opinion of all
attending
remuneration
committee
members.

The proposal was
approved without
dissent and submitted
for resolution at the
Board meeting.
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(E)Status on Performing Social Responsibility: The systems and measures adopted by the Company aimed at

environmental protection, Community Involvement, social contribution, social service, public welfare, consumer

rights, human rights, safety and health as well as other social responsibility activities, and its practices.

Evaluation

The Operations

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-

specified (concurrent) units to

promote the corporate social
responsibility while being handled
by the

senior  management

authorized by the Board of
Directors as well as being reported
to the Board of Directors regarding

the process status?

Management Committee", which controls
several functional committees, with Michael
Li, the general manager as the chairman.

The committee also follows “Corporate
Social Practice

Responsibility ~ Best

Principles” approved by the Board of
Directors, and Each functional committee
collects relevant issues at times, according to
their responsible areas, irregularly evaluates
and analyzes the issues, and incorporates
important issues into the implementation plan
and daily operations. The committee has

reported 2020 implementation situation to the

Board of Directors.

Yes | No Summary Description Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons
A. Does the Company conduct the risk | V All divisions of the company assess and | No differences
assessment on environmental, review environmental, social and corporate
social and corporate governance governance risks related to company
issues related to  corporate operations at times, and report to the general
operation according to materiality manager. In the process of business
principle? And any establishment management, we prevent possible risks and
of relevant risk management policy set up relevant measures.
or strategies?
B. Does the Company establish the | V The company has formed a "CSR | No differences
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Evaluation

The Operations

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-

Yes | No Summary Description Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons
C. Environmental Issues No differences
a. Does the Company establish a | V 1.The company has established an
suitable environmental management appropriate environmental management
system according to its industrial system based on the characteristics of the
characteristics? industry.
2. The company is committed to improving
b. Does the Company dedicate to | V the utilization efficiency of various
enhance the use efficiency of various resources. Please see the details on its
resources and use the recycled environmental protection policies and
materials with low impact on waste management measures on the
environmental load? company’s website.
c. Does the Company evaluate the | V 3. The company acts as a distributor, and the
current and future potential risks and potential risks, arising from climate
opportunities of the enterprises changes, such as, uncertainty in
brought about by climate change and transportation = demands, threats to
adopt response measures of climate- employee triggered by extreme weather,
related issues? etc., may induce operating losses of the
company. The company continues to
promote  policies of environmental
protection, energy saving and greenhouse
gas reduction, and other countermeasures
to fulfill the responsibilities of global
citizens.
d. Does the Company tabulate the | V 4. Please see the details about the company's

greenhouse gas emissions, water
consumption and total weight of
waste over the past two years and
formulate policies regarding carbon
reduction, greenhouse gas reduction,
less water consumption or other

waste management?

inspection of greenhouse gas, the policy
of energy-saving and greenhouse gas

reduction on the company's website.
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The Operations Comparison

Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Evaluation Yes | No Summary Description Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons

D. Social Issues No differences
a. Does the Company follow relevant | V 1. The company and its subsidiaries comply

laws and regulations as well as the with relevant labor laws and regulations.

International Bill of Human Rights to The company is also committed to

establish  related  management complying with the principles of RBA

policies and procedures? standards, the United Nations Universal

Declaration of Human Rights and other
international human rights conventions and
spirit of CSR. Also, the company sets up
relevant personnel regulations to protect
employees and the company’s rights and
interests, and the working rules shall be
reported by the Ministry of Labor for
verification and those working rules shall
be placed on the company’s website, so that
employees can assure their personal rights

and interests at times.

b. Does the Company establish and | V 2. The company follows the "Labor Standards
implement the rational employee Act" and related laws and regulations to
benefit measures (including set up various salary and welfare policies
remuneration, paid vacation and for employees, and conduct regular
other Dbenefits...etc.)? And any assessments to  share  operating
reflection on the corporate business performance with colleagues.

performance or achievements in the

employee remuneration?

c. Does the Company provide asafeand | V 3. The company and its subsidiaries provide
healthy working environment to employees with a comfortable and safe
employees? And any regular working environment and regularly hold
implementation on safety and health employee health examination,
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supplier management policy and ask
the suppliers to follow the related
such as

rules for the issues

environmental protection,
occupational safety and health or
labor and human rights? And any

implementation status?

distributes famous brands. The
manufacturers have implemented green
environmental protection certification and
code of conduct of the electronic industry,
and they also require the company to join

RBA.

The Operations Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Evaluation Yes | No Summary Description Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons
education for employees? announcement of safety and insanity, and
also have additional equipment, such as,
the breastfeeding room, massage room,
free food supply station, and mobile KTV
kiosk, Library room and remote video, etc.,
to sympathize employees who work hard.
d. Does the Company build the efficient | V 4. The company has established procedures
training programs of career planning of education and trainings to provide
ability for employees? employees with domestic and foreign
professional and management skills and
other advanced trainings to enhance the
development of employees' career
capabilities.
e. For customer health and safety, | V 5. The company has set a service of toll-free
customer privacy, marketing and numbers for customers and a special area
labeling regarding the Company’s for stakeholders on the company's website
products and services, does the to provide appeals policies and methods.
Company follow relevant laws, As for diversified requirements of
regulations and international customers, the company also provides
guidelines? And any establishment of diversified repair windows and methods,
policies on consumer rights and via telephone, mail, facsimile and online to
interests as well as procedures for help customers solve problems as quickly
accepting consumer complaints? as possible.
f. Does the Company establish the | V 6.The company acts as a distributor, and
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The Operations Comparison

Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Evaluation Yes | No Summary Description Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons

E. Does the Company prescribe the | V The company has set up a CSR area on the | No differences
report on nonfinancial information company's website to disclose related
disclosure such as CSR report by information of corporate social responsibility.
referring to international reports to Since 2017, the company makes CSR reports
prescribe  the  standards or and placed them on the company's website for
guidelines? Does the Company viewing.

obtain a third-party assurance or

verification for the foregoing

reports?

F. For the companies establishing their own corporate social responsibility principles based on the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies”, please describe the operations and
comparisons:

The company has established the " Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles " and amended in accordance

with laws and regulations at times. Promotion and implementation of its policies are also based on the Code of Practice.

The company's practices and policies on CSR are handled in accordance with four major issues, such as, implementation
of corporate governance, development of a sustainable environment, maintenance of social welfare, and enhancement of

disclosure of information of CSR.

G. Other important information that helps to understand the operations of corporate social responsibility:
The company and its subsidiaries insist the responsibility to society and comply with corporate ethics, not only to create
more profits, but also to maintain a fair balance in the relationship with employees, customers, suppliers, stakeholders,
and the community for support from the public:

1. Environmental protection: In response to the government's resource recycling policy, we set up battery recycling bins and
resource recycling bins in the office, and implement energy-saving and carbon-reduction programs, such as, replacement
of more energy-saving LED light tubes, turning off lighting equipment during lunch breaks, and setting the temperature
of air-conditioning according to the weather.

2.Community Participation, Social Contribution, Services and Public Welfare: In 2020, the company donated to public
welfare organizations, such as, Huayen World, the New Taipei City Private HappyMount Social Welfare Charity
Foundation, TSPGA, John Tung Foundation, etc., as well as participated in caring activities of social benefits, such as,
continuing to pay attention to children with disabilities through the Syinlu Social Welfare Foundation, and also joined the
Syinlu Social Welfare Foundation, and held the activity of hand-made "Happy Traveling Soap", and the activity of blood
donation arranged to give employees an opportunity to help the society.

3.Consumer rights: to provide products with high-quality, in-demand and good performance; to take appropriate
countermeasures to deal with customer complaints, provide complete and correct information, with honesty and no
exaggeration, of products, and set 0800 toll-free numbers.
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Evaluation

The Operations

Yes

No

Summary Description

Comparison
Against the
Corporate
Governance Best-
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies
and Their Reasons

4 Human rights, safety, sanity, and others: Since establishment of the company and acquisition of various subsidiaries, the
company has always concentrated on the principle of humanized management, given employees full respect and care, and
established good employee relations and benefits, so that employees shall have job satisfaction and provide equal
opportunities for employment. We have no gender discrimination or racial discrimination as hiring employee. In addition
to providing employees with a comfortable and safe working environment, there are also simple exercise equipment and
yoga rooms to take care of health of employees. Additional equipment ,such as the breastfeeding room, massage room,
free food supply stations, mobile KTV kiosk, library room and remote video, etc., tends to sympathize employees who

work hard. We protect the basic human rights of employees, such as, working rules, pensions, medical care, accident
insurance and group insurance, education and training, etc.
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(F)Implementation of Ethical Management and Implemented Measures:

The Operations

Evaluation Iltem

Comparison Against the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles

disciplinary and appeal system of impairment

included in the Company’s prevention
programs of unethical behavior thorough
implementation? And any regular review of the

foregoing programs for better implementation?

. The company has set up the

Ethical Corporate Management

Best Practice Principles of
Employees " and the "Measures
for Reporting Cases of Illegal,
Unethical or Untrustworthy
Behavior" and announced them
on the company's website, for
advising the company’s
employees on the importance of

honest behavior at times.

Yes No Summary Description for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies and
Their Reasons
A. Establish ethical management policies and No differences
plans
a. Does the Company establish the ethical] V 1.The company has formulated the
management policies passed by the Board of] " Ethical Corporate
Directors and then publicly specify the Management Best Practice
policies and methodology of ethical Principles ", expects and
management in regulations and document as requires the members of the
well as the commitment in terms of Board of Directors and
management policies actively fulfilled by the employees to implement the
Board of Directors and senior management? policy of ethical management.
. Does the Company establish the evaluation| V 2. The company has set up the "
mechanism on higher risk of unethical Ethical Corporate Management
behavior, regularly analyze and evaluate the Best Practice Principles of
business activities with higher risk of unethical Employees " and the "Measures
behavior, as well as adopt the preventative for Reporting Cases of Illegal,
measures at least covering the Paragraph 2, Unethical or Untrustworthy
Article 7 of the Ethical Corporate Behavior" and announced them
Management Best Practice Principles for on the company's website, for
TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies? advising the company’s
employees on the importance of
honest behavior at times.
c. Are the operational procedures, guidelines,| V "

~ 47 ~




The Operations

Evaluation Iltem

Comparison Against the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles

preventing conflicts of interest, provide the

appropriate  presentation  channel and

implement?

Corporate Management Policies

"

and " Ethical Corporate

Management Best Practice
Principles of Employees " have

set out the policy for conflict of]

Yes No Summary Description for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies and
Their Reasons
B. Implementation on ethical management No differences
a. Does the Company consider the ethical] V 1. Before establishing business
practices of the transaction partner as well as relationships with others, the
the clauses regarding ethical conduct company will first assess its
contained in the agreement with the other legality and whether it has a
party? record of dishonest behavior.
. Does the Company establish the designated| V 2.The company promotes corporate
unit set up under the Board of Directors ethical management by a part-
responsible for promoting the corporate ethical time unit called the operating
management and regularly (at least once a management center, and reports
year) reporting its ethical management to the Board of Directors
policies, prevention programs of unethical regularly every year.
behavior and implementation to the Board of] In order to establish a corporate
Directors? culture of ethical management
and sound development, the "
the Ethical Corporate
Management Policies " has been
established.
In 2020, the company holds
education and trainings on
issues related to ethical
management for employees
(including, compliance with
ethical management
regulations, advocation  of]
RBA, accounting policies and
internal control, etc.), totaling
1,455 hours.
c. Does the Company establish the policies for| V 3. The company’s " the Ethical
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Evaluation Iltem

The Operations

Yes

No

Summary Description

Comparison Against the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies and
Their Reasons

d. Has the Company established the effective
accounting system and internal control system
for implementing the ethical management,
where the relevant audit plans are devised
based on evaluation results of the risk off
unethical behavior by internal audit unit, or by
commissioning the accountant to review the

information related to prevention programs of

unethical behavior?

e. Does the Company regularly organize the

internal and external training sessions on

ethical management?

interest avoidance. When the
company’s employees
implement business, which
triggers conflicts of interest,
they can not only directly report
to the officer of the division, but
also to relevant members of the

management center.

. The company sets up relevant
internal control policies for
operating procedures that may
have a higher risk of dishonest
behavior. The internal auditor
draws up an annual audit plan
for conducting different audit
procedures, based on the results

of the risk assessment.

. In 2020, the company holds
education and trainings on
issues related to ethical
management for employees
(including, compliance with
ethical management
regulations, advocation  of]
RBA, accounting policies and
internal control, etc.), totaling

1,455 hours.
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The Operations

Evaluation Iltem

Yes

No

Summary Description

Comparison Against the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies and
Their Reasons

C. The operations of corporate whistleblowing

system

. Does the Company establish the concrete
whistleblowing and rewards systems, set up
the convenient reporting channel as well as
assign the appropriate special personnel to
process complaints dedicated to the person

being accused?

. Does the Company establish the standard
operating procedures for the investigation, as
well as the follow-up measures and relevant
confidentiality mechanisms that shall be

adopted after investigation?

. Does the Company adopt the measures for
protecting whistle-blowers from inappropriate
due to their

disciplinary ~ actions

whistleblowing?

1.The company has established the
"Methods for Reporting Cases of]
Illegal, Unethical, or Dishonest
multiple

Behavior" and set

communication methods,
including  establishment  of]

physical mailboxes, internal
appeals mailboxes, and a special
area for stakeholders on the
company website, in order to
and external

provide internal

appeals policies and methods.

2. Whether a report is received or a
violation of the code of conduct
is found during inspections, the
relevant personnel handling it
will conduct evidence

collection and investigation to

search for whether an illegal
activity exists, and then deal
with it by the relevant divisions,

according to the situations.

3. The relevant personnel of the
company handling the report
shall declare in writing
For keeping the identity of the
reporter and the content of the
report confidential, and the

company promises to protect the

reporter from being improperly

punished due to the report.

No differences
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Evaluation Iltem

The Operations

Comparison Against the
Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles

corporate management best practice principles
and the effectiveness of the promotion on the
websites or on the Market Observation Post

System (MOPS)?

disclosing information related to
ethical management. In addition,
the  relevant and  reliable
information on ethical management
are also indicated in the annual

report and CSR report.

Yes No Summary Description for TWSE/GTSM-
Listed Companies and
Their Reasons
D. Strengthening the information disclosure. The company's website has a No differences
Does the Company disclose their ethical] V corporate governance area

implementation:

Management Best Practice Principles of Employees™.

E. If the Company has established the ethical corporate management policies based on the Ethical Corporate Management Best

Practice Principles for TWSE/ TPEx Listed Companies, please describe any discrepancy between the policies and their

The Company has established the Ethical Corporate Management Policies based on the Ethical Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/ TPEx Listed Companies, and also set the relevant regulations called ‘Ethical Corporate

and more.

order to strengthen the implementation of ethical management.

F. Other important information that helps to understand the operations of corporate social responsibility: (For example, the

Corporate reviews the presented results to facilitate the timely amendment of the ethical corporate management principles,

1. The company irregularly advocates and holds education and trainings of the importance of integrity behavior at times, in

2. The company irregularly reviews and revises its “the Ethical Corporate Management Policies” at times.
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(G) Please disclose the access to Company’s “Corporate Governance Best Practice” and relevant regulations:

In order to improve the company's corporate governance policy, the company has established the "the
Ethical Corporate Management Policies" and " Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles of
Employees". For more information, please refer to the corporate governance section of the company's
website.

(H) Other important information for enhancing understanding of the implementation of corporate governance:
As one of citizens on the earth, we focus on CSR. The company’s main suppliers are also members of
RBA (Responsible Business Alliance Code of Conduct, RBA) and require the company’s commitment to

comply with " Code of Conduct - Responsible Business Alliance”, and the company has also been audited
by the member of RBA. For relevant information, please refer to http://www.responsiblebusiness.org/
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(D) Status of Implementation of Internal Control System:
1. Statement of internal control system:

Sysage Technology Co., Ltd.
Statement of Internal Control System
Date: February 25, 2021

Based on the findings of a self-assessment, Sysage Technology Co., Ltd. (Sysage) states the following with regard to
its internal control system during the year 2020:

1.

Sysage’s board of directors and management are responsible for establishing, implementing, and maintaining an
adequate internal control system. Our internal control is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance over
the effectiveness and efficiency of our operations (including profitability, performance and safeguarding of assets),
reliability, timeliness, transparency of our reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.

. An internal control system has inherent limitations. No matter how perfectly designed, an effective internal control

system can provide only reasonable assurance of accomplishing its stated objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness
of an internal control system may be subject to changes due to extenuating circumstances beyond our control.
Nevertheless, our internal control system contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and Sysage takes immediate
remedial actions in response to any identified deficiencies.

. Sysage evaluates the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system based on the criteria provided

in the Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies (herein below, the
Regulations). The criteria adopted by the Regulations identify five key components of managerial internal control:
(1) control environment, (2) risk assessment, (3) control activities, (4) information and communications, and (5)
monitoring activities.

Sysage has evaluated the design and operating effectiveness of its internal control system according to the aforesaid
Regulations.

. Base on the findings of such evaluation, Sysage believes that, on December 31, 2020, it has maintained, in all

material respects, an effective internal control system (that includes the supervision and management of our
subsidiaries), to provide reasonable assurance over our operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliability,
timeliness, transparency of reporting, and compliance with applicable rulings, laws and regulations.

This Statement is an integral part of Sysage’s annual report for the year 2020 and prospectus, and will be made
public. Any falsehood, concealment, or other illegality in the content made public will entail legal liability under
Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

. This statement was passed by the board of directors in their meeting held on February 25, 2021, with eight attending

directors all affirming the content of this Statement.

Sysage Technology Co., Ltd.

Chairman & President
Michael Lee
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2. Companies which CPAs to professionally review the internal control system shall disclose the review report
provided by the accountants: NA.

(J) The Company and its personnel have been punished by law, the Company has undertaken disincentive measures
for its personnel for breaching the internal control system, and any material deficiencies and revisions in the
most recent year up to the publication date of the Annual Report: None.

(K) Material Resolutions Approved by Board Meetings & Shareholders’ meeting

Date Content
1. The 2019 financial statements and business report, and the 2020 business plan.
2. Approval of the 2019 surplus distribution proposal.
10t -3 3. Approval of distributing cash from capital reserve.
2020/03/05 | 4. To amend the company's Articles of Incorporation
BOD 5. To amend the "Handling Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets".
6. To amend the "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement & Guarantee".
7. Approval of the date and agenda of 2020 shareholders’ meeting.
10" -4 1.To set the date and agenda of the 2020 shareholders' meeting.
2020/04/09
BOD
10 -5 1. It is proposed to recognize the 2020Q1 consolidated financial report.
2020/05/05 2. It is proposed to acquire common stocks of GRANDSYS INC.
BOD
1.To recognize the 2019 surplus distribution proposal of the company.
Implementation status: Resolution approved. The cash dividend for this surplus distribution
case is NT$2 per share, and the total cash dividend is NT$376,714,672, setting June 23, 2020
as the ex-dividend date, and issued on July 10, 2020.
2.To amend the company's Articles of Incorporation
Implementation status: Resolution approved.
3.To recognize the company’s business report and final statements.
Implementation status: Resolution approved.
2020/05/28 4.To amend the company's "Handling Procedure for Acquiring or Disposal of assets".
Shareholders’ Implementation status: Resolution approved. It was announced at the Public Information
Meeting Observatory on May 28, 2020 and handled in accordance with the revised procedures.
5.To amend the company's "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement & Guarantee
Implementation status: Resolution approved. It was announced at the Public Information
Observatory on May 28, 2020 and handled in accordance with the revised procedures.
6. Approval if the company's proposal of capital reserves distribution in cash.
Implementation status: Resolution approved. The distribution is NT$1 per share, and the total
cash dividend is NT$188,357,336, setting June 23, 2020 as the ex-dividend date, and issued
on July 10, 2020.
1. It is proposed to recognize the 2020Q2 consolidated financial report.
10t -6
2020/08/06
BOD
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Date Content
1. To report 2020Q3 Consolidated financial report.
2.1t is proposed to appoint CPAs for the company's financial statements in 2021.
Lo% 7 3.1t is proposed to increase the shareholding of the subsidiary-GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE
NETWORK CO., LTD.
2020/11/05 ) i ) o
BOD 4.1t is proposed to increase the shareholding of the subsidiary- DAWNING TECHNOLOGY
INC.
5.The appointment of COO of the company.
6. The appointment of president of the company.
Lot g 1.The company has established an Application Review Committee and selection of members of
2020/12/09 the Application Review Committee in accordance with the law.
BOD 2.To Appoint an independent expert to issue an opinion on the reasonableness of the acquisition
price.
1. The company's reviews on the public acquisition of the company's common stocks by Qisda
10th -9 Corporation.
2020/12/18 | 2. The company's reinvestment in the equity of Corex (PTY) LTD.
BOD 3. It is proposed to make endorsements to Corex (PTY) LTD.
4. The appointment of CFO, financial and accounting officer.
10%-10 1. The company's reinvestment in the equity of Statinc Co., Ltd.
2021/01/28
BOD
1. The 2020 business report and financial statements, and the 2021 business plan.
2. It is proposed to recognize the 2020 surplus distribution case.
3. It is proposed to recognize the surplus distribution of cash dividends in 2020.
10t -11 4. To amend the Articles of Incorporation of the company.
2021/02/25 5. To amend the "Handling Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets".
BOD 6. To amend the "Handling Procedures for Fund Loan and Endorsement & Guarantee".
7. To lift non-competition restrictions on current directors and their representatives.
8. To set the date and agenda of 2021 shareholders’ meeting.
9. The proposal of donation to the BenQQ Foundation.

(L) Major contents of any dissenting opinions on record or stated in a written statement made by Directors
regarding material resolutions passed by the Board of Directors’ Meeting in the most recent year up to the
publication date of this report: None.

(M) In the most recent year up to the publication date of the Annual Report, a summary of the resignation and
dismissal of the Company personnel such as Chairman, President, accounting manager, financial manager,
internal audit manager and R&D manager:

December 31, 2020

. Date of Date of Re-ason.s for
Title Name . S Resignation or
Appointment Termination e
Dismissal

Vice Chairman& President | Tso-Sui Wu 1998/04/01 2020/11/05 Personal - career
planning

Vice President of Financial . . .

& Administration Center Hsiu-Ching Cheng | 2016/05/01 2020/12/31 Retirement

Vice President of Personal career

Accounting & Business | Chih-Hui Hsu 2016/05/01 2020/10/15 .
planning

Management Center
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E. Information on CPA fees
Table of fee range of CPA fees

Accounting Firm Name of CPA Period Covered Remarks
by CPA’s Audit
KPMG
I 2020/01-
Hung-Wen Fu | Mei-Ping Wu 2020/12
Amount until: NT$ 1,000
Audit Fee Non-audit Fee Total
Fee Items
Fee Range
1 | Under NT$ 2,000,000 - - -
2 | NT$2,000,001(Included) ~NT$4,000,000 2,480 - 2,480
3 | NT$4,000,001 (Included)~ NT$6,000,000 - - -
4 [ NT$6,000,001 (Included)~ NT$8,000,000 - - -
5 | NT$8,000,001 (Included)~
NT$10,000,000 i ) i

6 | Over NT$100,000,000(Included)

(A) When non-audit fees paid to the certified public accountant, to the accounting firm of thecertified
public accountant, and/or to any affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm areone quarter or
more of the audit fees paid thereto, the amounts of both audit and non-auditfees as well as details

of non-audit services shall be disclosed: None.

(B) When the Company changes its accounting firm and the audit fees paid for the fiscal yearin which
such change took place are lower than those for the previous fiscal year, the amounts of the audit
fees before and after the change and the reasons shall be disclosed: None.

(C) When the audit fees paid for the current fiscal year are lower than those for the previous fiscal
year by 10 percent or more, the reduction in the amount of audit fees, reduction percentage, and
reason(s) therefor shall be disclosed: None.
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F. Information on replacement of CPAs

(A) Regarding former CPA

Replacement date 2020/05/05

Reason and explanation for 1o cooperate with the internal adjustment from KPMG.
replacement

Explain why the appointor
or CPA terminated or refused|

to accept the appointment Parties

Status CPA Appointor

IAppointment terminated

Not applicable; Due to the internal adjustment from
Refused to accept (continue) 1€ accounting firm.

appointment
Audit report opinions other
than unqualified opinion
None
over the last two years and
reason
Did issuer have a different Accounting principles or practices
opinion ‘ ‘ '
Disclosure of Financial Statements
ves Audit scope or steps
Others| Others
NoneV

Remarks/specify details:

Other items  requiring
disclosure (disclosures for
Clause 6.1.4~7, Article 10
of these guidelines) None
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(B)Regarding the Succeeding CPA

Name of CPA firm KPMG
Name of CPAs Hung-Wen Fu ; Mei-Ping Wu
Date of Appointment 2020Q1

Inquiries regarding the accounting
treatment methods of specific
transactions, accounting principles or None
opinions provided on financial report
prior to the appointment and results
Written opinion of successor CPA
regarding discrepancies in opinion with None
the prior CPA

(C)The former CPA's response for items specified in Article 10, Subparagraph 6, Item 1 and Item 2-3 of the
Accounting Standards: NA.

G. Has any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or managers responsible for finance or accounting duties served
in the Company’s CPA firm or its affiliated Company within the most recent year: None.
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H. The Situation of equity transfer or changes to equity pledge of Directors, managers or shareholders holding more
than 10% of Company shares in the most recent year (or initial date of a manager's term of service) up to the
publication date of this report:

(A) Changes in shares held by Directors, managers, and shareholders holding 10% or more of shares:

Title Name 2020 As of March 30, 2021
Increase Increase Increase Increase
(decrease) of (decrease) of | (decrease) of | (decrease) of
shares held shares pledged | shares held shares pledged

Qisda Corporation

Chairman& President Corporate Representative : — — 30,841,239 —
Michael Lee

. . . Tso-Sui Wu 1,100,000 .

Vice Chairman& President |y o nation:2020/11/05 (As of 2020/11/30) —|Not applicable -
Qisda Corporation

Director Corporate Representative : — — 30,841,239 —|
Shu-Erh Kuo
Qisda Corporation

Director Corporate Representative : - - 30,841,239 —|
Chiu-Chin Hung
Qisda Corporation

Director Corporate Representative : - - 30,841,239 —|
Chi-Nan Tsai
Qisda Corporation

Director Corporate Representative - — — 30,841,239 —
Wen-Hsing Tseng

Independent Director Wen-Tsung Wang — — - —

Independent Director Chin-Lai Wang - - — —

Independent Director Shan-Kuei Lai - — - —

g:j;?;;:n(i?ésr?fss Shu-Erh Kuo - —|  (2:600,000) =

President of Product

Development & Support  |Chieh-Cheng Shih — — (1,400,000) —

Center

COO & CLO TK Young — — - —

che president of Business Hui-Fen Liao 81,634 _ 20,000 _

First Group

Vice President of Business |Wen-Chuan Tseng (20,666)

Third Group Removal:2021/2/28 (52,000) - (As of -

2021/02/28)

Vice President of Product

Development & Support  |Li-Tsung Lin — — - —

Center

CFO Mavis Lin — — - —

Vice President of Financial |Hsiu-Ching Cheng _ —INot applicable |

& Administration Center  |Removal:2020/12/31

XICCCCOE;ZS;(;GS: ](;flsiness Chih-Hui Hsu N —[Not applicable —
Removal:2020/10/15 (As 0f2020/10/31)

Management Center

Major shareholder

Qisda Corporation

30,841,239

(B) Counterparty of equity pledge is a related party: None

(C) Counterparty of equity pledge is a related party: None
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I. Information of relationships between Top 10 shareholders are related parties, spouses or relatives within the second

degree of kinship Relationship

March 30, 2021; Unit: Shares

Familial relationships between
top 10 shareholders who are
Sh held Shares held by spouse or Total shares held in the name | either related parties, spouses, or
ari
N e e underage children of other persons relatives within the second N "
ame degree of kinship, his/her/its emar
title (or name) and relationships
Number of Shareholding Number Shareholding Number Shareholding Title Relationshi
shares Percentage (%) of shares | Percentage (%) of shares Percentage (%) (or Name) elationships
Qisda Corporation | 96,841,239 51.41% - - - - NA NA
Qisda Corporation
Representative: - - - - - - NA NA
Peter Chen
Taishin
International
Commercial Bank
Entrusted with | 2,000,000 1.06% - - - - NA NA
Guo Shu-erh’s
Trust Property
Account
CHIH-HSUN, CHIUNG-
LIAO
1,745,172 0.93% - - - - YUEH, Couple
CHANG
Dian-Jiang
Investment  Co., 1,154,660 0.61% - - - - NA NA
Ltd.
Dian-Jiang
Investment Co.,
Ltd - - - - - - NA NA
Representative:
Ming-Chao Kuei
CHIH-HUNG,
TAI 953,953 0.51% - - - - CHIH-LI, TAI Sibling
CHIH-LI, TAI CHIH-HUNG,
913,441 0.48% - - - - TAI Sibling
CHIUNG-YUEH, CHIH-HSUN
843,000 0.45% - - - - ’ Couple
CHANG 0 LIAO P
FANG-CHUAN,
CHOU 790,000 0.42% - - - - NA NA
HSBC Entrusted
with Bank of Nova 784,000 0.42% - - - - NA NA
Scoti
Citibank Entrusted
with  BNP that
invests SNC in the 694,049 0.37% - - - - NA NA
investment
account
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J. Shareholdings and Combined Joint Shareholdings of Businesses Invested in by the Company, Company Directors,
Supervisors or Executive Officers or Directly or Indirectly Controlled by the Company

December 31, 2020;Unit : Shares ; %

Investment by Directors,
Investment by the Company [supervisors, managers and directly Combined investment
Investment or indirectly-controlled business
business Shareholding Shareholding .
Number of shares | Percentage [ Number of shares | Percentage | Number of shares Shareholdlr(l)g
Percentage (%)
(%) ()
UNISAGE
DIGITAL CO,, 224,633 38.01% - - 224,633 38.01%
LTD.
GRANDSYS INC. 5,643,373 23.58% — — 5,643,373 23.58%
UNISAGE
DIGITAL CO,, 1,152,800 34.09% — — 1,152,800 34.09%
LTD.

Note: Invested by the Consolidated Company using the equity method

IV. Capital and Shares
A. Capital and shares
(A)Source of Share Capital

1. Source of Share Capital

March 30, 2021; Unit: Shares & NT$ 1,000

Issued Authorized capital Paid-in capital Note
Yearand |price (par| Number of Number of Capital
month value per Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of capital increase Certificate No
share) (thousand (thousand) (thousand (thousand) (thousand) approval )
shares) shares) date
1998/4 10 5,000,000 50,000,000 3,430,000 34,300,000|Establishment — -
Capital Increases in _ B
1998/8 10 5,500,000 55,000,000 5,500,000 55,000,000 Cash20.700,000
Capital Increases in
Cash59,005,000
Surplus &
1999/5 10 19,000,000 190,000,000 12,000,000 120,000,000 | Employee Benefits — —
transferred to
common stock
5,995,000
Capital Increases in _ _
1999/11 16 19,000,000 190,000,000 19,000,000 190,000,000 Cash70,000,000
Capital Increases in
Cash35,530,000
gaplfal sglirplus, Ministry of economic
2000/4 25 59,000,000 590,000,000 29,000,000{ 290,000,000 PSS - affairs certificate no.
POy 32514
transferred to
common stock
64,470,000
. . Ministry of economic
2000/10 120 59,000,000  590,000,000{  33,000,000] 330,000,000 gapﬁ% g‘ggegggs mn - affairs certificate no.
asnat, vy, 84607
Capital surplus,
]Sglrlnrg%g;gé Benefits Ministry of economic
2001/5 10 80,000,000 800,000,000| 47,565,000 475,650,000 o forred to — affairs certificate no.
common stock 123447
145,650,000
Ministry of economic
Capital Tncr in affairs certificate no.
2002/4 54 80,000,000]  800,000,000|  54,565,000| 545,650,000 czgh?o Oocoegggs - 110157 &Ministry of
U economic affairs
certificate no. 114430
Surplus &
Employee Benefits Ministry of economic
2002/7 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 64,160,750 641,607,500 |transferred to — affairs certificate no.
common stock 0910131622
95,957,500
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Issued Authorized capital Paid-in capital Note
Yearand |price (par| Number of Number of Capital
month value per Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of ca(l})ital increase Certificate No
share) (thousand (thousand) (thousand (thousand) (thousand) approval )
shares) shares) date
Surplus &
Employee Benefits Ministry of economic
2003/10 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 68,000,000 680,000,000 |transferred to - affairs certificate no.
common stock 0920131234
38,392,500
Decrease in Ministry of economic
2006/1 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 64,600,000 646,000,000 |treasury - affairs certificate no.
stock34,000,000 0950002178
Decrease in Ministry of economic
2006/5 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 63,200,000 632,000,000 |treasury stock - affairs certificate no.
14,000,000 0950010780
Capital surplus & Ministry of economic
2008/7 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000] 69,520,000  695,200,000|Surplus transferred — affairs certificate no.
to common stock 0970033085
63,200,000
Capital Ministry of economic
2009/7 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 62,568,000 625,680,000{Reductions in - affairs certificate no.
Cash 69,520,000 0980032562
Capital surplus Ministry of economic
transferred to affairs certificate no.
2010/7 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000| 67,429,440 674,294,400 - on stock 0990034735
48,614,400
Capital surplus — Ministry of economic
transferred to affairs certificate no.
2011/7 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000{ 73,992,384 739,923,840 ;- on stock 1000031224
65,629,440
Decrease in — Ministry of economic
2011/11 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 72,192,384 721,923,840 |treasu affairs certificate no.
stock 18,000,000 0970062484
Capitfgll suéplus — hg}njstry of fg:conomic
transferred to affairs certificate no.
2012/8 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000{ 79,411,622 794,116,220 o stock 1010028835
72,192,380
Capital surplus — Ministry of economic
transferred to affairs certificate
2013/7 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000| 83,382,203 833,822,030 ;- oh stock 10.1020025498
39,705,810
Capital surplus & — Ministry of economic
Surplus transferred affairs certificate no.
2014/7 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 91,720,423 917,204,230| 0 common stock 1030025092
83,382,200
Surplus transferred — Approved by Financial
2016/7 10 140,000,000| 1,400,000,000 96,306,444 963,064,440 to common stock Supervisory Commission
45,860,210 In 2016/6/24
Surplus transferred — Approved by Financial
2017/8 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000| 101,121,766 1,011,217,660|to common stock Supervisory Commission
48,153,220 In 2017/7/14
Capital surplus & — Approved by Financial
Surplus transferred Supervisory Commission
2018/8 10 140,000,000 1,400,000,000{ 111,233,942 1,112,339,420|to common stock In 2018/7/3
101,121,760
(S:api}al surpl¥s &d — Approved by Financial
urplus transferre: Supervisory Commission
2019/8 10 180,000,000 1,800,000,000 122,357,336 1,223,573,360|; "o mmon stock In 2019/6/10
111,233,940
Privafte st(éck — Ministry of economic
transferred to affairs certificate no.
2019/9 10 250,000,000/  2,500,000,000| 188,357,336| 1,883,573,360| .00 stock 10801118730
660,000,000
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2.Shares Type and Shares Outstanding

December 31, 2020; Unit: Shares

Authorized Shares
Shares Type i Notes
P Outstanding shares Un-issued Total shares
shares
Authorized capital includes
Common
Sh 188,357,336 61,642,664 250,000,000 30,000,000 shares of employee
ares
stock options

3. Related information of the general declaration system : Not applicable.

(B)Shareholder structure

March 30, 2021

Shareholder ) ) Foreign
G Financial ) o o
structure| Government | = Other corporations| Individual | institutions Subtotal
) institutions | institutions .
Quantity and foreigners
Number of persons 1 6 173 29,291 46 29,517
Number of shares 55 506,484 102,204,535 82,858,041 2,788,221 188,357,336
held
Shareholding 0% 0.27% 54.26% 43.99% 1.48% 100%
Percentage (%)

~ 63 ~



(C)Distribution of Equity Ownership

March 30, 2021

Class of Shareholding SE;I;E;ZEE Number of shares held Shareholdi(tl/go)Percentage

1 ~ 999 19,402 1,085,985 0.58%
1,000 ~ 5,000 7,224 15,313,517 8.13%
5,001 ~ 10,000 1,409 10,478,035 5.56%
10,001 ~ 15,000 482 5,917,069 3.14%
15,001 ~ 20,000 266 4,745,182 2.52%
20,001 ~ 30,000 246 6,115,307 3.25%
30,001 ~ 40,000 247 9,712,236 5.16%
40,001 ~ 50,000 137 9,628,045 5.11%
50,001 ~ 100,000 66 8,878,783 4.71%
100,001 ~ 200,000 20 5,601,922 2.97%
200,001 ~ 400,000 5 2,277,140 1.21%
400,001 ~ 600,000 6 4,152,650 2.21%
600,001 ~ 800,000 3 2,710,394 1.44%
800,001 ~ 1,000,000 4 101,741,071 54.01%

1,000,001 or more 29,517 188,357,336 100.00%

(D)List of Major Shareholders

March 30, 2021

Shares

hareholdi

Major Shareholders’ Name Number of shares held Shareho dlrig
Percentage (%)

Qisda Corporation 96,841,239 51.41%
Taishin International Commercial Bank Entrusted with Guo 2,000,000 1.06%
Shu-erh’s Trust Property Account
CHIH-HSUN, LIAO 1,745,172 0.93%
Dian-Jiang Investment Co., Ltd. 1,154,660 0.61%
CHIH-HUNG, TAI 953,953 0.51%
CHIH-LI, TAI 913,441 0.48%
CHIUNG-YUEH, CHANG 843,000 0.45%
FANG-CHUAN, CHOU 790,000 0.42%
HSBC Entrusted with Bank of Nova Scoti 784,000 0.42%
Citibank Entrusted with BNP that invests SNC in the 694,049 0.37%
investment account
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(E)Information on Market Price, Book Value, Earnings Per Share and Dividend:

Fiscal Year As of March 30,
_ 2019 2020 2021 (Note 5)

Highest 37.40 47.20 46.00
Market
Ll - si1s T e s
Share efore retrospective . . .
Average After retrospective 31.15 (Note 6) -
Net Worth |Before Distribution 29.14 22.68 -
Per Share
(Note 1) |After Distribution 25.30 (Note 6) -
Earnings x;ﬁlsl;i‘;ps‘;zrfefe Shares Number 147,107,336 | 188,357,336 -
Per Share Earni
(EPS) arnings Before retrospective 2.58 291 -
per share
Cash dividends |Before retrospective 3.00 2.5 -
Dividend from retained earnings - (Note 6) -
Dividends s;::e )
Per Share distributi Dividend from capital reserve (Note 6) -
on
Cumulative unpaid dividend - - -
Price/Earnings Ratio (Note 2) 13.24 13.31 -
Return on [Price/Dividend Ratio (Note 3) 11.38 (Note 6) -
I t t .. .
fvestmen Cash Dividend Yield (Note 4) 8.78% (Note 6) -

*In the event that surplus or capital reserve is used to increase capital, information of the market price and cash
dividend shall be adjusted, according to issuance of the number of shares.

Note 1: Based on the number of issued shares at the end of the year, and the distribution based on the resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting in the following year.

Note 2: Price/Earnings ratio = Average market price/Earnings per share.

Note 3: Price/Dividend ratio = Average market price/Cash dividends per share.

Note 4: Cash dividend yield = Cash dividends per share/ Average market price.

Note 5: As of the publication date of the annual report, there is no information regarding with earnings per share and
net Worth Per Share that have been reviewed by CPAs for the most recent quarter. The Market Price Per
Share is the information for the current year as of the publication date of the annual report.

Note 6: Resolution of 2020 earning distribution at the 2021.2.25 BOD Meeting, but pending resolution at the
shareholders’ meeting.

(F)Dividend Policy and Execution Status:

1. the Articles of Incorporation of the Company regulates the dividend policy as follows:

The company, if profitable in the year, shall set aside no less than 8% of the profit as compensation for
the employees and no higher than 2% as remuneration for the directors, and employee compensation in
cash or stocks mentioned in paragraph shall apply to employees holding over 50% of total shares of the
controlling company and subsidiaries, in accordance with Articles of Incorporation.

The company's earnings of the year, if any, shall be allocated to pay taxes and offset the accumulated
losses from previous years first, and then set aside 10% as legal reserve. The company shall then appropriate
a certain amount as special reserve in compliance with the company’s operating requirements, applicable
laws or regulatory requirements (Where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital, this
provision shall not apply). The remaining earnings, if any, may be put together with the retained earnings
from previous years and the adjustment amount of the undistributed earnings of the year; the sum of the
above may be appropriated as dividends and bonuses according to the distribution proposal prescribed by
the Board of Directors based on the actual needs after the proposal is submitted to and approved at the
shareholders' meeting, in accordance with Articles of Incorporation.
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The company’s new dividend distribution policy will be effective after approved by the discussion matter
(To amend the Articles of Incorporation) on the sharecholders’ meeting on May 28, 2021: The company
adopts a dividend distribution policy whereby only surplus profits of the company shall be distributed to
shareholders, according to the company’s earnings, capital structure, and operating requirements in the
future. Where dividend is distributed in a mixture of cash and shares, the amount of cash dividends paid
shall be no lesser than 10% of total dividends provided for the year. If the company’s annual budget
profitable in the year, and a portion of distributable earnings reaching 2% or above, the amount of dividends
paid shall be no lesser than 10% of distributable earnings.

2. The dividend distribution proposal by the Shareholders’ Meeting:

On February 25, 2021, the Board of Directors has made resolutions to determine the distributable amount
of the cash dividend for the shareholders as NT$470,893,340. After the approval, the announcement will
be announced at the Market Observation Post System and will be reported to the 2021 Shareholders'
Meeting.

(G)Effects upon business performance and earnings per share of any stock dividend distribution proposed or
adopted at the most recent shareholders' meeting : Not applicable.

(H)Compensation of Employees, Directors

1. Information Relating to Compensation of Employees, Directors in the Articles of Incorporation

Amounts decided: The company, if profitable in the year, shall set aside no less than 8% of the profit as
compensation for the employees and no higher than 2% as remuneration for the
directors.

Scope: Employee compensation mentioned in paragraph 1 shall apply to employees holding over 50% of
total shares of the controlling company and subsidiaries.

2. Estimation basis of this annual period for the remuneration and compensation for employees and Directors,
and the accounting approach for handling the differences between the calculation basis for the shares of
employees' remuneration distributed by stock and the actual distributed amount and the estimated number
of shares:

(1) Estimation basis of this annual period for the remuneration and compensation for employees and
Directors: The company, if profitable in the year, shall set aside no less than 8% of the profit as
compensation for the employees and no higher than 2% as remuneration for the directors, in
accordance with Articles of Incorporation.

(2) The calculation basis of the number of shares for employee renumeration distributed by stocks:
Calculation is based on the closing price on the day before resolution date of the Board of Directors.

(3) [Ifthere is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year, it shall
be recognized as the profit and loss next year.

3. The resolution of remuneration distribution by the Board of Directors:

The amount of any employee compensation distributed in cash or stocks and compensation for directors and
supervisors. If there is any discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year these expenses
are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of treatment shall be disclosed.

(1) The distribution amount of employee compensation & Directors’ Renumeration:
A. Employee Cash Bonus: NT$ 60,450,000.
B. Directors’ Renumeration: NT$ 5,650,000.
C. There is no discrepancy between that amount and the estimated figure for the fiscal year

(2) The proportion of employee remuneration paid by stocks to the total amount of the amount of
individual profit (after tax) plus the amount of employee remuneration in the current period: Not
applicable.

4.  Distribution of Remuneration of Employees and Directors of the Previous Annual Period:

(1) The amount distributed to employees’ remuneration in cash was NT$ 45,200,000 and NT$
5,040,000 for Directors’ one.
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(2) The difference between the proposed distribution amount approved by the Board of Directors and
the actual amount distributed: the actual distributed amount was the same as the proposed
distribution amount approved by the Board of Directors.

(I) Repurchase of the Company’s Shares by the Company: None.

B. Status of Corporate Bonds: None.

C. Status of preferred shares: None.

D. Status of global depository receipt: None.

E. Status of Employee Stock Options: None.

F. Status of Restricted Employee Shares: None.

G. Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None.

H. Financing Plans and Implementation: None.
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V. Overview of Operations
A.Our Businesses
(A)Business Scope:

1. Major contents of business:

The Group mainly focuses on distribution, purchasing and selling of products of ICT,
and we aim at brands channel, value-added services and building the bridge to the cloud
world, and provide the ICT Solution of network equipment, hardware and software to
customers, for enterprises and users to build a more efficient ICT cloud application
environment.

The structure of business operations of the company is as follows:

ICT System Integration and Application

Database Data and Information
System and Data Optimized
Management Management &
Tools Protection

\

IT Education and Training Services
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Neotwork Infesstructute: Swilch, Routar, Wirglsss LAN

The company and its subsidiaries distribute more than 40 internationally famous
network and system software and hardware IT brands, such as, Cisco, Check Point, Citrix,
Dell, EMC, IBM, Juniper, Oracle, Pure Storage, Red Hat, SAP, VMware, etc. For more
than 20 years of experience as a distributor, we are familiar with the ecosystem and business
operation of ICT market, and we can provide the most professional consultancy and project
collaboration for one-stop services with different IT brands for system Integration partners
and enterprise users.

2. Operating ratio of products and services of the company at present.

Unit : %
Year
2020

Product

Computational products 46.58
Network products 26.70
Tools products 22.58
Technical services, and other products 4.14
Total 100.00

~ 68 ~



3. Products and services of the company at present

The company's overall operating strategy is based on “brands channel; value-added
services” as the main operating purposes, and the product line distributed by the company
including ICT hardware and software products of global leading vendors, such as Cisco,
Citrix, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat, SAP, and VMware, ctc. For enterprises ICT
infrastructure, including network, security, server, storage, data analysis systems and
backup systems, we plan overall structure of network, server system, security mechanism,
database performance, backup system and relevant solutions of application software and
hardware for enterprises. We can customize software and hardware ICT solutions to meet
enterprises’ requirement, provide relevant technical consultancy, education and training,
and improve added-on values by overall planning and system integration services, so that

enterprises and users can build more effective ICT cloud application environment.

4. The development plan of new products and services
In order to meet requirements of enterprises' digital transformation, our plan for future
research and development will concentrate on the R&D of cloud application integration
and big data analysis, including:
(1) Development and optimization of the Cloud Management Portal for cross-cloud
usages and expenses management.
(2) To integrate Customer relationship management (CRM) system with social media.
(3) Advanced data analysis and research, such as, Al, big data and data lake.
(4) Application research and development of microservices and cloud applications for
enterprises digital transformation.
The total amount of R&D expenses expected to be invested in the above projects is

approximately NT$15 million in 2021.

(B)Industry Overview
1. Current Status and Development of the Industry

According to IDC's 2020 prediction of the top ten trends in the Taiwan ICT market,
the global digital transformation will enter into the "Transformation 2.0 Generation." The
digital transformation of enterprises will be changed from focusing on “digital
technology (Digital-led)” to “Data-driven” and also indicate that enterprises must
transform into “Future Enterprise” and concentrate on development in line with the
characteristics of “Future Enterprise”, including empathy/sympathy, authorization,

innovation, data, and leadership in response to the new type of transformation.
The trends of development relevant to the company are as follows:

(1) Hybrid/multi-cloud structure becomes a key factor for enterprise innovation
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To achieve diversified innovation and transformation, enterprises have begun to
think about how to create more flexibility, speed-up, and innovation through a multi-
cloud hybrid environment. In 2019, 80% of global enterprises have introduced a
hybrid/multi-cloud environment, and 46% of enterprises in Taiwan have tried to
implement a hybrid/multi-cloud environment. However, observing present
hybrid/multi-cloud deployment, enterprises face multiple challenges, such as,
compatibility, information security, load balancing, management allocation, and
human resources, etc. The container and Kubernetes (K8S) platforms have the
advantages of expand-abilities of platform, highly available management interface,
and automated load balancing, which may help enterprises deal with challenges faced
in deploying hybrid/multi-cloud. IDC predicts that Kubernetes (K8S) will become
interoperability standard of the main platform for cross-cloud deployment and
management of containers. The ecosystem of relevant manufacturers, including
hybrid cloud operators, public cloud operators, hardware operators, and commercial
software industries that will also invest and promote the introduction and application
of hybrid/multi-cloud in enterprises.

IDC predicts that 45% of global enterprises in 2022 will deploy applications in
a containerized multi-cloud environment for a perfect system deployment and
management. At the same time, 74% of enterprises in Taiwan will deploy
hybrid/multi-cloud environments, for leading development of enterprises of IT
market in Taiwan.

The next stage of digital transformation: SMEs accelerate their transformation

IDC assumes that nearly 60% of Taiwanese enterprises were undergoing digital
transformation in 2019, but only 13% of SMEs initiated plans of digital
transformation, since resources and costs were the main obstacle for development.
IDC assumes that 2020 will be an important turning point. In addition to domestic
and foreign information service providers have begun to provide simple, flexible
digital services to meet requirements of SMEs, SMEs have also begun to invest Al,
which can improve interaction with customers, and expect short-term return on
investment. IDC predicts that the growth of SMEs' digital transformation experience,
and its scope of applications will improve customer experience and enhance
employee productivity and satisfaction. It is estimated that 47.8% of Taiwan's SMEs

will undergo digital transformation in 2021.
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(3) Geopolitical risks have intensified, continuing to drive the localization of information security

Uncertainty of global politics continues to rise. International competition has shifted from
military confrontation to technology and digital sovereignty. As facing two major technological
hegemonies of China and the United States, the world’s major information powers have taken the
lead in network security to reduce geopolitics, which shall trigger the risks and strategies of the
possible impact of social media or online speeches on national sovereignty shall be proposed. At
the same time, training of talents of information security and the establishment of an ecosystem
are carried out.

However, other non-information countries rely on US information security products and
technologies. IDC has observed that these countries have begun to improve their cooperation with
other countries in IT infrastructure, through multiple technology standards to cope with the
uncertain international situation. In the long run, independent deployment of key technologies is
an important point of development of non-information powers. IDC expects that 40% of countries
that develop digital infrastructure at a high speed will move towards localization of information
security in 2022, and ensure the stability of economic development and national security.

In response to changes in the international situation, apart from continuing to strengthen the
independent deployment of key technologies and training talents of information security in Taiwan,
special political and economic background has developed unique advantages in the information
security industry, and it will also help win a new opportunity for the information security industries
in Taiwan, as the world situation is characterized by turbulence and in tranquility.

2. Connection of Upstream, Midstream and Downstream Industries

The company and its subsidiaries are midstream value-added distributors in the information service
industry, distributing various communication and Internet software and hardware equipment,
workstation and servers, tools integration application software and other products, etc. Through
capabilities of integration by distributing products, we provide professional consultancy, technical
services, and other solutions etc., to downstream partners, and then sell to end-users (End User) through
those partners. The upstream are mainly suppliers of various network software and hardware, host
systems and application software, and the downstream are system integrators, partners and end-users
engaged in selling information products.

At present, upstream companies in the information industry focus on R&D and manufacturing of
information products. Midstream retailers take market promotion and establish marketing channels as
their primary business objective, while downstream industries provide delivery, installation,
maintenance, and technical support services to end-users.

Simple connection of upstream, midstream and downstream industries, and end-users is as follows:

Upstream Midstream Downstream
—  Government
System
IT Hardware Value-Added Integrator || School
: Retailer
Supplier Value-Added _
— - Partner Enterprise
IT Software Logistics Retailer J
Supplier Ordinary Partner - Family
- Person
L | Others
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Trends in development of products

Gartner, an international research and advisory organization, puts forward ten strategic
technology trends that enterprises must understand in 2020, including super-automation, multiple
experiences, publication of professional knowledge, enhancement of human empowerment,
transparency and traceability, and stronger edges computing, distributed cloud, automated objects,
practical blockchain, and artificial intelligence security.

David Cearley, vice president and distinguished analyst of Gartner, pointed out: "Gartner's top
ten strategic technology trends in 2020 were all centered on the core concept of "human-oriented smart
space", and it is also one of the most important aspects of today's technology development. From
thinking about technology, what kind of influence will customers, employees, business partners, society
or other important related-parties have? All actions taken by enterprises directly or indirectly affect these
individuals and groups. This is the approach of "human-oriented"." Those who are relevant to the
company are as follows:

(1) Transparency and traceability

More and more consumers realize that personal data is very valuable and must be controlled,
and companies also realize that the risks of protecting and managing personal data are increasing.
Therefore, governments of various countries simultaneously implement strict regulations to ensure
implementation by corporate organizations. Transparency and traceability have become a key
element to support digital ethics and privacy requirements.

Transparency and traceability refer to meet regulatory requirements, comply with Al, and ethics
for application of other advanced technologies, and repair various attitudes, actions, and supporting
technologies and measures that the outside trusts in the enterprise. When establishing transparency
and trust, enterprises must focus on the following three areas: Artificial intelligence and machine
learning, privacy of personal data, ownership and control, and ethical design.

(2) Distributed cloud

Distributed cloud is to disperse the current centralized public cloud services to different
locations, and the original public cloud provider will continue to be responsible for operation,
governance, update and upgrade of the cloud service. It means that the centralized model adopted
by public cloud services will be transformed, and creates a new era for cloud computing.

(3) Security of Al

Artificial intelligence and machine learning will continue to improve human decision-making
capabilities in different application situations. Although it brings huge business opportunities to
realization of super-automation and using automated objects for business transformation. Due to the
Internet of Things in the smart space, cloud computing, microservices, and highly-connected
systems are more likely to be attacked, it may bring many new challenges to security teams. Security
and risk managers shall focus on the following three key areas: protection of Al system, using Al to
improve security protection, and preparing for the malicious use of Al by attackers.

4. Competition Status of industries

The company acts as a value-added distributor of network system. In addition to distributing global
famous brand products, it also provides related technical consultancy, education, and training courses,
and uses overall planning and system of integration services to increase its added-value, and acts as a
few domestic professional service providers to provide complete solutions of network and system to
enterprises.

A distributor of ordinary information products can be divided into value-added retailers and
logistics retailers, according to the types of services they provide and their niche of competition. For
value-added retailers, they focus on the increase in the added-value of product sales, and establish their
niche of competition through value-added services. The company and its subsidiaries are typical value-
added retailers; Logistic distributors are proficient in logistics management, and their products are highly
standardized, and their sales policies concentrate on the increase in inventory turnover. Synnex
Technology International Corporation and Unitech Computer Co., Ltd., belongs to domestic logistic
retailers.
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(C) Technology and R&D Overview

1. During the recent year and as of the print date of this annual report, investment amount of
expenses of research and the development is as follows:

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Item/Year 2020 2021Q1
R&D expenses $16,582 (Note)

Note: As of the print date of the annual report, the 2021Q1 financial statements have not been reviewed
by CPAs yet, with no number of the quarterly report for reference.

2. During the recent year and as of the print date of this annual report, technologies and products
produced successfully.

The company has completed the cloud service charging system, which can automatically total
the customer's cloud service usage every month and generate corresponding notices to charge the
customer. In addition, the charging system can provide usage data for system in some manufacturers,
and also activate/deactivate/manage products of cloud services of customers, reducing the workload
of human resources and service activation. At present, the integration of Akamai, VMware, Google,
AWS, Microsoft and other distributing brands of cloud services has been completed.

(D) Long-Term and Short-Term Business Development Plan
1. Short-term business plans

(1) To continue to introduce new products with value-added synergies, increase the breadth and depth
of the distributing product line, improve integration of sales and services across product lines and
acquire distributing rights in Taiwan.

(2) To continue to increase the original channels, actively understand market trends of manufacturers,
and improve project services and technical guidance, increase capabilities of project integrated
sales and advisory sales, and become a platform of connections/projects communication.

(3) In addition to improving internal management and training of employees' professional skills,
service capabilities and human resources, we also continue to encourage employees to obtain
professional technical certifications and implement target management mechanisms.

(4) To utilize the advantages of existing distributing products to provide enterprise users with mobile
business application solutions and various resources of integration applications to iOS
development manufacturers.

(5) To continue to develop the next stage of Sysage platform of information software of cloud services:
to build the foundation for winning future business opportunities of cloud service, and incorporate
more product lines into the platform. It is expected to expand product lines, such as, Microsoft
Azure, Citrix, Cisco Webex, etc., in the near future.

2. Long-term business plans
(1) As arole of ICT Solution Provider, we continue to improve the quality of services to customers
and increase customer satisfaction, so as to consolidate the cooperative relationship with
downstream partners and system integrators and become their irreplaceable high-quality business
partners.

(2) Through the connection with existing partners, it shall make a closer integrated distribution
community; Through communication regarding with market information, technical knowledge,
and trends of enterprise users with one another, it shall establish cooperation model of professional
work distribution, group sales, as well as joint operation and sharing of business opportunities in
online services.

(3) As for continuous training of personnel for acquiring professional technical certification, such as,
Cisco, IBM, Oracle, SAP, etc., it shall improve the overall technical capabilities, provide customers
with overall technical support, and perfect after-sales services, and maintain competitiveness of
the company in the future, due to the irreplaceability of the value-added services.

(4) To continue to develop cloud platform’s application development and services and expand product
lines for cooperation and layout.

B. Markets and Sales Overview
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(A)Market analysis

1.

(1)

)

Areas of selling or providing products

Year 2020 2019
Selling Amount % Amount %
areas

North area 9,474,509 70.12 9,155,886 74.40
Domestic Hsinchu area 2,530,881 18.73 1,736,846 14.11
sale Central area 415,704 3.08 402,934 3.27
South area 909,991 6.73 742,821 6.04
Foreign sale 181,436 1.34 268,512 2.18
Total 13,512,521 100.00 12,306,999| 100.00

Market share

The company and its subsidiaries distribute and sell products, whether it is Cisco, IBM, Oracle,
Citrix, EMC, etc., all of which are global famous brands, and their occupation rate in our country's
network, computing, and data storage equipment products is higher. The consolidated operating
income of NT$ 13,512,521 thousand in 2020, occupies an important position in the field of
professional channel management of domestic information products.

According to the ranking by CommonWealth Magazine in 2019, Sysage ranked 6th in the sales
and service category of information equipment, and 135th in the 2000 service industries.

Situations and growth of the supply and demand of markets in the future

IThome's 2020 trend forecast: Al and Cloud continue to grow in popularity. As more key
technologies become mature, major manufacturers are promoting AutoML and K8s into cross-cloud
interoperability standards, Al chip phones are appearing gradually, and 5G launched in Taiwan,
financial data become public and new digital identity verification will be on the road. 2020 will be
a year of explosions of various technological innovations and applications. Indication of the relevant
trends and growth of the company goes as follows:

Private network of 5G shall be launched, and enterprises have new options for transformation of
long-distance network structure

5G provides 1Gbps high-speed network, with lowest latency, large-scale connection
characteristics, so that enterprises have a new option that can break the traditional cross-WAN
structure in the design of long-distance network structure. Domestic 5G bidding is undergoing. It is
expected that the certification will be public in January 2020. After the first release of 5G
commercial spectrum, various telecom operators will also start network construction. 5G
commercial services may be started between 2020 H2, so Taiwan will welcome the arrival of 5G.
Since 5G can accelerate information flow of production systems and manufacturing equipment, and
enable real-time analysis, compared with Taiwan affirming 5G private frequency and network policy,
Germany, Japan and other countries have already promoted competitiveness of enterprises,
promoted Industry 4.0, and led Innovative applications, early planning of 5G private network policy.
Japan plans to release 1,100 MHz, and Germany plans to release 100MHz from 3.7 to 3.8 GHz to
upgrade the German automotive industry. Therefore, private frequency and network of 5G shall have
space for future development.

Cloud native infrastructure becomes the mainstream, accelerating modernization transformation of
IT in enterprise

With maturity and commercialization of cloud-native technologies such as containers,
microservices, CI/CD, and DevOps, cloud native infrastructure has become a new mainstream of
information infrastructure in enterprises. Many companies in Taiwan have launched modernization
engineering of IT to acquire these new technologies.

The results of the survey on enterprise cloud in 2019 indicated a key factor to digital
transformation. Through these technologies, 21.6% of Taiwanese enterprises intend to adopt
microservice structure in order to adopt cloud, and 18.7% of them intends to use the container
technology. Among highly cloud enterprises, 45.7% will adopt cloud CI/CD in 2020, and 28.6% will
adopt more containers.
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Containers, microservices, and DevOps technologies all points to a common goal-cloud native
structure. NCF Cloud Native Computing Foundation estimates that the venture capital invested in
these products exceeds US$4.76 billion, but creation of the overall market size has reached an
astonishing scale of US$7.98 trillion, reflecting the market size of cloud-native structure and
technology has already formed a huge and mature technology market, rather than an emerging
market. From the classification, it points out that development of cloud native technology is
gradually moving towards a high degree of specialization of work distribution, from database,
streaming and messaging platform, application definition and construction, continuous integrated
development, scheduling and arrangement, coordination and service exploration , RPC, service
proxy, APl gateway, service grid, information security and legal compliance, key management,
monitoring, logging, tracking, chaos engineering, serverless, etc., as well as technologies of the core
platform, including the open source in K8s version , K8s hosting services, K8s installation software,
Paas service, etc.

60% of Taiwanese companies are undergoing digital transformation, and nearly 10% of them
have already received benefits of digital transformation. It is expected that enterprises will have
strong demand for cloud this year, and the scale of investment in Cloud will grow by 36%, from
average budget of NT$ 4.95 million last year to NT$ 6.73 million. Compared with annual growth
rate of about 5-10% of budget of IT, requirements of Cloud in enterprises multiply growth of It.

(3) More new types of digital identity recognition will be released, and the entering barrier will be lower
for smart type of personal digital services, so identity recognition will become a service applied
across industries in the future.

In the future, digital identity recognition is no longer the unique asset of a specific industry and
shall be adopted to verify the identity of other industries, through a reliable identity recognition
mechanism. Whether digital identity recognition or a digital identity card integrated with certificates
of natural person, the level for identity verification shall be lowered, and some services that require
higher identity security in the past, such as financial, insurance, medical and telecommunications
services, etc., will be in the era of the digital economy in the future, with a flexible and simple
method of online identity verification, which help users avoid trouble as applying in person through
over-the-counter service. As enterprises launch services, they also need to consider new digital
identity.

Operating purposes & niche of competition

The company and its subsidiaries are striving to become "The ICT Solution Provider”, aiming to
provide a comprehensive solution for integration and construction of ICT in enterprises, focusing on
early system planning, mid-term integration and construction, post-consulting services(three-stage
goals) to meet requirements of corporate customers for immediate and convenient one-time purchases,
and then assist enterprises to move toward goals of globalization, quality optimization, and service
efficiency, for improving industrial competitiveness.

"Success comes from the most powerful combination!" The company and its subsidiaries form
four cornerstones of business development with the best combination of "brand, technology,
distribution, and service", including software and hardware products of global famous brands,
excellent technology passed by the certification of manufacturers, extensive marketing channels, and
enthusiastic, sincere attitude for our sales and services with profound experience. We allow enterprise
customers to improve the operating efficiency of information equipment with a reasonable budget,
and improve IT functions, laying a solid foundation for the future development of the enterprise, and
facing more industrial products of aggressive competition.: Software and hardware products
distributed by the company and its subsidiaries are all global famous brands. In order to increase depth
and breadth of the product line, the company and its subsidiaries, except for continuing to expand the
existing brand market, and expand distributing rights of new products, we provide enterprises with a
wider and excellent integration construction equipment of network and system, and then increase
revenues and growth of profits.

»  Technology: The company and its subsidiaries have an excellent technical support team of
network and system, which constantly researches the integration efficiency of various brand
products, and adopt the most professional technology to enhance the added-value of products.
The support team works closely with technicians of manufacturers, and has a variety of
professional certifications of manufacturers, for providing enterprise customers with accurate
diagnosis and consultancy of IT problem.

»  Channels: The company and its subsidiaries have been widely recognized by customers, due
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to a variety of solutions. There are more than 1,000 system integrators and partners around all
counties, with extremely high market coverage, a closer and stable relationship with groups
of major customers, and an excellent channel expansion and market development capabilities.

Service: The company and its subsidiaries have lower employee turnover, high stability, a
great enthusiasm and dedication, and many years of professional experience. From pre-sale
product consultancy, planning and quotation, to after-sale installation and warranty, we
provide customers with the most immediate and secure information and services at times.

5. Factors of advantages and disadvantages, and countermeasures of the development for prospect
(1) Factors of advantages

A

A range of distributing product is complete: The product lines represent global manufacturers
including Cisco, Citrix, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat, SAP and VMware, etc., and providing a
complete product line to meet requirements of customers.

At present, the type of customers includes educational institutions, government authorities,
manufacturing, telecommunications, Internet service, distribution, medical, financial and
securities industries, etc. The range of customers is broad, and our business is stable, so it can
avoid the risk of excessive concentration on business.

The information security-related software market and continuous growth of requirements of
big data software and hardware, and cloud products indicates that information security, cloud
computing and big data related issues shall be one of the most concerned topics in information
environment of enterprises.

To combine business advisors with information technology to assist customers with software
and hardware issues related to the database and technical consulting services with knowledge
of products, and provide professional planning, consultancy, construction, maintenance,
outsourcing engineers, and other professional services, etc., in cooperation with various
application systems.

(2) Factors of disadvantages

A

An aggressive competition with the same industry, due to the decrease in prices, which triggers
the decrease in profits
Countermeasures -

Except for becoming a professional ICT Solution Provider for brand channels and value-
added services, the company and its subsidiaries have increased and expanded integrated and
comprehensive products on the original basis to maintain a complete product line and provide
downstream customers with one-time purchase to fulfill their requirements, and researching
the integration efficiency of products among various brands, in order to provide customers with
complete solutions and increase the added-value of products. With high added-value and
reliable products, advanced network integration technology, and perfect after-sales
maintenance services to improve value-added services for avoiding price competition.

Being in the Industry of distributor
Countermeasures:

In addition to having many employees with professional and technical certificates, the
company and its subsidiaries also hold intensive internal and external education and training
to provide customers with overall technical support and after-sales services. With the
irreplaceability of value-added services, we can maintain a good relationship with customers,
and increase opportunities for extension of distributor agreements. At the same time, we
commit to expanding marketing channels and increasing the market share of products for
assuring continuation of distributor agreements.

On the other hand, the company and its subsidiaries are also searching for new distributing
rights of other brand products. With expansion of product lines, it not only increases a variety
type of products for one-time purchase services by customers, but also reduces dependence on
single-brand products, in order to reduce operational risks.

Information products with short life cycles and high inventory risks
Countermeasures:

Except for strengthening the control of progress of projects, the company and its
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subsidiaries implement inventory monitoring, review the safe level of inventory at times in
response to market demand, and establish a good relationship with manufacturers, receive
immediate information of the product, and monitor situations during the change in inventory,
for preventing from a huge loss triggered by decline and obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

(B) Important applications and manufacturing processes of main products

1. The important applications of main products

Product line Major product Main purpose
IE and Router 1. For connection with local area network (Local Area Network;
software and Remote access device LAN) and wide area network (Wide Area Network; WAN) or
hardware of Switch hardware configuration accessed by remote workstation and
communication Firewall providing hardware equipment to increase network transmission
equipment Safety-control equipment speed and improve network security management.

Network security

encryption 2. Internet security, encryption, control, and detection of software
Network management and hardware, for privacy and security of Internet transmission.
software
Internet playing system |3. To establish a management platform and provide remote network
Network phone system management functions.
Unified Communication
System (UC) 4. To provide a network playing system, which can be played on local
Bandwidth acceleration networks and wide area networks.
equipment
Wired and wireless 5. To replace traditional switches with Internet phone system (IP-
phones PBX) and use network IP technology to achieve integration
software with communication functions.
Tools integration |Database software I. To provide management of internal files and huge storage data,
application Database management and enable information to be conducted systematically through
software and software filtering and analysis, etc.
services Database analysis
software 2. We develop packages application software, which provides an

Software development
environment (tools)
Development application
software according to
requirements of
customers and market.

operating platform for customers to collect, analyze, and use data,
in order to improve the efficiency of information management of]
users.

Workstation and
server hosts

Desktop workstation
Server hosts

Storage equipment
Blade Server

To provide equipment for enhancement of computing, files and
data storage, server hosts of Internet application and office
automation, etc.

. The blade server of green energy technology is used as the

computing platform to save energy and space.

2. Manufacturing processes of main products:
The company and its subsidiaries act as a distributor for network software and hardware products,
and provide consulting services for products, with no manufacturing procedures.

(C)Supply status of main materials
The company and its subsidiaries are the information service industry of computer-related products.

The main purchase items include software and hardware of Internet and communication equipment, tools
integration application software and services, workstation, and server hosts, etc. The main manufacturers
are Cisco, Citrix, Dell, EMC, IBM, Oracle, Red Hat, SAP and VMware, etc., with a stable cooperative
relationship.
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(D) Major Suppliers & clients

1. Major Suppliers in the Last Two Calendar Years:

Units: NT$ 1,000

2019 2020 2021(As of March 31)(Note)
Item
C A ‘ As % of | Relationship C A ‘ As % of Net| Relationship C A ‘ As % of Net | Relationship
ompany mount Injet Revenue with Issuer ompany moun Revenue with Issuer ompany moun Revenue with Issuer
1 NA - - NA NA - - NA - - - -
Other 12,306,999 100.00 NA Other 13,512,521 100.00 NA - - - -
Net Revenue 12,306,999 100.00 Net Revenue 13,512,521 100.00 Net Revenue - B
2.Major Clients in the Last Two Calendar Years:
Units: NT$ 1,000
2019 2020 2021(As of March 31)(Note)
Item C A ‘ As % of Net | Relationship C A ‘ As % of Net| Relationship C A ‘ As % of Net | Relationship
ompany moun Procurement| with Issuer ompany moun Procurement| with Issuer ompany MOUNt | procurement | with Issuer
Manufacturer A 2,312,399 20.84 NA Manufacturer B 2,301,173 19.41 NA - - -
2 [Manufacturer B 2,125,811 19.16 NA Manufacturer A 2,111,889 17.81 NA - - -
Manufacturer C 1,527,357 13.77 NA Manufacturer C 1,807,278 15.25 NA - - -
Other 5,129,124 46.23 Other 5,634,341 47.53 Other - -
Net Procurement| 11,094,691 100.00 Net Procurement 11,854,681 100.00 Net Procurement - -

Reasons for the increase or decrease of procurement: As the company maintains a good and long-term cooperative relationship with major manufacturers.
Therefore, in the past two years, the company's main manufacturers have no major changes, except for the increase or decrease in the purchase amount, due to
new distributing products and cooperation with the market supply and demand.

Note: As of the date of publication of the annual report, the 2021 Q1 financial statements have not been reviewed by CPAs.




(E)Supply Status of Main Materials

The company acts as the industry of information services, so it doesn’t have any production table.

(F) Shipments and Sales in the Last Two Years

The company acts as the industry of information services, and the distributing products are various and the

quantity units are different. Therefore, calculation of the sales values is based on the main products, categories are

as follows:
Units: NT$ 1,000; Set
Year 2020 2019
Output Local Export Local Export
Quantity Amount  |Quantity| Amount | Quantity Amount | Quantity | Amount
Major products
Computational
201,609 6,294,693 - - 184,279 5,005,163 189 50,927
products
Network
668,756 3,580,606 301 25,818 558,751 3,778,250 521 21,995
products
Tools products
26,375 2,896,136 745|  155,350| 3,925,266 2,837,292 1,110{ 195,251
Technical
services, and 8,628 559,650 - 268 1,059 417,782 - 339
other products
Total
905,368 13,331,085 1,046| 181,436/ 4,669,355 12,038,487 1,351 268,512
C. Employee Information:
Year 2019/12/31 2020/12/31 As of March 31, 2021
Salesman 174 265 240
Technical 192 206 243
Total number of — -
Administration 116 100 153
employees
Research 19 14 26
Total 501 585 662
Average age 35.96 36.47 36.29
Average duration of service (years) 4.84 4.44 4.98
Director of Philosophy 0.80 0.85 0.76
Educational Master's Degree 9.58 8.21 11.63
distribution ratio [Bachelor's Degree 87.42 88.38 76.28
(%) Senior high school 22 2.39 8.46
Senior high school below — 0.17 2.87
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D. Environmental Protection Expenditures:

The company’s business focuses on software and hardware equipment of communication and network
(distributing Cisco and other products, etc.), workstations and servers (distributing IBM, Dell, EMC and other
products, etc.), and tools integration application software (distributing Oracle and other products, etc.) to integrate
sales plans and provide relevant consultancy and services of education and trainings, research and development of
information application software, services and sales business, will not induce pollution and damage the ecological
environment, as the recent year and as of the publication date of the annual report, no loss and disposition incurred

by environmental pollution.

E. Labor-Management Relations:
(A) List of employee benefits, in-service training, internal training, retirement system, and implementation status, as
well as employer-employee agreements, and protection measures for employee entitlements
1. Employee welfare and implementation
The company established an employee welfare committee in accordance with the Employee Welfare
Regulations, and regularly allocates welfare funds to handle welfare matters. Employee welfare matters
include labor, health retirement and group insurance, birthday gift, Dragon Boat / Mid-Autumn Festival /
Spring Festival gift, wedding and funeral of employees and their family members support, maternity subsidy,
employee injury and illness support, emergency support, emergency condolences, employee leisure activities
(such as, club support, etc.), tourist activities, year-end parties and lottery, etc.
2. Education & Trainings
The company has established education and training regulations to provide employees with domestic and
foreign professional skills and management skills and other education and training, etc. Employee education
and trainings include new personnel trainings, general education courses, management ability trainings of
officers, education and training of safety and health, and diversified learning development. Each employee
can improve professional abilities through diversified development methods, such as, on-the-job training, job
counseling, job transfer, lectures, etc., inside the company; Outside the company, employees are able to
participate in short-term training courses of professional training institutions. In addition, we encourage
employees to obtain professional certifications to enhance their professional capabilities. In 2020, the
company's expenses of education and training amounted to NT$ 2,850 thousand.
3. Retirement Policy and execution
In order to take care of retirement life of employees, and promote good labor relations, the company has
adopted a definite allocation system in accordance with the Labor Pension Regulations. The monthly
retirement funds are allocated to the labor insurance account established by the Labor Insurance Bureau; For
voluntary payment for pensioners, the employee monthly salary shall be deducted from the employee monthly
salary to the individual pension account of the Labor Insurance Bureau, according to the voluntary withholding
rate.
(1) If the company’s employees who have one of the following circumstances may request retirement:
A. Employees who have worked for more than 15 years and are at least 55 years old.
B. Employees who have worked for more than 25 years.
C. Employees who have worked for more than ten years and have reached the age of 60.
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(2) If the company's employees have one of the following conditions, the company may force them to retire:

A. Employees who are over 65 years old.

B. Loss of mind or physical disability is incapable of being a qualified worker.

For the age specified in the first paragraph of the preceding paragraph, the company may report to the
central competent authority for adjustment of workers who engage in dangerous and physical works, but
the very employees shall be no less than 55 years old.

(3) Pension standard:

A. For seniority based on the Labor Standards Law, the pension payment standard has been approved by
the Ministry of Labor (Approval Letter No. 09935829400) to settle all employees' seniority in May,
2010, so there is no need to calculate the retirement pension.

B. For employees who are subject to the pension requirements of the Labor Pension Regulations, the
company shall pay 6% from their wages to the individual retirement account of employees monthly.

C. The employee's right to claim the pension will be extinguished by prescription if not exercised within 5

years, beginning at the following month from the effective of retirement:

4. Employer-employee agreements

6.

The company always concentrates on various benefits, provides an excellent working environment, and
emphasizes two-way communication with employees. The labor relations is very harmonious, and the

employees have a remarkable degree of unity, without triggering any labor disputes.

Employee Code of Conduct of Ethics

The company sets up working rules and employee codes of ethics and conduct to standardize employee

service codes.
Protective measures for the working environment and personal safety of employees

(1) All entrances and exits are equipped with access control of card swiping devices.

(2) To sign a contract with the security company to maintain safety of office and warehouse.

(3) The company participates in 2 fire drills of the building management committee every year.

(4) In response to changes in laws and regulations, we edit work rules of safety and health at times.

(5) The business spot shall be completely banned smoking in accordance with regulations, health seminars be
held, and the office environment be cleaned and disinfected regularly.

(6) To hold regular health examination for on-the-job staff every 2 years.

(7) To insure labor, health and group insurance.

(8) To hold lectures on stress (emotion) management, communication skills, creative thoughts, etc., for
enhancing employee psychological adjustment, knowledge and capabilities.

(9) To establish a website for employees, with download areas of discussion areas, work forms and various
manuals, new Labor Standards Act, who can provide opinions, release emotions, and acquire interactive

learning channels.
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(B)List of losses due to labor disputes in the most recent year up to the date this report is published, disclosure of the
estimated amount, and countermeasures against current and possible future occurrences. If the amount cannot be

reasonably estimated, the reason shall be provided: None.

F. Material Contracts:

Contract
Type Party Contract Term Content Restrictions
CISCO 2020/03/28-2022/03/27
Oracle 2018/10/14-2021/07/15
HDS 2020/04/20-2021/04/19
DELL 2020/11/17-2021/11/16
EMC 2020/04/01-2021/03/31 Distributing
Distribution NA
Citrix 2019/07/01-2021/06/30 commodities
IBM-Taiwan branch 2019/12/02-2021/12/01
IBM-Singapore 2020/06/08-2022/06/07
VMware 2020/01/12-2021/01/11
SAP 2020/12/31-2021/12/31
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VI. Financial Highlights

A. Condensed Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the most recent five years

(A) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Financial data for the most recent five years (Note 1)
Year As of March 31, 2021
It
em 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 (Note 2)
Current Assets 4,705,736 4,804,738 5,482,085 6,436,838 6,541,097
Property, plant and 359,374 836,642 865,896 995,883 954,503
equipment
Intangible assets 1,380 - - - -
Other Assets 299,957 181,085 214,226 440,558 651,815
Total Assets 5366,447| 5,822,465  6,562,207|  7.873,279| 8,147,415
Before - 3313,046| 3,334742|  3,807,330] 2,784,583 3,146,894
Current distribution
Liabilities | After 3,457,506| 3,486,425  3,640479| 2219511 (Note 3)
distribution
Non-current liabilities 9,006 248,440 238,430 481,639 454,175
Before 3,322,052 3,583,182  4,045760[  3.260222) 3,601,069
Total distribution
Ligbilities | After 3.466,512|  3.734.865| 3.878,909| 2,701,150 (Note 3)
distribution
Equity attributable to 1,940,686| 2,064,955  2,260,003|  4,286.896| 4,271,301
shareholders of Sysage.
Common Stock 963,064|  1,011,217|  1,112,339]  1,883,573| 1,883,573
Capital Surplus 445,146 444,122 422237 1,520,908 1,333,011
Before 882,415 1,054,717
Retained distribution 332,476 609,616 725427
Eamnings |After 388,016 457,933 558,576 317,343 (Note 3)
distribution
Other equity - - - - -
Treasury stock - - - - -
Non-controlling interests 103,709 174,328 256,444 320,161 275,045
Before 2044395 2239283 2516447 4.607,057) 4,546,346
. distribution
Total Equity ARt
et 1,899,935  2,087,600| 2,349,596 4,041,985 (Note 3)
distribution

Note 1: The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2: The 2021 Q1 financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.

Note 3: It’s not applicable, since the regular shareholders' meeting has not been held yet.
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(B)Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Year Financial data for the most recent five years (Note 1) As of March 31, 2021
Item
( Note 2)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Revenue 9,118,403|  10,422,423| 11,186,815 12,306,999 13,512,521
Gross profit 797,218 942204|  1,094414|  1250,889| 1,621,382
Profit from operations 276,226 358,572 427,254 467,289 649,970
Non-operating income and 23,187 2,148 17,838 50,175 80,180
eXpenscs
Profit before income tax 299,413 360,720 445,092 517,464 730,150
Profit from continuing 249,694 299423 347,113 414,831 576,099
operations for the year
Losses from discontinued _ ) _ ) B
operations
Profit for the year 249,694 299,423 347,113 414,831 576,099
Other comprehensive _ ) _ } .
income (loss), net of taxes
Total comprehensive 249,694 299,423 347,113 414,831 576,099
income (loss) for the year
Profit attributable to 238,796 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017
shareholders of Sysage.
Profit attributable to non- 10,898 16,033 29,058 35,375 27,082
controlling interests
Total comprehensive 238,796 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017
income (loss) attributable
to shareholders of Sysage.
Total comprehensive 10,898 16,033 29,058 35,375 27,082
income (loss) attributable
to non-controlling interests
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 236 255 260 258 291

Note 1 : The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.

Note 2 : the 2021 QI financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.

Note 3 : As for surplus transferred to common stock or capital surplus transferred to common stock, it shall be adjusted by the

ratio of the increased capital.
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(C)Condensed Parent Company Only Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Year
Item Financial data for the most recent five years (Note 1)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Current Assets 4,047,572 4,116,848 4,611,168 5,408,293 5,448,467
Property, plant and equipment 333,229 772,245 802,726 834,631 815,380
Intangible assets - - - - -
Other Assets (Note 2) 473,680 393,161 452,423 772,177 905,043
Total Assets 4,854,481 5,282,254 5,866,317 7,015,101 7,168,890
Current Setore on 2,906,593 2,970,593 3,369,618 2,290,415 2,499,722
Liabilities After

Hieibution 3,051,053 3,122,276 3,202,767 1,725,343 (Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 7,202 246,706 236,696 437,790 397,867

o Eies‘;ﬁrbeution 2,913,795 3,217,299 3,606,314 2,728,205 2,897,589

Total Liabilities After

Hietbution 3,058,255 3,368,982 3,439,463 2,163,133 (Note 2)
Common Stock 963,064 1,011,217 1,112,339 1,883,573 1,883,573
Capital Surplus 445,146 444,122 422237 1,520,908 1,333,011
Retained Eies‘;ﬁrbeution 532,476 609,616 725,427 882,415 1,054,717
Earnings éfsttﬂbution 388,016 457,933 558,576 317,343 (Note 2)
Other equity - - - - -
Treasury stock - - - - -

Before
ol Eaui Jiatribution 1,940,686 2,064,955 2,260,003 4,286,896 4,271,301

otal Equity
g\ifstt?irbution 1,796,226 1,909,272 2,093,152 3,721,824 (Note 2)

Note 1 : The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.
Note 2: It’s not applicable, since the regular shareholders' meeting has not been held yet.
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(D)Condensed Parent Company Only Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ 1,000

I Year Financial data for the most recent five years (Note 1)
cm

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Revenue 7,563,186 8,013,555 9,113,792 10,286,217 11,071,939
Gross profit ' 643,965 768,563 887,510 998,461 1,318,446
Profit from operations 212,141 278,614 341,796 375,560 579,381
Non-operating income and 67,057 55,834 59,718 88,790 106,636
CXpenses ]
Profit before income tax 279,198 334,448 401,514 464,350 686,017
Profit from continuing 238,796 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017
operations for the year
Losses from discontinued - R _ R R
operations
Profit for the year 238,796 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
(loss), net of taxes
Total comprehensive income 238,796 283,390 318,055 379,456 549,017
(loss) for the year
Profit attributable to 2.36 2.55 2.60 2.58 291
shareholders of Sysage.

Note 1 : The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.
Note 2 : As for surplus transferred to common stock or capital surplus transferred to common stock, it shall be adjusted
by the ratio of the increased capital.

(E) The names of CPA and their opinions for the most recent five years.

The Opinion and content
Year accounting CPA
firm
2016 KPMG Chen Chien Chen/Yung-Hua Huang Unqualified opinion
2017 KPMG Yung-Hua Huang/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2018 KPMG Mei-Ping Wu/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2019 KPMG Mei-Ping Wu/ Wan-Wan Lin Unqualified opinion
2020 KPMG Hung-Wen Fu/Mei-Ping Wu Unqualified opinion with other matters
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B. Financial analysis for the most recent five years

(A) International Financial Reporting Standards - Consolidated Financial Analysis

Year ] ] ) As of March 31,
Financial analysis for the most recent five years 2021
( Note 3)
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Item analyzed
Ratio of debts to assets (%) 62 62 62 41 44
Financial
structure  Ratio of long-term capital
to property, g)lant and 571 297 318 511 524
equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 142 144 144 231 208
Solvency |Quick ratio (%) 55 68 71 123 115
Interest coverage ratio 18 26 30 37 75
Receivables turnover rate
(times) 6.37 6.19 5.88 5.94 6.60
Average collection days for
receivables 37 59 62 61 33
Inventory turnover rate
(times) 3.21 3.51 3.84 3.86 4.03
Operating |Payable turnover rate
gbility g (times) 9.73 8.56 7.01 7.34 7.91
Average days for sales 114 104 95 95 91
Property, plant and
equipment turnover rate 24.82 17.42 13.14 13.22 13.85
(times)
Total asset turnover rate
(times) 1.78 1.86 1.80 1.70 1.68
Return on assets (%) 5 6 6 6 7
Return on equity (%) 13 14 15 12 13
Ratio of profit from ]
... |operations to paid-in capital 31 36 40 27 39
Profitability (%)
Ratio of profit before
income tax to paid-in capital 3 3 3 3 4
(%)
Profit margin (%) 2.48 2.80 2.60 2.58 291
Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 1) 23 1 (Note 1) 19
Cash flow |[Cash flow ratio (%) 5 52 61 47 49
Gsh flow adequacy ratio (Note 1) 24| (Notel)]  (Notel) 1
g??h flow reinvestment ratio 2,59 224 2922 233 2.06
Leveraging F—
Operating leverage 1.06 1.04 1.03 1.03 1.01

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two annual periods:
(1) The increase in interest coverage ratio and Ratio of profit before income tax to paid-in capital: Due to the increase in revenues in 2020,
and the increase in pre-tax net profit.
(2) Increase in profit margin: Due to the increase in revenues and gross profit margin in 2020.
(3) Increase in cash flow ratio and cash flow reinvestment ratio: Due to the increase in revenues in 2020, so net cash inflow from operating
activities increased.

Note 1 : As a negative amount or zero.

Note 2 : The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.
Note 3 : the 2021 QI financial data has not been attested or reviewed by CPAs.
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(B)International Financial Reporting Standards— Parent Company Only Financial Analysis

Year

Financial analysis for the most recent five years

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Item analyzed
Ratio of debts to assets (%) 60 61 61 39 40
Financial
structure |Ratio of long-term capital to
property, plant and 585 299 311 566 573
equipment (%)
Current ratio (%) 139 139 137 236 218
Solvency |Quick ratio (%) 49 60 63 117 108
Interest coverage ratio 18 25 29 36 88
Receivables turnover rate
(times) 6.56 6.25 5.75 5.87 6.04
Aver.age collection days for 56 53 63 62 60
receivables
Inventory turnover rate 2.89 3.16 3.42 3.60 3.59
(times)
Operating (Payable tumover rate 1027 831 6.50 7.16 7.22
ability ~ |(times)
Average days for sales 126 116 107 101 102
Property, plant and
equipment turnover rate 22.19 15.58 11.57 12.56 13.42
(times)
Total asset turnover rate 1.63 1.69 1.63 1.59 1.56
(times)
Return on assets (%) 5 6 6 6 8
Return on equity (%) 13 14 15 12 13
Ratio of profit from
operations to paid-in capital 29 33 36 25 36
Profitability |(%)
Ratio of profit before
income tax to paid-in capital 3 3 3 4 5
(%)
Profit margin (%) 2.48 2.80 2.60 2.58 291
Earnings per share (NT$) (Note 1) 26 4 (Note 1) 26
Cash flow |Cash flow ratio (%) 25 52 66 55 60
gj‘;h flow adequacy ratio (Note 1) 26 (Note 1) (Note 1) 2
0
gzsh flow reinvestment ratio 274 236 297 234 200
Leveraging
Operating leverage 1.08 1.05 1.04 1.03 1.01

Reasons for changes in financial ratios in the most recent two annual periods:
(1) The increase in interest coverage ratio and Ratio of profit before income tax to paid-in capital: Due to the increase in revenues

in 2020, and the increase in pre-tax net profit.

(2) Increase in profit margin: Due to the increase in revenues and gross profit margin in 2020.
(3) Increase in cash flow ratio and cash flow reinvestment ratio: Due to the increase in revenues in 2020, so net cash inflow from
operating activities increased.

Note 1 : As a negative amount or zero.

Note 2 : The accompanying financial data has been audited and attested by CPAs.
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Below are calculations:
1. Financial structure

(1) Ratio of debts to asset = Total liabilities / Total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment = (Total equity + Non-current liabilities) / Net
property, plant and equipment

2. Solvency

(1) Current ratio = Current assets / Current liabilities.

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventories - Prepaid expenses) / Current liabilities

(3) Interest coverage ratio = Net income before income tax and interest expense / Interest expenses over this period.

3. Operating ability

(1) Receivable (including accounts receivable and notes receivable due to business operations) turnover rate = Net
sales / Balance of average accounts receivable for various periods (including accounts receivable and notes
receivable due to business operations).

(2) Average collection days for receivables = 365/Receivables turnover rate.

(3) Inventory turnover rate = Cost of goods sold/ Average inventory.

(4) Payable (including accounts payable and notes payable due to business operations) turnover rate = Cost of goods
sold / Balance of average accounts payables of various periods (including accounts payable and notes payable due
to business operations).

(5) Average days for sales = 365 / Inventory turnover rate.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover rate = Net sale/Average net property, plant and equipment.

(7) Total asset turnover rate = Net sales / Average total assets

4. Profitability

(1) Return on assets = [Net income after taxes + interest expense x (1 - tax rate)] / Average total assets

(2) Return on equity = Net income after taxes / Average total equity

(3) Profit margin = Net income after taxes / Net sales

(4) Earnings per share = (Net income attributable to shareholders of the parent company - preferred stock dividend) /
Weighted

average number of shares outstanding

5. Cash flow

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flow of operating activities / Current liabilities.

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent five years / (Capital
expenditures + inventory increase + cash dividend) for the most recent five years.

(3) Cash flow reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividends) / (Gross value of
property, plant, and equipment + Long-term investments + Other non-current assets + working capital).

6. Leveraging
(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - variable operating cost and expenses) / Operating profit.
(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit / (Operating profit - interest expenses).
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C. The Audit Committee's Review Report

S _sice RIAM IR

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The undersigned has duly audited the Operating Report, Financial
Statements and Schedule of Earnings Distribution prepared by the Board of
Directors for the year of 2020. Hung-Wen Fu and Mei-Ping Wu Certified Public
Accountants of KPMG have audited the Financial Statements. The 2020
Financial Statements, Business Report, Independent and Auditors Report have
been reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee
of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 1, as the Chair of the Audit Committee,
hereby submit this report according to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange

Act, and Article 219 and 228 of the Company Act.

2021 Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting

Chair of the Audit Committee: Wen-Tsung Wang

February 25, 2021
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D. Consolidated Financial Statements with Independent Auditors' Report of the most recent year: please refer to

Appendix 1.

E. Parent Company only Financial Statements with Independent Auditors' Report for the most recent year: Please refer

to Appendix 2.

F. Any financial difficulties experienced by the Company and its affiliate businesses during the most recent year up to
the publication date of this report need to be stated as well as the impact on the Company's financial position need

to be outlined: None.

VII. Review and Analysis of Financial Position and Financial Performance, and Risk Management

A. Financial position Analysis

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Year Difference

Ltem 2020 2019 Amount %

Current assets 6,541,097 6,436,838 104,259 2%
Inv§stment accounted for using 954,503 995,883 41,380 49
equity method

Property, plant and equipment - - - -
Investment property 651,815 440,558 211,257 48%
Intangible assets 8,147,415 7,873,279 274,136 3%
Other non-current assets 3,146,894 2,784,583 362,311 13%
Total assets 454,175 481,639 -27,464 -6%
Current liabilities 3,601,069 3,266,222 334,847 10%|
Long-term debt 4,271,301 4,286,896 -15,595 0%
Other non-current liabilities 1,883,573 1,883,573 - 0%
Total liabilities 1,333,011 1,520,908 -187,897 -12%
Common stock 1,054,717 882,415 172,302 20%
Capital surplus - - - -
Retained earnings - - - -
Other equity 275,045 320,161 -45,116 -14%
]Sﬁ;l;tg};attnbutable to shareholders of]| 4,546,346 4,607,057 60,711 1%

Reasons for changes in proportion in the most recent two years:
Increase in other assets: Due to the increase in investment in associates and subsidiaries in 2020, resulting in an increase
in investments for using the equity method.

Increase in retained earnings: Due to the increase in revenues and increased profits in 2020, resulting in an increase in
retained earnings.

B.Financial performance analysis

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Year 2020 2019 Increase (decrease) Change in proportion
Item amount
Net revenue 13,512,521 12,306,999 1,205,522 10%
Cost of sales 1,621,382 1,250,889 370,493 30%
Gross profit 649,970 467,289 182,681 39%
Operating expenses 80,180 50,175 30,005 60%
Profit from operations 730,150 517,464 212,686 41%
Non-operating income and expenses 576,099 414,831 161,268 39%
Profit before income tax for the year - - - -
Income tax expense 576,099 414,831 161,268 39%
Profit for the year - - - -
Net revenue 576,099 414,831 161,268 39%
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C. Cash flow
(A) Change in consolidated cash flow in 2020

Unit: NT$1,000

Cash balance at the beginning
of 2020

2020 Net cash flow

Cash balance at the end of 2020

695,302

35,437

730,739

(B) Analysis of changes in consolidated cash flow for recent 2 years

Unit: NT$1,000

2020 2019 Increase Changg in
(decrease) proportion
amount
Net cash flows provided by 605,078 (449,908) 1,054,986 234%
operating activities
Net cash flows used in (274,063) (171,568) (102,495) -60%
mvesting activities
Net cash flows used in (295,578) 744,597 (1,040,175) ~140%
financing activities

1. Net cash inflow from operating activities was NT$ 605,078 thousand: Due to the increase in revenue in

2020 and the disposal of funds.

2. The net cash outflow from investment activities was NT$ 274,063 thousand: Due to the increase in
investment in associates and subsidiaries in 2020, and the increase in investments for using the equity

method.

3. The net cash outflow from financing activities was NT$ 295,578 thousand: Due to the 2020 distribution

of cash dividends.

(C) Liquidity improvement plan: Not applicable.

(D) Analysis of cash liquidity in the coming year: Not applicable.

D. Material expenditures of the most recent year and impact on the Company's finances and operations

(A) Material expenditures of the most recent year: None.

(B) Impact on the Company's finances and operations: None.
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E. Investment policy for the most recent fiscal year, the main reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby, the
improvement plan, and investment plans for the coming year

(1) The 2020 investment plan exceeds 5% of the paid-in capital: The relevant information of the company's
reinvestment company has been disclosed in the financial report (please refer to Appendix 1 of this annual
report for details), with no investment plan exceeds 5% of the paid-in capital in the 2020. The company’s
reinvestment policy is in line with the company’s business development strategy and operational
requirements. Net investment profits accounted for using the equity method in 2020 consolidated financial
report was NT$9,042,000.

(2) The investment plan is expected to exceed 5% of the paid-in capital in 2021: The company obtained the full
equity of COREX (PTY) LTD. and issued common stock for cash on December 18, 2020, through a resolution
of the Board of Directors. To Sign a share purchase contract in January, 2021, and purchase all shares held
by COREX (PTY) LTD., the contract price is NT$ 140,000 thousand, and then the common stock is issued
by NT$ 111,872 thousand. The registration procedures for related transactions have been completed, and the
contract price has also been paid.

F. Matters for Analysis and Assessment for Risks

(A)The impact of interest rates, exchange rates changes and inflation on the Company's profits and losses and future
countermeasures

1. The impact of recent changes in interest rates on the profit and loss of the company and its subsidiaries and
future countermeasures
The financial conditions of the company and its subsidiaries are sound. Therefore, the interest expense
recognized in this year is NT$ 9,867 thousand, due to short-term financing, which only accounts for 0.1% of
operating income. Therefore, interest rate fluctuations have little impact on the company.

2. The impact of the recent exchange rate changes on the profit and loss of the company and its subsidiaries and
future countermeasures
The exchange profit recognized by the company and its subsidiaries in this year is NT$ 31,664 thousand,
accounting for 0.2% of the current net operating income. In order to avoid a decrease in the value of foreign
currency assets and fluctuations in future cash flows due to changes in exchange rates, the company and its
subsidiaries use the derivatives to avoid risks of the exchange rate, so the change in the exchange rate have
limited impact on the company.

(B) The main reasons for the high-risk, high-leveraged investment, capital loan, guarantee/endorsement and derivative
commodity trading, and the profits or losses and future countermeasures.

1. In the most recent year, the company has not engaged in transactions related to high-risk, highly leveraged
investments, lending loans to others, except for forward foreign exchange contracts. The transactions of the
derivatives focus on avoiding of foreign currency-denominated liabilities due to fluctuations in the
exchange rate. For a rise in risks, the company and its subsidiaries use the derivatives for hedging purposes
that are highly negatively correlated with changes in the fair value. In addition, the company and its
subsidiaries are engaged in the sale of foreign exchange options held for trading, and continuously and
regularly assess the fair value risk arising from the change in the exchange rate, and take appropriate
countermeasures at times.

2. In the most recent year, the company's endorsements/guarantees, regarding with the amount of
endorsements/ guarantees undertaken by COREX (PTY) LTD., is made due to needs arising from business
dealings, with no unusual events. COREX (PTY) LTD. has been a 100% subsidiary of the company, in
January, 2021.

3. In order to control the aforementioned transaction risks, the company has established internal management
measures and operating procedures in accordance with relevant laws and regulations, including " Handling
Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets", " Handling Procedures for Lending Funds to Other
Parties or Endorsements & Guarantees ", and conducting regular audit and public announcement.

(C) R&D expenses for future R&D projects and investment amount.
Please reference “The development plan of new products and services” of “V.Operations Overview”.

(D) The impact of important policies and legal regulations changes at domestic and abroad on the Company's financial
status and the countermeasures

There are no impact of important policies and legal regulations changes at domestic and abroad on the Company's
financial status and the countermeasures.

~ 03 ~



(E) The impact of technological and industrial changes on the Company's financial business and the countermeasures

The company and its subsidiaries are value-added distributors of professional network systems. Changes in
technology can create business opportunities for the network information industry to seek enhancement,
innovation, and security. It can provide opportunities for the company to sell new products and indicate the
impact of changes in technology. There is no negative impact on the company's financial business.

(F) The impact of corporate image changes on corporate crisis management and the countermeasures.

The company and its subsidiaries have always abided by laws and regulations and fulfill social
responsibilities, and there are no negative reports.

(G) Expected benefits and possible risks of M&A and the countermeasures: Not applicable.
(H) Expected benefits and possible risks of the expansion of factory and the countermeasures
The company does not have a factory, so it is not applicable.
() Risk of procurement and sales concentration, and countermeasures
1. Procurement

The company makes an effort to acquire distributing rights of other well-known brands in order to reduce
the operational risk of procurement concentration.

2. Sales

The company and its subsidiaries accounted for 26.92% of the top ten customers in the most recent year,
and there is no risk of sales concentration.

(J) The impact and risk of a substantial transfer or replacement of equities by Directors, Supervisors or Shareholders
holding more than 10% of the total shares: Not applicable.

(K) Impact of changes in management on the Company and risks: Not applicable.

(L) Disclosure of disputed contents, amounts of the subject matters, commencement dates of the proceedings,
parties involved in the proceedings of litigation or non-litigation events, major closed or ongoing lawsuits and
litigation or non-litigation events involving the Company and its Directors, Supervisors, General Managers,
Substantive Persons—in Charge, major shareholders holding more than 10% of total shares and
affiliates/subsidiaries with results of which may have a material impact on the shareholders' equity or the price
of the securities, and the actual results as of the printing date of this Annual Report.

1. The company and its subsidiaries: NA.

2. The company and its Directors, Supervisors, General Managers, Substantive Persons—in Charge, major
shareholders holding more than 10% of total shares and affiliates/subsidiaries: NA.

(M) Other major risks and the countermeasures

G. Other material matters: None.
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VIII. Special Notes

A. Summary of affiliated companies in recent years :

(A)Consolidated business report of affiliated companies :

1. Affiliated companies chart

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

30.33% 79.36% 100.00% 94.00%
DAWNING GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NEO TREND TECH EPIC CLOUD
TECHNOLOGY INC NETWORK CO., LTD. CORPORATION Integration CO.,
' (Note 2) (Note 3) LTD.(Note 1)

Note 1: EPIC CLOUD Integration CO., LTD. Has changed its name to EPIC CLOUD CO., LTD. on January 26, 2021.
Note 2: Holding 14.10% of shares of DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC.

Note 3: Holds 0.07% and 1.00% of shares of GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO., LTD.

Integration CO., LTD..

and EPIC CLOUD

Unit: NT$ 1,000

Company Date of Place of Capital Main business or
Incorporation Registration Stock production
(NT$) activities
GLOBAL 11 F, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Software and
INTELLIGENCE Neihu Dist., Taipei City hardware trading
NETWORK CO., 2000/03/21 132,000 | such as, network and
LTD. communication
system, etc.
DAWNING 8 F, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Software and
TECHNOLOGY 2000/09/13 Neihu Dist., Taipei City 240,000 hardware trading
INC. such as, network
system, etc.
EPIC CLOUD 10F, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Data software and
Integration CO., 2018/07/03 Neihu Dist., Taipei City 10,000 | data processing
LTD. services
NEO TREND 3F, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd., Telecom Engineering
TECH 2020/06/10 Neihu Dist., Taipei City 50,000 | Industry
CORPORATION

2. Presumed to be the same shareholder for those with relations of control and affiliation: None.
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3. Directors, supervisors, and presidents of affiliates

Shareholding

Shares

Name of business Title Name or representative Investment
(Ryestment | Holding %)
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE | Chairman& | SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 10,475,000 79.36%
NETWORK CO., LTD. President Representative : Shu-Erh Kuo
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 10,475,000 79.36%
Representative : TK Young, Hsiu-Ching
Cheng
Supervisor Wen-Chuan Tseng - -%
DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC. Chairman & | SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 7,279,866 30.33%
President Representative : TK Young
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 7,279,866 30.33%
Representative : Heng-Mei, Tai,
Hui-Fen Liao
Director SYSLINK CORPORATION 11,200,000 46.67%
Representative :
Cheng-Tsuan Lin,
Kuan-Lin Liu
Supervisor Wen-Chuan Tseng - -%
EPIC CLOUD Integration CO., LTD. | Chairman SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 940,000 94.00%
Representative : TK Young
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 940,000 94.00%
Representative : Shu-Erh Kuo, Chieh-
Cheng Shih
Supervisor NEO TREND TECH CORPORATION 10,000 1.00%
Representative : Mavis Lin
NEO TREND TECH Chairman& | SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5,000,000 100.00%
CORPORATION President Representative : TK Young
Director SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5,000,000 100.00%
Shu-Fen, Huang,
Chih-Yung, Li
Supervisor SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 5,000,000 100.00%
Representative : Mavis Lin

4. Overview of affiliates’ operations:

Unit: NT$1,000

ot | o
Name of business Capital | Total assets 'T<')t.a ] Net assets| Revenue Profit from loss for the (dollar;
liabilities operations | year (After after
income tax)| .
income tax)
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE 155 000|  580,537| 349350 231,187 1272204 27310 26,822 2.03
NETWORK CO., LTD.
%ACWNING TECHNOLOGY | 540000 790,603| 381,839 408764 1231478 39448 30,829 1.28
EF(;'CLCTLDOUD Integration 10,000 90270 2725 6545] 12581  (2356)| (2437 (2.44)
NEO TREND TECH
CORPORATION 50,000  58436| 22473 35963 Sl (13.935)) (14,037 2.81)
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(B) Consolidated financial statements of affiliated companies : Please refer to Appendix 1.
(C) Report of affiliated companies : Not applicable.
B. Private Placement Securities in the Most Recent Years : None.
C. Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in the Most Recent Years: None.
D. Other supplementary information : None.

IX. Any of the situations listed in Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which
might materially affect shareholders' equity or the price of the company's securities, has occurred during the most

recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: None.
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Appendix 1
Consolidated Financial Statements
with Independent Auditors’ Report for the most recent years

Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY
CO., LTD. as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 under the Criteria Governing Preparation of
Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
the International Financial Reporting Standard Ne. 10, *Consolidated Financial Statements™ endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. In addition, the information required to be
disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements,
Consequently, SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD, and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of
combined financial statements.

Hereby declare

Company name: SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Chairman: Michael CH Lee
Date: February 25, 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of directors of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.;
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. and its
subsidiaries (“the Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Matter paragraph), the
accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated financial performance
and its conselidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs"). International Accounting Standards (“IASs™). interpretation as well as related guidance endorsed by
the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certilied Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (*the
Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, Based on our audits
and the reports of other auditors. we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matter

We did not audit the linancial statements of certain investments accounted for using the equity method. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors. Therefore. our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for those investees, is based solely on the reports of other auditors. The recognized investments
accounted for using the equity method constituted 1.61% of the total consolidated assets as of December 31,
2020, and the recognized share of profit or loss of associates accounted for using equity methed constituted
1.47% of consolidated profit before tax for the vear ended December 31, 2020,

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion with other
matter paragraph and unmodified opinion, respectively.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters, We have determined the matiers deseribed below to be the kev
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of inventories

Please refer to Note 4(h) for the accounting policy for inventories, Note 5 for significant accounting
assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty, and Note 6(e) for the details and
related expenses for inventories,

Description of key audit marter:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Since information products, such as
network and servers. are constantly evolving, and prices impact end-consumers™ decisions on expenditure. sales
of related products may fluctuate, resulting in a risk that the cost of inventories may exceed their net realizable
values. Consequently. the estimate of the net realized value of inventories, dependent on management’ s
subjective judgment, was considered to be a matter of high concern in our audit of the financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit;

Our audit procedures included understanding the Group’s policy for recognizing inventory allowances so as to
assess whether inventory valuation was conducted pursuant to the policy; comparing the reasonableness of
management's recognition of the allowance for inventory loss for prior years with the approach and assumption
about the recognition of the allowance for inventory loss for the current period, in order to evaluate the
appropriateness of the latter; looking into and sampling the sales prices adopted by management and reviewing
sales transactions after the balance sheet date, with a view to assessing whether the estimate of the net realizable
value of inventories and the loss allowance was reasonable.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and 1FRSs,
IASs. IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Group's ahility
to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whale are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

I. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit pracedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

L2

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Croup’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

i

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors” report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

n

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial stalements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit, We remain solely responsible
for our audit epinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,
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KPMG

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
Key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors™ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors™ report are HUNG-WEN, FU and
MEI-PIN. WU.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 25, 2021

Motes o Readers

The accompanyving vonsslidated fnancinl staremens are imended only © present the consolidated statement of finuncial position.
financial performance and its cash Nows inaceordance with the accounting prineiples and practices generally nccepted In the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards. procedures and practices to audit such consolidated Mnancial stements are
those generally accepted and uppliecd in the Republic of Ching,

The auditors” report and the accompanying consolidated [Tnancial stalements are the English treanslation of the Chinese version prepared

and usedl in the Republic of China. IF there is any conflict between. or any differonee in the imerpratation of the English and Chinese
language auditors” report and conselidated financial statements. the Chinese version shall prevail,
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(English Tramnslation of Consolidated Financinl Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Orperating revenue (Maotes 6lu) and 7)
Crperating costs (Nates 6fe) aml 7)
Giross profit from operations
Dyperating expenses { Notes i) (g). (v) and 12):
Selhing expenses
Genernl and admimstrative expenses
Research and development expense

Expected credit loss {Reversul of expected credil loss)

Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses:
Other meome [Neotes 6{o) and {w)h)
Interest meome
Other 2ains and losses (Notes B(1F () end (w))
Finance costs {Motes Sob ond (wh

Share ol profin (loss ) of associates seeounted For usimg equity method {Note Gzl

Mrofit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses { Note 6(r))
Profit
Chther comprehensive income, netof tx
Total comprehensive income
Profit attributable fo:

Onwners ol paren

Mon-controlling imterests

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Orvners of parent

Man-contralling interests

Esrnings per share (Mote 6{1))
Basic earnings per share (NT dollars)
Dilufed exrnings per share (NT dollars)

See aecompany ing noles to consolidated linancial stalements,
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For the vears ended December 31,

2020 19
_Amount % Amoumt %
3 1351252 100 12306999 |00

1LE00, 139 88 11056010 90
L621382 _ 12 _ 1250889 |0
713939 % §39.633 4
237113 x 213363 2
| & 582 - 11,784 -

s - - (32000 -

42 _ 7 IEIL00 &

G497 5 467289 4

|3.285 - 10,956 -
4 - 1,187

a7 156 - 524208 -

(3.867) (14399 -

9043 . e

o180 - 078 _ -

730,150 3 517464 4

134051 | 02633 |

76098 4 414831 _ 3
5 376079 ___-1- 414831 3
5 Jan7 4 It 456 3

3708 - 33aNE o~
§ 576009 4 414831 3
g 349017 4 79436 3

7o 35375 -
576099 4 414,831 3

2.9] .58
249 255
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{English Translation of Consolidated Fingneial Staterments Originally Issued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Cash Mows from opersting aetivities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Adjostments to reconcile profit (loss):
Deprecistion expense
Aundriesal expense
Crins on disposal of property. plant andequipment
Expected credit loss {Reversal ol expected credit logs)
MNet profit from financiul ussety or labilities at far value throvgh profit or loss
Share of profit (less) ol associates accounted [or using equity method
Interest expense
[mzrest income
Dividend income
Others
Total adjustments (o reconeile profit (loss)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Total net changes in operafing assefs:
Motes and aceounts receivanle (including related parties)
Current finsncal assels at fur value through profit or loss
Inventories
Cither cument assees
Other non-current issets
Total wet changes in operating ussels
Total net changes in operating linhilities:
Ceontract Habality
Motes and accounts payable
Other payables
Advance receipls
Oiher current labilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total net changes in operating liabilities
Tostal net ehanges in operading assets and labilities
Total adjustments
Cush inflows [ purfiows) gencmted [fom operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interast panl
Income taxes paid
Net eash inflows (outflows) from operating activities
Cash Mows Mrem investing activities:
Acquisiion of non-current financenl assels al fuir value throwgh prefic or loss
Retum of capital on capital redection on sequisition of financial asscts ot fair value through profit or loss
Procecds from disposal of non-current linencial assets al fair value through profitor loss
Apquisition of invesiments accounted for using equity method
Cash decrease in dsposal groups classified as held for sale
Cash outows for disposal of subsicdiaries
Aequismtion of property. plant and aquipment
Proceeds from dispesal of property. plant, and eguipment
Decrense in refundabie deposits
Apguisition of right-ol-use nssets
Net cash outllows from investing activities
Cash Nows from Anoncing aetivities:
Incrensse | decrease) in shor-lerm borowings
Proceeds mom long-term borroswings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Incrense | decrease) m guarunice deposits
Payment of lease liabilities
Capital increase by cash
Change in non-contrlling interests
Cash dividends paid
Dividends to non-contrelling imerests from subswdhiaries
Netensh inflows (outflows) from financing aetivities
Inerease in cash and eash eguivalents )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash eguivadents, end of perid

See aceompany ing notes 1o consolidated Mnoneial statements,
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For the years ended December 31,

2020 2009
5 T34, 1500 31T A6l
af 868 S8 dds
1.057 3,764
(333) (4.133)
I 1726 13,200
(29.81%) (A1)
(9,042 (31
9RaT 14,3599
() (1,187
(100857 {74629
: 1,329
41567 Al341
(250,786 (136, 857)
396 45457 (472,000 )
(106.510) (276364
11.827 45 309
{1.123% (a1}
304013 {837.522
(431.881) [2.933
i23 838 (102.337)
42.015 24422
(24,376) 23,787
683 [1.378)
(1341 (T.205)
(107 833) (49.973)
(57448 LRRT J48)
(15,881} (833.937)
714.265 (318493
(alwh] 153
([NRRRS 7462
(L. 779y {14571
(10,162 (125,498
B3 0T (449908
{40,732y {30,790
N 1,258
£27 (B
(1 3%l -
(107 704) B
= (2.585)
{3284y [155.838)
FL] 12,308
I 3,880
{16918y -
(2 74.063) (171.568)
33002 (983,000)
- G40
{16,484} (151041
{3,150y 4.511
{31 .916) (23.3861)
- 1813000
(41734 53201
(363072} (166831
{30000 ) (34.543)
(295.578) T4 597
354347 123,14
H93. 3002 372,181
s 7,730 95,302




(English Translation of Censolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (“the Company™) was incorporated on April 16. 1998 under the
approval of Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of China (*R.0.C."). The address of its registered
office is 10F. No. 516, Sec. I, Neihu Rd.. Taipei City 114064, Taiwan (R.O.C.). The consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2020 consist of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
“the Group™), and the interests of associates. The Group s major business activities include distributing
and reselling ICT software and hardware from Cisco and other companies, workstations and servers from
IBM, Dell. EMC, and other companies. tools integration applications from Oracle and other companies.
The Group provides integrated planning for the products it sells, including related consulting, education
services, as well as research and development of information applications.

{2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of directors on
February 25, 2021,

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs™) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C, (“FSC™) which have already been adopted.

The Group has initially adopted the following amendments to IFRSs from January 1, 2020, which
did not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements:

e Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business™
e Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”
o Amendments to IAS 1 and 1AS & “Definition of Material”

o Amendments to IFRS 16 ~COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions™

{b) Impact of IFRSs endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

The Group assesses that the adoption of the amendments to IFRSs effective from January 1, 2021
would not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

o Amendments to IFRS 4 “Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 97

e Amendments to IFRS 9, [AS39. [FRS7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—
Phase 27

(Continued)
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(c)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of IFRSs issued by [ASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Group. have been issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™). but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Standards or Effective date per
Interpretations Content of amendment IASB
Amendments to [AS 1 The amendments aim to promote consistency  January 1. 2023
“Classification of Liabilitiesas in applying the requirements by helping
Current or Non-current” companies determine  whether, in  the

statement of balance sheet, debt and other
liabilities with an uneertain settlement date
should be classified as current (due or
potentially due to be settled within one vear)
or non-current.

The amendments include clarifying the
classification requirements for debt a
company might settle by converting it into
equity.

The Group is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance. The
results thereof will be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

The Group expects no material impact of new and amended standards not yet endorsed by the FSC
on the consolidated financial statements.

® Amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an lnvestor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”™

& [FRS 17" Insurance Contracts™ and amendments to IFRS 17 = Insurance Contracts™

e Amendments to IAS 16 "Property. Plant and Equipment— Proceeds before Intended Use™

® Amendments to |AS 37 “Onerous Contracts —Cost of Fulfilling a Contract™

& Annual Improvements to [FRS Standards 2018-2020

& Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework™

(Comtinued)
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(4)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant aceounting policies:

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out as below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies have been
applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

(a)

(b)

{c)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (“the Regulations™) and the
International Financial Reporting Standards. International Accounting Standards, [IFRIC
Interpretations. and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisary
Commission, R.O.C. ("the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC™).

Basis of preparation
(i) Basis of measurement

Except for financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(ii} Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each individual consolidated entity is determined based on the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollars, the Company’ s functional currency, All
financial information presented in New Taiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest
thousand.

Basis of consolidation
{i}  Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated lnancial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement with the entity. and has the ability to affect
those returns through its control over the entity.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases, Intra-group
balances and transactions. and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling
interests even if doing 50 causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries” financial statements are adjusted to align the accounting policies with those of
the Group.

{(Continued)
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(ii)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Changes in the Group”s ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions. The difference between the adjustment of the
non-controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized
directly in equity and atiributed to the shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of its subsidiaries. the assets (including coodwill) and liabilities
and any non-controlling interests of the former subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost will be derecognized and any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at its fair value at the date when control is lost will be remeasured in the consolidated financial
statement. The difference of disposal gain or loss is between the aggregate of (i) the fair value
of the consideration received and any investment retained in the former subsidiary at its fair
value at the date when control is lost and (ii) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities and
any non-controlling interests of the former subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost. When the Group loses control of its subsidiary, it accounts for all amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary on the same
basis as would be required if it had directly disposed of the related assets or liahilities.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

The subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

Sharcholding
Name of December December
investor Name of Subsidiary Principal activity 31,2020 31,2019 Remark
The GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE Trading in hardware T9.43 %  62.12 % (Note 1)
Company NETWORK CO., LTD. and software for
and NEO (GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE network and
TREND NETWORK) communications
TECH systems
the Company SYSAGE Universal Corporation Trading in hardware - % - % (Note2)
{SYSAGE Samoa) and software for
network systems
The EFIC CLOUD INFORMATION Data software and 5,00 % T0.00 %0 (Note 3)
Company INTEGRATION CORP(EPIC  data processing
and NEO CLOUD INFORMATION services
TREND INTEGRATION)
TECH
the Company NEO TREND TECH Telecommunications 100,00 % = % (Noted)
CORPORATION(NEO TREND engineering
TECH;
" KINGTEL Manufacturers of = % e 9% (Mote 5)
CORPORATIONIKINGTEL)  wired and wireless
communications
eguipment
The DAWNING TECHNOLOGY  Trading in hardware 4443 % 4443 % (Note 6)
Company NETWORK CO. and software for
and LTDADAWNING network systems
GLOBAL  TECHNOLOGY)
INTELLIGE
NCE NETW
ORK
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Note 1:For the changes in the Group’s percentage of ownership in GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE
NETWORK. please refer to note 6(h).

Note 2:SYSAGE Samoa has completed its liquidation on August 26, 2019,

Note 3:For the changes in the Group™ s percentage of ownership in EPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION. please refer to note 6(h).

Note 4:NEQ TREND TECH was established by the Company in June 2020,

Note 5:The Company lost its control over KINGTEL on April 26, 2019 without a
proportionate subscription for KINGTEL' s newly issued shares for capital increase,
Please refer to note 6(i) for details.

Note 6:For the changes in the Group® s percentage of ownership in DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY. please refer to note 6(f).

Foreign currency transactions and operations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each subsequent
reporting period (" the reporting date™ ) monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional
currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non- -monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies measured based on historical cost are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction,

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria. and all other assets are classified
as nen-current.

()  [texpects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cyele:
(1) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iti) It is expected to be realized within lwelve months after the reporting date: or

(iv) The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

(i) Itis expected 1o be settled in its normal operating cycle;

(i) Itis held primarily for the purpose of rading;
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(iii) ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or

(iv) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect iis
classification,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits, Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes should be recognized as cash equivalents.

Financial assets

Accounts receivables issued are initially recognized when they are originated, All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the
coniractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value. plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVYTPL"). transaction costs that are directly anributable
lo its acquisition or issue. An account receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized derecognized on a trade
date and settle date basis,

On initial recognition. a financial asset is ¢lassified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL,
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

1} Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if' it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash tlows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payvments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at fair value.
plus/minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method. and adjusted
for any loss allowance. Interest income, foreign excha.ny: gains and [osses, and
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (* FVOCI™ ) deseribed as above are measured at FVTPL.
including derivative financial assets, On initial recognition. the Group may irrevocably
demmatc a financial asset. which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized
cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. These assets are subsequently measured
at fair value,

Net gains and losses. including any dividend and interest income, are recognized in profit
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL™) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents. amortized costs,
notes and accounts receivable. other receivables, guarantee deposits and other financial
assets).

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL;

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12-month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credir risk.
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When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL. the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
once it is past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 120 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group
in full.

ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of financial
assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). ECL are discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset,

Al each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred, Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 120 days past due:

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty. having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

vit is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
regrganization: or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof,
The Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off’ based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Group
expects no significant recovery from the amount written olf. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement
of balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

I

4)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the
amount of consideration received less the direct issuing cost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is held for trading, it is a derivative, or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses. including any interest expense, are recognized in
profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss,

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation has been
discharged, cancelled or expired. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability when
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different. in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

The difference between the earrying amount ol a financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognized in profit or loss,
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3)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.

(iii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives held for hedging risk exposure to currency and interest rate are initially measured
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition. derivatives are measured at fair value. and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The costs of inventories
weighted-average principle include expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less, the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

MNon-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities that are expected to be
recovered primarily through a sale transaction, rather than through continuing use, are reclassified as
non-current assets held for sale, Immediately before the initial classification of the non-current assets
or disposal groups as held for sale. the carrying amount of the assets (or all the assets and liabilities
in the group) is measured in accordance with the Group’s applicable accounting policies. Thereafter.
the assets or disposal groups are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell,

Once classified as held for sale. intangible assets and property. plant and equipment, are no longer
amortized or depreciated and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity accounted,

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence. but not control, over their
nancial and operating policies,

Investments in associates are accounied for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition. less, any accumulated impairment losses.
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The consolidated financial reports include the Group® s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of those associates, after adjustments to align their accounting policies with
those of the Group rom the date on which significant influence commences until the date on which
significant influence ceases, When an associate’s equity ¢hanges due to reasons other than profitand
loss or comprehensive income. which did not result in changes of the Group® s shareholding
percentage in the associate, the Group recognizes equity changes attributable to the Group by its
shareholding percentage as capital surplus.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and an associate are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated party’s interests in the associate.

When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equal or exceed its interest in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses, After the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized. only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investment property

Investment property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both. but not for sale in the ordinary course of business use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition. and subsequently at cost. less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful lives, and
residual value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant, and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental
income, aver the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment
(i)  Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing cost, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or |oss.

(i) Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable thar the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.
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(iii) Depreciation

(iv)

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of assets less their residual values and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property. plant, and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years of significant items of
property, plant, and equipment are as follows:

1) Buildings and improvements: 30 vears
2)  Office and other equipment: 2 to 7 years

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each annual reporting
date and adjustad if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment property

The property is reclassified 1o investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.

(m) Leases

(1)

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract. the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. the Group assesses whether:

1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset-this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity
of a physically distinct asset, If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified: and

2)  the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset throughout the period of use: and

3)  the customer has the right to direct the use of the asser throughout the period of use only
if either:

e the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or
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e the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset would be used
were predetermined and:

—  the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use,
without the supplier having the right to change those operating instructions:
or

—  the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used throughout the period of use.

When the lease is established or the contract is reassessed whether consists of lease, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to individual lease components on the basis of
respective individual prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is a
lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lzase
and non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a leasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition. the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability,

"The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally. the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee: and

—  payments or penalties for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to
be exercised.
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The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. 11 is remeasured when:

—  there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate: or

—  there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expecied to be payable under
a residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the assessment of whether it will have the option to exercise a
purchase; or

—  there is a change in its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or termination
option; or

—  there is any lease modification in lease subject, scope of the lease, or other terms.

When the lease liability is remeasured. other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset. or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 10 zero,

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease. the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize the difference in profit or
loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease,

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the balance sheets.

The Group has elected not to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases of office equipment of low value assets, The Group recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a leasor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease. the Group makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlving asset. If this is the case. then the leas=
is a finance lease; il not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economie life of the asset.

When the Group is an inlermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above,
then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components. the Group applies IFRS1S to
allocate the consideration in the contract,
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For operating lease. the Group recognizes rental income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Impairment of non-derivative financial assers

At each reporting date. the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash infllows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assats or
cash generating units (“CGU™).

The recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss, They are
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis,

For non-financial assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized in prior vears.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured basing on the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group recognizes revenue when il
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer. The
following is a description of the Group’s major revenues:

(iy Sale of goods

Revenue is recognized when the control over a product has been transferred to the customer.
When the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’ s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location. the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer. and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Group has a right 1o an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Advance sales receipts
are recognized as contract liabilities and are transferred to revenue upon the delivery of goods.

(ii) Services

The Group provides installation and maintenance services on hardware and software. The
recognition of the revenue generated was based on the progress towards completing the
transaction recognized by the two parties as of the reporting date.
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Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As
a consequence. the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
emplayee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated separately for
each the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that managers have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit thar relates to past service cost or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
deflined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Grou p has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income taxes

Income taxes include both current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations. or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income. all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax pavables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the vear and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred income taxes are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred taxes are not recognized for the following exceptions:

(i)  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(1i) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future: and

(ifi) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve. using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following eriteria are met:

(i) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes |evied by the same
taxation authority on either;

1) the same taxable entity; or

2)  different taxable entities which intend either 1o settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expecled to be
settled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will he
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves,

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Group’s basie and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity
holders. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to the otdinary
sharcholder of the Company divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding.
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
sharcholders of the Company divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares putstanding
after adjustment for the effects of all dilwtive potential ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary
shares comprise accrued employee remuneration.

(Continued)
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{s) Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating 1o transactions with
other components of the Group). The operating results of all operating segments are regularly
reviewed by The Group's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources 1o he
allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Each operating segment has its financial
information.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and the [FRSs
endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that affeet the
application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income. and EXPENSEs.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. Any changes in accounting
estimates are recognized during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting estimates are
recognized in the following period.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most si gnificant effects
on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

(a) Judgment of whether the Group has substantive control investees.

(i) As the single largest sharcholder, the Group holds 38.01% of the voting shares of UNISAGE
DIGITAL CO., LTD. (*UNISAGE"). Although the remaining 61.99% shares of UNISAGE
are not concentrated in specific shareholders, the Group still carinot obtain neither more than
half of the Board of directors of UNISAGE, nor more than half of the voting rights in the
shareholders” meeting. Therefore, it is determined that the Group would have a significant
impact on LINISAGE.,

(i)  As the single largest shareholder. the Group holds 23.58% of the voting shares of GRANDSYS
INC. (* GRANDSYS™ ). Although the remaining 76.42% shares of GRANDSYS are not
concentrated in specific shareholders, the Group still cannot obtain neither more than half the
Board of directors of GRANDSYS, nor more than half of the voting rights in the shareholders’
meeting. Therefore, it is determined that the Group would have a significant impact on
GRANDSYS.

(iii) As the single largest shareholder, the Group holds 34.09% of the voting shares of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL CORP. (* ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL" ).
Although the remaining 63.91% shares of ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL are not
concentrated within specific sharcholders, the Group still cannot obtain neither more than half
of the Board of directors of ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL nor more than half of the
voting rights in the shareholders’ meeting. Therefore, it is determined that the Group would
have a significant impact on ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL.

(Continued)
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(iv) As the single largest shareholder, the Group holds 19.53% of the voting shares of DYNASAFE
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. (* DYNASAFE™ ). Although the remaining 80.47% shares of
DYNASAFE are concentrated within specific shareholders. the Group still cannot obtain more
than half of the Board of directors of DYNASAFE. Therefore. it is determined that the Group
would not have a significant impact on DYNASAFE,

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear is as
follows:

Valuation of inventories

As inventories are measured at the lower af cost or net realizable value. the Group estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for normal loss, obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the
reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net realizable
value of the inventory is mainly based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific time horizon.
Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net realizable value of
inventories. Please refer to note 6(e) for the valuation of inventories.

Valuation process

The Group’s accounting policies and disclosure include measuring financial and nen financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, The Group's financial instrument valuation group conducts
independent verification on fair value by using data sources that are independent. reliable. and
representative of exercise prices. This financial instrument valuation also periodically adjusts valuation
models, conducts back testing, renews input data for valuation models, and makes all other necessary fair
value adjustments to assure the rationality of fair value.

The Group strives to use market observable inputs when measuring assets and liabilities. Different levels
of the fair value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are as follows:

® Level |:quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or liabilities.

® Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

® Level 3:input for the asset or liability is not based on the observable market information,

For any transfer within the fair value hierarchy, the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporting
date.

(Continued)
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() Explanation of significant accounts:

(&)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Cash on hand and petty cash i 262 276
Check and demand deposits 730477 693,026
% 730.739 695,302

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Details are set out in the following table:
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Current:
Open-end funds 5 177,017 373,013
MNon-current:

Foreign and domestic unlisted stocks 157,694 104,362
Total 8 334,711 677,375
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:
Current:
Pre-purchased foreign currency forward contracts § (655) (5,199)

The Group acquired 18.89% of equity interest in GRANDSYS. an unlisted company, at a price
totaling $74.,580 thousand in May 2020, resulting in significant impact on GRANDSYS, which

was transferred to investment under the equity method. Please see Note 6(g) for information on
the equity interest transaction,

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies for risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations, The following table sets out the
Group's derivatives recognized as held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities to which
hedging accounting was not applicable:

December 31, 2020
Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign currency USD22.818 2021.01.04~ 28.096 to 28.655
forward contracts Buy USD/Sell TWD thousand  2021.03.25

(Continued)
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December 31, 2019
Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign currency USDI19.387 2020.01.02~ 30.046 to 30.497
forward contracts Buy USD/Sell TWD thousand  2020.04.08

(iv) Note 6{w) details the net profit or loss on the valuation of financial assets and liabilities arising
from changes in fair value.

Notes and accounts receivable (including long-term and related parties)

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
MNotes receivable (including long-term) $ 187.429 421.234
Accounts receivable 180009 1,757.469
Accounts receivable due from related parties 10,769 9,226
Less: loss allowance (43,700 {48.800)
Total S 1,954,594 2,139,129
Current $ 1,930,433 2.134.727
Non-current 24.161 4,402
Total 8 1,954,594 2.139,129

(i) The Group did not discount or provide any of the notes and accounts receivable (including
long-term and related parties) as collateral. The aforementioned notes and accounts receivable.
whose maturity period were less than | vear, were not discounted, and their carrying amounts
were assumed to approximate their fair values,

(ii) MNon-current notes receivable mainly arose from installment sales.

(iii) The Group applies the simplified appraach to provide for its ECL, the use of lifetime ECL
provision for all notes and accounts receivables (including long-term and related parties). To
measure the ECL, notes and accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and customer’s ability to pay all the amounts due based on the terms of the
contract as well as incorporated forward-looking information, The analysis of expected credit
losses on notes and accounts receivable was as follows:

(Continued)
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Current §
1 to 30 days past due

31 to 60 days past due

61 to 90 days past due

9l o 120 days past due

More than 121 days past due

December 31, 2020 )
Loss allowance
Weighted- for lifetime
Gross carrying average loss  expected credit
amount rate losses
1.896.925 0.11% 2.047
14727 3.00%, 442
23,587 10.00% 2,359
19.337 20.00% 3,867
17.466 50.00% 8,733
26.252 100.00% 26.252
h] 1.998,294 43,700

December 31,

2019

Loss allowance

Current 3
| to 30 days past due

31 to 60 davs past due

61 to 90 days past due

91 to 120 days past due

More than 121 days past due

Weighted- for lifetime
Gross earrying average loss expected credit
amount rate losses
2,061,448 0.36% 1.509
47,144 3.0094 1.414
35.995 10.00% 3.599
936 20.00% 187
12,627 S0.00% 6.314
28777 100.00% 29777
h) 2,187.929 48.800

The movements in the loss allowance for notes and accounts receivable (including long-term

and related parties) were as follows;

Beginning balance

[mpairment losses recognized

Reversal of impairment Joss

Transferred to other receivables
Reclassified to disposal group held for sale

Ending balance

~ 128 ~

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
S 18.800 52.000
11,726 .
> (3.200)
(15.955) =
(871) .
s 43,700 48.800
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Other receivables

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Other receivables 5 17,743 9,978
Less: loss allowance (16.927) (9.349)
5 818 429

(1) As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there was no other receivable that was past due but not
impaired,

(ii) The movements in the loss allowance for other receivables were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Beginning balance 3 9.549 9,549
Write-offs of uncollectible amount for the period (8.577) -
Transferred from aceounts receivable 15.955 -
Ending balance b 16,927 9,549
Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Merchandise inventory b 2.908.464 2,990,814

During 2020 and 2019, losses on inventories written down to net realizable value and recognized as
cost of goods sold amounted to $64,100 thousand and $49,200 thousand, respectively.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale

On November 5. 2020, the Company. pursuant to a resolution of the Board, approved a change in the
shareholding in its subsidiary, DAWNING TECHNOLOGY. The Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in January 2021 and commenced the disposal process. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities of DAWNING TECHNOLOGY were recognized as non-current assets or disposal
aroups classified as held for sale. As of 31 December 2020, the amount of assets and liabilities

arising from non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale were $770.609 and
$358,207 thousand, respectively. The details are set out below:

(Continued)
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Non-current assets or disposal

December 31,

groups classified as held for sale 2020
Cash and cash equivalents & 107.704
MNotes and accounts receivable. net 423,595
Inventories 177,319
Prepayments |.546
Other current assets 5773
Property. plant and equipment 9315
Right-of-use assets 33.630
Deferred income tax assets 8.683
Other non-current assers 3.044
8 770609
Liabilities directly related to non-current assets or disposal groups December 31,
classified as held for sale 2020
Short-term horrowings § 43,022
Current financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 33
Contract liability 3.050
Notes and accounts payable 230,008
Other payables 51.564
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 22,609
Advance receipts 6,007
Other current liabilities 582
Other non-current liabilities 135
8 358,207

[n addition. no impairment loss was recognized after measuring at the lower of earrying amount and

fair value less costs to sale.
Investments aceounted for using equity method

Investments accounted for using the equity method were as follows:

December 31,

2020

December 31,
2019

Associates S

132,265

1,419
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The Group originally held 3.46% equity interest in GRANDSYS. which was accounted for
under non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. In May 2020, pursuant to

the resolution of the Board, the Group purchased 4.520 thousand shares (18.89% ownership)
from their former shareholders, resulting in a total percentage of ownership of 22.35% with
significant influence on GRANDSYS. Consequently, the investment. as a whole, was
transferred from non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to investments
accounted for using equity method. The transaction price totaling $74.580 thousand has been
fully paid up.

In September and October, 2020. the Group purchased 1,153 thousand shares of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL from their former sharcholders at a price totaling

$30.091 thousand, representing a percentage of ownership of 34.09% with significant impact
on ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL. The above transaction price has been fully paid up.

In November and December. 2020, the Group parchased 259 thousand shares of GRANDSYS

(1.08% ownership) and 36 thousand shares (0.13% ownership) at $4,138 thousand and $582
thousand, respectively. The pavments of the aforesaid transactions have been Tully paid up.

Aggregate financial information of associates that were not individually material was
summarized as follows. The financial information was included in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Attributable to the Group:
Prafit Y 0,042 3
Other comprehensive income . -
Total comprehensive income 8 9.042 3

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, none of the investments accounted for using the equity
methed was pledged as collateral.

(h) Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary

(i)

In November and December 2020, the Group acquired a portion of shareholdings in GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE NETWORK. increasing its percentage of ownership in GLOBAL

INTELLIGENCE NETWORK from 62.12% to 79.43% and increasing the capital surplus by
$1,104 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

{Continued)
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(i) In December 2020. the Group acquired a portion of shareholdings in EPIC CLOUD
INFORMATION INTEGRATION. increasing its percentage of ownership in EPIC CLOUD

INFORMATION INTEGRATION from 70.00% to 95.00%. and decreasing the capital surplus
by 3644 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

(iii) In September 2019. the Group acquired a portion of shareholdings in DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY, but without a subscription for newly issued shares, increasing its percentage

of ownership in DAWNING TECHNOLOGY from 41.83% to 44.43%, and decreasing the
capital surplus by $724 thousand as a result of the change in equity.

Loss of control of subsidiaries

The Group had held 98.49% of equity interest in KINGTEL, a subsidiary. However. as of April 26,
2019, the Group did not subscribe for KINGTEL s newly issued shares for capital inerease in
proportion to its shareholdings, losing its control and significant influence over KINGTEL. The
Group reclassified the carrying value of its equity holdings to non-current financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. and recognized $695 thousand as the resulting disposal gain measured at
Fair value.

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities of KINGTEL on April 26. 2019 were as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents % 2.585
Inventories 1.111
MNaotes and accounts receivable. net 1.0735
Prepayments &0
Other current assels 47
Property, plant and equipment 50
Notes and accounts payable (591)
Other payahles (1,633)
Advance receipts (619)
Other current liabilities (23)
5 2,060

(Continued)
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Property, plant and equipment

Information about costs and accumulated depreciation of property. plant and equipment was

presented below:

Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2020
Additions
Dizposal
Transferred to investment property

Transferred to non-current assets held
for sale

Transferred from inventories

Balance on December 31, 2020

Balance on January 1, 2019

Additions

Disposal

Transferred from inventories

Loss of subsidiaries

Balance on December 31. 2019
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance on January 1, 2020

Depreciation

Disposal

Transferred to investment property

Transferred to nonm-current assets held
for sale

Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1, 2019
Depreciation

Disposal

Reclassifications

Loss of subsidiaries

Balance on December 31, 2019

Office and
Buildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Total
g 399,659 379,906 192,119 L171.684
- - 3,284 3284
= = (11,267) (11.267)
(9.763) (3,976) - (13,739)
- - (13.574) (13,574
” - 11.541 [1.541
5 589,89 375930 182,103 1.147.929
b 501,137 354,147 185,720 1041004
104.544 27,733 23,561 155,838
(6,022) 11.974) (19.139) (27.135)
5 = 13,758 13,758
- - (11.781) (11.781)
-y 599,659 379.906 192.119 1171684
3 - 63,618 112,183 175,801
- 7475 25,924 33,399
- - (10,8063 { 10.806)
- (709) (709)
- (4,259) (4.259)
5 - 70,384 123,042 193,426
s - 56,42 118,666 175,108
- 7.482 24.009 31,491
- (306) (18,654) (18.960)
(107) (107}
- (11,731 {(11.731)
5 - 63.018 112,183 175,801
{(Continued)
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Office and
Buildings and other
Land improvements equipment Total
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2020 5 589.896 305.546 59,061 954.503
December 31, 2019 b 599.659 316,288 79936 995,883
January 1, 2019 5 501,137 297,705 67.054 865.896

(i) In Januaty 2019, the Group’s Board of directors passed a resolution to acquire real estates in

Kaochsiung and Neihu for office use at a price of $62.430 thousand and $70.000 thousand

*

respectively. Ownership of the aforementioned property has been transferred to the Group.

(ii}
for short-term and long-term borrowings, please refer to note 8.

Investment property

Information about investment property was presented below:

Buildings and

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 property, plant, and equipment were pledeed as collateral

Land improvements Total
Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2020 b - - =
Transferred from property, plant and
equipment 9.763 3.976 13.739
Balance on December 31, 2020 b 9,763 3,976 13.739
Accumulated depreciation;
Balance on January 1, 2020 % - - -
Depreciation - 60 60
Transferred from property. plant and
equipment - 709 709
Balance on December 31, 2020 5 - 769 769
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2020 s 0.763 3.207 12,970
Fair value;
January 1. 2020 8 215.542
As of December 31, 2020, none of the Group's investment propeity was pledged as collateral,
(Continued)
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Right-of-use assets

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of leases for which the G roup as a lessee
was presented below:

Buildings and

improvements
Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2020 ¥ 214,142
Additions 66.630
Reclassified to non-current assets held for sale (40,301
Decrease (6.520)
Balance on December 31, 2020 5 233,751
Balance on January 1, 2019 3 177.210
Additions 36.932
Balance on December 31, 2019 S 214,142
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on January 1. 2020 3 26,954
Depreciation 35.400
Decrease (6,520
Reclassified to non-current assets held for sale (6.871)
Balance on December 31, 2020 5 48,972
Balance on January 1. 2019 a3 -
Depreciation 26.554
Balance on December 31, 2019 b 26,954
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2020 5 184,779
December 31, 2019 5 187,188
January 1, 2019 5 177,210

(Continued)
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Short-term borrowings

(i) The details of the Group’s short-term borrowings were as follows:

Credit lpans

Secured loans

Range of interest rates at the end of period

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
$ 380,000 80,000
50.000 -
h 430,000 80,000

0.82 %~1.10% L30%~1.40%

(i)  For the collateral for bank loans. please refer to note 8,

Long-term borrowings

The details of the Group's long-term borrowings were as follows:

December 31, 2020
Range of
Currency interest rates  Maturity period Amount
Secured loans TWD 1L.10%~1.30% 2021.01-2039.03 % 310,497
Less: current portion (1680
Total S 293.675
Unused credit lines 5 -
December 31, 2019
Range of
Currency interest rates  Maturity period Amount
Secured loans TWD . 45%~1.55% 2020.01-2039.03 $ 327,181
Less; current portion (16.281)

Total
Unused credit lines

5 310,900

D

For the collateral for bank loans, please refer to note 8.
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Lease liahilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Current b 26.803 24,008
Mon-current 156.965 164.574
5 183.768 188,582

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows !

For the vears ended December 31
2020 2019
Interest on lease liabilities 5 2,012 1,824

Revenue from sublease of right-of-use asset b 2,057 3,102

The amounts recognized in the statements of cash flows of the Group were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest payments for lease liabilities in operating activities  § 2,012 1.824
Payments of lease liabilities in financing activities 31918 25,560
Total cash outflow for leases 5 33,928 27.384

Real estate leases

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group leases buildings and improvements for its office and
warehouse space. The leases typically run for 2 to 10 years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

For the Group’s leased right-of-use assets under operating leases, please refer to note 6ip).
Operating leases

The Group leases out its investment property and right-of-use assets. The Group has classified these
leases as operating leases. because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to notes 6(k) and (1).

(Continued)
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A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments 1o be received after
the reporting date was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Less than one year 3 1.204 343
| to 2 years 857 -
2103 years 857 -
3 to 4 years 857 -
4 1o 3 years 214 -
b3 3,989 343

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Defined benefit plans

The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account at Bank of
Taiwan and the annuity insurance account for life insurance. Under the Labor Standards Act,
each employee’s retirement payment is calculated based on years of service and the average
salary for the six months prior to retirement. Besides. the pension payment to appointed
managers is calculated pursuant to the manager's plan for appointed managers,

The Group reached an agreed settlement with its employees in 2019 and recognized the settled
pension benefil of $1.329 thousand as other gains and losses.

Defined contribution plans

The Group allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the Labor Pension personal
account of the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Laber
Pension Act. Under these defined contribution plans. the Group allocates a fixed amount to the
Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The Group® s pension costs under the defined contribution method amounted to $21.399

thousand and $16,353 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Payment to the Bureaw of Labor Insurance has been made.

(Continued)
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(r}) Income taxes
(i) Income tax expense
[ncome tax expenses are summarized as follows:

For the years ¢ended December 31

2020 2019
Current income tax expense b 165216 110,304
Deferred income tax expense (11.165) (7.671)
Income tax expense by 154,051 102,633

(i) The Group had ne income taxes recognized directly in equity and other comprehensive
income.

{(iii) Reconciliation of income tax expense and profit before tax was as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Profit before income tax b 730,150 517.464
Income tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 146.030 103,493
Undistributed earnings additional tax 191 3.628
Others 7.830 {4.488)
Income tax expense b 154,051 102,633

(iv) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

[} The Group had no unrecognized deferred income tax liabilities. and the unrecognized
deferred income tax assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Deductible temporary difference 5 1.000 3,052

{Continued)
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S8 ]
it

Changes in the amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2020 and 2019
were as follows:

Fair value gains

and others
Deferred income tax liabilities;
Balance on January [, 2020 3 1,220
Debit profit or loss 329
Reclassified to liabilities related to non-current
assets classified as held for sale (133)
Balance on December 31, 2020 5 1,914
Balance on January 1, 2019 % 092
Debit profit or loss 228
Balance on December 31, 2019 ) 1,220
Allowance
Inventary limit on
allowances  bad debts Others Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Balance on January |, 2020 5 (44224 (6.707) (5.773) (36.706)
Debit (credit) profit or loss (11.405) (1,358) 829 (11.994)
Reclassified to non-current
assets held for sale 8.280 = 394 8.083
Balance on December 31, 2020 % (47.400) (8.065) (4,552) (60,017
Balance on lanuary 1, 2019 g (34,474} (7,103 {7.228) (48.807)
Debit (credit) profit or loss {9.750) 398 1433 (7.899)
Balance on December 31, 2019 § {44,224 {6,707) {5.775) (56,706)

(v}  The Group’s tax returns, assessed and approved by the R.O.C. tax authority, were as follows:

Year of approval

the Company Asof 2018
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK Asof 2018
DAWNING TECHNOLOGY As pf 2018
EPIC CLOUD INFORMATION INTEGRATION As of 2019

{Continued)
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Capital and other equity

As of both December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Group's authorized shares amounted to $2.500.000

thousand, divided into 250,000 thousand shares, with par value of $10 per share. The issued 188.357
thousand shares comprised only ordinary shares, and all issued shares were paid up upon issuance.

Reconciliation of shares outstanding for 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Unit: Thousand shares
For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Balance on January | 188,357 111,233
Capital increase by cash - 66,000
Retained earnings transferred to capital increase - 5.562
Capital surplus transferred to capital increase - 5.562
Balance on December 31 188,357 188,357

(i)  Ordinary shares

A resolution was passed in extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on August 1,
2019 and authorized the chairman or his designee for the issuance of ordinary shares for cash
within a year under private placement, with the number of shares issued not exceeding 66,000
thousand shares. Subsequently, another resolution was passed in the Board of director’ s
meeting held on August 9, 2019 for the issuance of 66,000 thousand ordinary shares at $27.5
per share under private placement. with par value of $10 per share, totaling $1,815.000
thousand. The date of capital increase was August 16, 2019 and relevant statutory registration
procedires have since been completed.

The transfer of the aforementioned private placement of ordinary shares and any subsequently
obtained bonus shares would be subject to section 43(8) under the Securities and Exchange
Act. The application of these shares to be traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange is in
accordance with the said section where the shares should be elapsed after a three year period
from the delivery date of the private placement securities before applying for a public offering
with the FSC.,

On May 28, 2019, the Company’s shareholders” meeting approved a resolution to transfer its

retained earnings of $55.617 thousand and capital surplus of $55.617 thousand to capital
increase. with an aggregate amount of 11,124 thousand shares issued. All statutory registration
procedures for the capital increase dated July 7, 2019 have been completed.

(Continued)
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Capital surplus
The compenents of capital surplus were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Share capital 5 1,249,950 1,438,307
Treasury share transactions 34.637 54.637
Difference arising from subsidiary’s share price and its
carrying value from acquired or disposed of 28.424 27.964
5 1,333,011 1,520,908

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock ar be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding, The capital increase by transferring capital
surplus in excess of par value shall be capitalized in the subsequent year after such capital
reserve has been authorized for registration by the regulator,

Retained earnings

In accordance with the Company’s articles. if there are earnings at year end. 10 percent should
be set aside as legal reserve (unless the amount in the legal reserve is already equal to or
greater than the total paid-in capital) and special reserve according to the Seeurities and
Exchange Act and the Company's operations after the payment of income tax and offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years. The remaining portion will be combined with earnings
from prior years, and the Board of directors can propose distribution plan to be approved by
the shareholders” meeting. The abovementioned distribution plan by way of cash dividends
should be approved by the Company®s Board of directors and should he reported to the
Company’s shareholder’s meeting.

As the Company is in its growth phase. it has adopted a residual dividend policy to pay
dividends after the end of the year from the earnings of the current vear and accumulated
earnings from prior years. and to determine dividend appropriation after taking into
consideration the Company’ s profit, capital structure. and future operating needs.
Dividends are distributed as either cash or stock, where cash dividends represent no less than
20% of the total dividends and the actual amount distributed is based on the amount approved
by the Board of directors.

1} Legal reserve
When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders

meeting. distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distribwting cash. and
only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 23% of capital may be distributed.

(Continued)
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2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Order No, 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, a portion
of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
special earings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified
should equal the current-period total net reduction of other shareholders' BquUity.
Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as special
earnings reserve (and does not qualify for earnings  distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders® equity pertaining to prior periods. Amounts of
subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’ equity shall
qualify for additional distributions.

3)  Earnings distribution

On May 28, 2020 and 2019, the distribution plan for 2019 and 2018 was approved in
shareholders” meeting. The amounts of dividends distributed to shareholders were as

follows:
For the years ended December 31
2019 2018
Dividends to shareholders - cash, $2 and 1.5 pers 376,715 166,85
share
Dividends to shareholders - cash from capital 188,357 -
surplus, $1 per share
Dividends to shareholders - capital increase - 55617
transferred from capital surplus, $0.5 per share
Dividends to shareholders - capital increase
transferred from retained earnings, $0.5 per
share - 55.617
b 565.072 278.085

(t)  Earnings per share
The Company’s basic and diluted eamnings per share were ealculated as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Basic earnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company 5 549,017 379.456
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic/thousand shares) 188,357 147,107
Basic earnings per share 5 2.91 2.58

(Continued)
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For the years ended December 3]

2020 2019
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic/thousand shares) $ 188,357 111.233
Effect of capital surplus transferred to capital increase - 5.562
Effect of retained earnings transferred to capital increase - 3.362
Capital increase by cash - 24.750
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstand ing
{basic/thousand shares) 188,357 147,107
For the years ended December 31
2020 2019
Diluted earnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company 5 549.017 379,456
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted/
thousand shares) 190,106 148,740
Eamnings per share 2.89 2.85

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic/ thousand
shares) 188,357 147,107
Effect of employee remuneration 1.749 [.633
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(diluted/thousand shares) 190,106 148,740
(u}  Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregation of revenue
2020
Networking  Computing Tool Technical Other
products products products Serviees rroducts Total
Major product/service
[ines;
Sale ol goods 5 3606424 A.204 643 3051486 - 19404 13.072.017
Renderimg of services - - - 440504 - 440,504
[atal 5_ 3606424 h,204.6493 JD51.486 440,504 9414 13512,521
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2019
Metwarking  Computing Touol Technieal Other
products products producis services producis Total
Major product/seryice
lines;
Sule of goods § 80024 050,000 3032544 - T4 11.896.279
Rendering of services - - - 410.720 - 410.720
Total 5 3800244 S0500% 3032544 410,720 TA401 12,306,999
Contract balances
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019
Notes receivable (including long-
term ) b 187,429 421,234 270.634
Accounts receivable (including
related parties) 1.810.865 1,766,695 1,781,512
Less: loss allowance (43.700) (48.800) {32,000,
5 1,254,594 2,139.129 2.000,146
Cantract liability s 319,531 774,462 761,509

1)

3)

For the impairment of notes and accounts receivable (including long-term and related
parties), please refer to note 6(c).

The amounts of contract liability balance. recognized as revenue as of January I, 2020
and 2019 at the beginning of the period, were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31
2020 2019
Recognition Revenue 5 720,718 667,922

The major changes in the balance of contract liability is the difference between the time
frame in the performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment to be received.

Remuneration to employees, directors, and supervisors

In accardance with the Company’s Articles, the Company should contribute no less than 8% of the
profit as employee remuneration and less than 2% as directors™ and supervisors” remuneration when
there is profit for the year. (In May 2019, according 1o a resolution reached in a shareholders’
meeting. the Company established an audit committee to replace supervisors.) However, if the
Company has accumulated deficits. the profit should be reserved to offset the deficit. Emplovees
entitled to receive the aforementioned employee remuneration, in shares or cash, include employees
of affiliates whose company shares of more than 50% are held by the Company.

(Continued)
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The Company estimated its remuneration to emplovees at $60,450 thousand and $45,200 thousand
for 2020 and 2019, respectively, and remuneration to directors and super visors at $3,650 thousand
and $5,040 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts recognized as operating expense were
based on the profit before income tax of each respective ending period before deducting the amount
of the remuneration to emplovees. directors and supervisors multiplied by the percentage of the
remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors as specified in the Company’s article. Related
information is available on the website of the Market Observation Post System. The differences
between the estimated amounts and the actual amounts approved by the Board of directors for 2020,
it any. shall be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and recognized in 2021, The actual
amounts distributed for 2019 and the estimated amounts for 2019 in the financial statements were
the same,

Non-operating income and expense
(i) Other income
The Group’s other income was as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Rental income £ 3,200 3,494
Dividend income 10.085 7.462
h] 13,285 10,956

(i)  Other gains and losses
The Group’s other gains and losses were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Net foreign exchange gains b 31.664 33.906
Net gains on valuation of financial assets {liabilities) at
fair vaiue through profit or loss 29 835 10,165
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (95
Gains on disposal of property, plant, and
gquipment 3235 4133
Others 5232 3.529
5 67,056 52,428

{Continued)
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(iii) Finance costs

The Group's of finance costs were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest on bank loans 4 7.855 12,573
Interest an lease liabilities 2.012 1.824
5 9.867 14,399

Financial instruments

(i)

Credit risk

A credit risk is the risk of having financial losses arising from counterparties failing to meet
their required contract obligation. The major potential credit risks are from defaults from
counterparties who fail to meet their required contract oblization,

L)

Accounts receivable and other receivables

The Group™s credit policy is transacting with creditworthy customers, and obtains
collateral to mitigate risks arising from financial loss due to default if necessary. The
Group assesses the ratings based on publicly available financial information and
transactions records with its major customers, The Group continues to monitor the
exposure to credit risk and the credit rating of counterparties, transaction amount to all
qualified customers. and review annually the credit limit of Counterparties, so as to
manage risk exposure,

Other financial assets

The credit risk exposure in cash and cash equivalents, fixed income investments and
other financial instruments are measured and monitored by the Group s finance
department. As the Group deals with the banks and other external parties with good
credit standing and financial institutions which are graded above investment level, the
management believes that the Group does not have any compliance issues, and therefore,
there is no significant credit risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets. represents the maximum amount exposed to
credit risk. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk

amounted to $3.085,771 thousand, and $3,582.762 thousand, respectively.
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Liquidity risk

The followings were the contractual maturities of financial liabilities. including estimated

interest payment.

Cuarrying Contractual Within 1 1-5 Over 5
amaunt cash Mows year vesrs nedars
December 31, 2020
Non-derivative [Tnancial linbilities
Long-ternt aitd shart-term b TA0,467 TT4.008 430,984 81.957 241.967
borrowings
[.ease labilitles 183.768 190166 IR.451 105,736 55.879
Notes and accounts payable 1.549.889 [.549.88Y |.549, 880 - =
(Other payubles 321.981 321.981 321.981 - =
Chinrantee deposits 1621 1.621 |.621 e z
Dervative financial liabilities
Chut Floss 635 647,124 647,224 - i
Infow - (646,569 ) (G364 - -
§ 2798411 2,830.220 _ 2,353,581 187,693 297.946
December 31, 2019
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term and shint-term S 407181 454,630 102,181 13,970 268,479
borrewings
Lease liabilities 188,382 196,258 23,702 Y736 T9.820
Motes and actounts payable 1,434,059 434059 | A54.0159 - -
Crther pavahbles 324431 324451 324,451 - =
Guaruntee deposits 4811 4811 4811 . .
Derivative finmancial liabilities
Outllow 5.199 SHT. 904 ST 964 - -
Inflons - (582.763) [582.Th5) - 2

5_ 2384283 _ 2.439.408

1916403 174,706 348,299

The Group does not expect the cash flows included

significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts,
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(iii) Currency risk

1}

| £%]
o

Exposure to currency risk

The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Foreign Foreign
currency (inm Exchange currency (in - Exchange
thousands) rale WD thansands) rate TWD
USEVTWD 5 1.044 28.35 20,668 2,237 i1 7354
LUSDVTWD b 24570 28.35 696,571 17215 i 318270

Sensitivity analysis

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from the translation of the
foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents. notes and
accounts receivable, and notes and accounts payable denominated in foreign currency.
To avoid the decrease in the value of foreign currency assets and fluctuations of future
cash flows resulted from changes in exchange rates. the Group uses derivative
instruments to hedgze exchange rate risk (see Note 6(b)). An appreciation (depreciation)
of 1% of the USD against TWD as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, with all other
vartables including derivative financial instruments remaining constant, would have
increased or decreased the profit before income tax by $200 thousand and decreased or
increased the profit before income tax by $1.327 thousand for the years ended December
31. 2020 and 2019, respectively. The analysis for both periods was performed on the
same basis.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items

Each Group entity’s functional currency is New Taiwan Dollars, and foreign exchange
gain (loss) on monetary items are recognized as foreign exchange gain (loss): please refer
to 6(w) Tor details.

{Continued)
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[nterest rate analysis
The details of interesi-bearing financial instruments at the reporting date were as follows:

Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
WVariahle-rate instrument:
Financial assets p 730477 695,026
Financial liabilities {740.497) (407.181)
b (10.020) 287,845

According to the Group™s sensitivity analysis of risk exposure to non-derivative instruments on
the reporting date, if the interest rate had increased or decreased by 0.25%, with all other
variable factors remaining constant, the Group® s profit before income tax would have
decreased or increased by $25 thousand and increased or decreased by $720 thousand for the
years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019, respectively. This is mainly due to risk exposures to
borrowings at variable interest rate.

Fair value of financial instruments
17 Kinds of financial instrument and fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured on a recurring basis. The following sets out carrying amount and fair value of
the Group® s financial asseis and liabilities, including the information on fair value
hierarchy but excluding financial instruments not measured at fair value with carrying
amount reasonably close to their fair value, and lease liabilities. disclosure of fair value
information is not required:

December 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value
amount Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair
value throngh profit
or loss
Open-end funds 5 177017 - [77.017 - 177,017
Foreign and domestic
urilisted stocks 157.694 - - 157.694 157,69

5§ 354711
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Financial assets at
amortized cost

Cash and cash
equivalents

Notes and accounts
receivable, net
(including long-term
and related parties)

Other receivables

Refundable deposits

Financial liabilities at
Fair value through
profit or loss
Pre-purchased foreign

currency forward
contracts

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortized cost

Long-term and short-
term berrowings

Lease liabilities

MNotes and accounts
payable

Other pavables

Guarantee deposits

December 31, 2020

Carrying
~ amount

Fair value

Level 2 Level 3

Total

5 730.739

1,954,594
818

£4.900
§_2.751.060)

§ 740,497
183,768

1.549. 889
321,981

§_2.797.756
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December 31, 2019

Carrying Fair value
ameunt Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair
value through profit
ar loss
Open-end funds 5 5713013 - 373,013 - 373,013
Foreign and domestic
unlisted stocks 104,362 - - 104,362 104,362
5 77375
Financial asseis at
amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents § 693302
Nates and accounts
receivable, net
{including long-term
and related parties) 2,139,129
Other receivables 429
Refundable deposits 70.527

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Pre-purchased foreign

currency forward
contracts 5 5,199 - - 5.199 5.189

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortized cost

Long-term and shor-

term borrowings $ 407,181
Lease liabilities 188,582
Motes and accounts

payable [,454,059
Other payables 324,451
Guarantee deposits 4.811

§_2.379.084
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Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The measurements of fair value of equity instruments without an active market are based
on the market comparable listed company approach, which assumes that the fair value is
measured by the investee’ estimated net worth and the price-book ratio estimated based
on comparable quoted market price. The estimate of the fair value of equity instruments
has been adjusted due to the effect of the discount arising from the lack of market
liquidity of the equity security.

Measurement of the fair value of derivative instruments is based on the valuation
techniques that are generally accepted by the markel participants. For instance, discount
method or option pricing models. Fair value of forward currency exchange is usually
determined by using the forward currency rate.

Transfers between Level | and Level 2

There was no transfer between the level 1 and level 2 of fair value hierarchy for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

Measured at fair value through
profit or loss
Non-derivative
financinl assets
measured at

Derivative fair value
financial assets  through profit
(liabilities) or loss

January 1, 2020 $ (5.199) 04,362

Recognized in profit or loss 4214 24,620

Additions - 40.752

Disposal = (627)

Transferred to investments accounted for using

equity method - (11413}

Reclassified to disposal group held for sale

330 -

December 31, 2020 S (655) 157,694
January 1, 2019 b {1,010y 39351

Recognized in profit or loss (4.18%) 13.649

Return of capital on capital reduction or - (1.258)

liguidation

Acquisitions - 30,790

Disposal - (199)

Reclassification - 2.029
December 31, 2019 5 {5.199) 104,362

iContinued)
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The aforementioned total gains and losses that were recognized in *other gains and
losses™, The gains or losses attributable to the assets and liabilities held an December 31
2020 and 2019 were as follows:

A

For the vears ended December 31
2020 2019

Total gains and losses

Recognized in profit or loss (recognized as other
zains and losses) S 23.965 8,251

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Group’s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value include
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments resulted from the quotation of a third
party and did not use any unobservable inputs in its calculation. Therefore, the Group did
not disclose the quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs and
sensitivity analysis.

Quantified information on other significant unobservable inputs was as follows:
Interrelationship

between significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value

Item technique unohservable inputs measurement
Financial assets at Comparable -+ Market liguidity  The higher the
fair value through  listed company discount rate market liquidity
profit or loss- approach (23.00%~34.61% asof  discount rate, the
domestic or December 31, 2020, lower the fair
foreign unlisted and 25.00%~28.21% value
stocks as of December 31,

2019)
(Continued)
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6)  Fair value measurements in Level 3 - sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

The Group” s measurement on the fair value of financial mstruments is deemed
reasonable despite different valuation models or parameters may lead to different results.
For fair value measurements in Level 3. changing one or more of the assumptions would
have the following effects on profit:

Curvent profit (loss) arising firom
changes in fair value

Inputs LY increase 10% decrease
December 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Foreign and domestie unlisted stocks Market hguidity  § {22570 21,579
discount
December 31, 2019
Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Forzign and demestic unlisted stocks Market liquidity % (14,063) 14,063
diseount

Financial risk management

i)

(ii)

Overview

The Group is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
1y Credit risk

2)  Liguidity risk

3)  Market risk

This note expressed the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of
risk measurement and management of the Group. For more details about the quantitative
effects of these risk exposures, please refer to respective notes in the report.

Structure of risk management

The Group’s risk management policies are established 1o identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Group. to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Group’s activities, so as to minimize risk expostlire,

The Board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board of directors is assisted in its
oversight role by an internal auditor. The internal auditor undertakes hath regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the
Board of directors.

(Continued)
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Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base, in order to maintain investor. ereditor. and
market confidence. Capital consists of ordinary shares, capital surplus, retained eamnings, and non-
controlling interests. As of December 31, 2020, the Group had sufficient capital to meet the needs
for working capital and other expenditure in the next 12 months. The Group™s approach to capital
management has not changed on each reporting date.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the debt ratios were 44% and 41%, respectively.

Investing and financing activities not afTecting current cash flow

(i)  Non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were transferred to investmenis
accounted for using equity method, please refer to note 6(b) and (g),

(ii) The assets and liabilities of DAWNING TECHNOLOGY. a subsidiary, were transferred to
assets or liabilities directly related 10 non-current assets or disposal groups elassified as held
for sale, respectively. Please refer to note 6(f).

(i1i) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

January 1, Non-cash December
2020 Cash flows changes 31,2020
Short-term borrowings B 80.000 393,022 (43,022) 430.000
Long-term borrowings 327.181 (16.684) - 310,497
Giuarantee deposils 4,811 (3.190) - 1.621
Lease liabilities 188.582 (31.916) 27,102 183,768
Total liabilities arising from  § 600,574 341,232 (15.920) 925,886
financing activities
January 1, Non-cash December
2019 Cash flows changes _ 32019

Long-term borrowings $ 242,345 84.836 & 327,181
Short-term borrowings 1,075,000 (995.000) - 20,000
Guarantee deposits 300 4,511 - 4811
Lease liabilities 177.210 (25.560) 36.932 | 88,582
Total liabilities arising from  § 1,494,855 {931.213) 36,932 600,574

financing aclivities

(7) Related-party transactions:

(a)

Parent company and ultimate controlling company

In August 2019, Qisda Corporation (~Qisda™) acquired 35.04% of equity interest in the Company
through subscription for ordinary shares under private placement, taking more than half of the Board
directors and hence the control over the Company. Both the parent and the ultimate controlling party
of the Company are Qisda. (Yisda has prepared conselidated financial statements for public use.

(Continued)
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Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are related parties that have had transactions with the Group during the periods

covared in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

(Yisda Corporation (Qisda)
BenQ Material Corporation. (BenQ Material)

Ben() Guru Corporation (Ben() Guru)
Partner Tech Corporation (Partner Tech)
DFI Ine. (DFI)

Data Image Corporation (Data Image)
BenQ Corporation (New Ben(Q)

SIMULA TECHNOLOGY TNC. (SIMULA
TECHNOLOGY)

Ben( Asia Pacific Corporation (Ben() Asia Pacific)
BenQ ESCO Corporation (Ben(Q) ESCO)

Webest Selution Corporation (Webest Solution)
COREX (PTY) LTD.

HITRON TECHNOLOGIES INC. (HITRON
TECHNOLOGIES)

Interactive Digital Technologies Inc. (Interactive
Digital)

Darfon Electronics Corpaoration ( Darfon Electronics)
AU Optronics Corporation ( AUQY)

DARWIN PRECISIONS CORPORATION
(DARWIN PRECISIONS)

DYNASAFE TECHNOLOGIES. INC.
{DYNASAFE)

GRANDSYS INC. (GRANDSYS)

Key management personne
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Parent of the Group

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

[t and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

[t and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

Subsidiary of Partner Tech
Subsidiary of Partner Tech

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company {Note | )

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company (Note 1)

Associate of the parent company
Associate of the parent company
Subsidiary of ALUO

Associate of the Group (Note 2)

Associate of the Group (Nate 3)

Key management personnel of the Group
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Note |: The parent company of HITRON TECHNOLOGIES and Interactive Digital is Alpha
Networks Inc. (*Alpha™), a former associate of Qisda, afier which Qisda acquired Alpha in
July 2020. making them have the same ultimate parent company with the Company.

Note 2: DYNASAFE re-elected its directors on F cbruary 16. 2019, after which the Company is no
longer its legal person and related party.

INote 3: The Company acquired the shares of GRANDSYS in May 2020. after which the percentage
of ownership in GRANDSYS was 22,35%, making it an associate of the Group,

Significant related-party transactions
(i) Sales
The amounts of significant sales by the Group to related parties were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Parent company b 42 469 -
Associates 622 -
Other associates 104.232 6.313
Other related parties 78.213 134,136
b 215,536 140,649

The selling price for related parties approximated the market price. and the credit terms for
2020 and 2019 ranged from 30 to 120 days from the end of the month and 60 to 120 davs from
the end of the month, respectively. Receivables from related parties were not pledged as
collateral, and were assessed not to provide any allowance for impairment loss.

(i)  Purchases
The amounts of significant purchases by the Group from related parties were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Parent company b 1.939 -
Other associates 7,011 2
Other related parties 20 -
b 8.970 g

Purchase prices and payment terms from related parties were similar to those from third-party
suppliers. The payment terms ranged between 30~120 days from the end of month for the year
ended December 31. 2020,

tContinued)
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(iti) Receivables from related parties

(iv)

(v1)

The receivables due from related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
] Account B related party 20240 2019
Accounts receivable Parent company 3 20 -
Accounts receivable Associates 158 -
Accounts receivahle Other associates 10.591 0,226
5 10,769 9,226

Payables to related parties

The payables to related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2020 2019
Accounts payable Other associates b 42 =

Non-controlling interests acquired

The Group’s non-controlling interests acquired from related parties were as follows:

Category of For the years ended December 31
Account related party 2020 2019
Investment in subsidiary Key management
personnel 5 10,344 6,151

Guarantee and endorsements
The company guarantees and endorsements for related parties are as follows:

Guarantees and
endorsements amount

Counterparty of guarantees December 31, December 31,
and endorsements 2020 2019
Other associates
COREX (PTY) LTD. 5 141,750 =

(Continued)
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(d} Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Short-term employee benefits h 63,245 52,701
Post-employment benefits 666 394
Termination benefits - =
Other long-term benefits - 5
Share-based pavment - £
8 65,911 53.095

{8) Pledged assets:

The carrying amounts of the assets which the Group pledged as collateral were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Asset Name Object 2020 2019
Property. plant and equipment Long-term and short- § 837,122 844,120

term borrowings
(9) Commitments and contingencies:

(a) The promissory notes, issued by the Group for loans from financial institutions. forward exchange
transactions, and purchase limits, are detailed as follows:

December 31, December 31,
_ Currency 20240 2019
Promissory notes issued TWD S 4,691,000 4,657,000
LUSD 5 17,350 17,350

(b) For the amounts of guarantees and endorsements for related parties, please see note 7(c)6.
(10) Losses due to major disasters: None
(11) Subsequent Events:

(a) The Company’ s Board of directors passed a resolution for shareholding change in DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY, the subsidiary, on November 35, 2020. The Company and GLOBAL
INTELLIGENCE NETWORK entered into a sale and purchase agreement in January 2021 1o sell all

the shareholdings in DAWNING TECHNOLOGY at a contract price of $266.595 thousand.
wherein all statutory registration procedures had been completed as of issuance date of this financial
report and the contract price has been fully received.

(Continued)

~160 ~



SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD., AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements

(b) The Company's Board of directors passed a resolution on December 18, 2020 to acquire the entire
shareholdings in COREX(PTY) LTD., and its newly issued shares for capital increase by cash, In
January 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire all the
shareholdings in COREX(PTY) LTD. at a contract price of $140,000 thousand, and issued shares
for capital increase totaling $111,872 thousand, wherein the statutory registration is in progress as of
the issuance date of this financial report. The contract price has been fully paid up.

(c)  On January 28, 2021, the Company, according to a resolution of the Board of directors, acquired
1.504 thousand preference shares issued by STATINC COMPANY and purchased 251 thousand
ordinary shares from their former shareholders with a total price of 70,023 thousand, representing
35% of voting rights. As of the issuance date of this financial report. the registration is in progress
and the contract price has been fully paid up.

(12) Other:
{a) The summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, was as follows:
For the vears ended December 31,
2020 2019
By function Operating Operating
By item expenses expenses
Employee benefits
Salary 371416 462,847
Labor and health insurance 41.041 33,399
Pension expense 21.399 16,333
Other employee benefits expense 28.879 27.899
IDepreciation 68,868 38445
Amortization 1.057 3.764
(13) Other disclosures:
(a) Information on significant fransactions;
The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers™ for the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020:
(i) Loans to other parties:None
(ii) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Wi ol
Casiter-pasy of sccunaulbied SUATARICEL
gikaran e i gl Rubanee of amonmis ol Paren eiifurse el
vl rsmeig Ligabtathon g | balanee Tor | gomrneiess giearunices nmd CRmpny Sulisiadliney 1o third
amsiit o | guiianiees i Al Pyajeits endarseaenis tn| Mavimom | ouorsniees! guarimices! partics an
puimaniees amd aml etlarsements) usnge | pledged Tor | ool worth of the | powng e [idirsements to] cadorsensenis el f ol
Kelativazhip | eoda csemsenis fendmsemenis) as off amwant (gmaranices Iptest guarimiees | i parties on | ticd pacies | compunics m
Hpnse of with the far 0 specific ligring eeporiing  |during the| cmlsriemenis Anancinl and hiehall aff nn -bihatrar A lafilangl
M| guaramdne e Crotpaniy | enterprise thar vl date prring iAot} shitemdngs  lendursemenis)  sulisidiaey EIRELE EOIETR Y o i
0 Hlue Cormgany [COREY Sl of | [Nate 1) 41T 14170 - % jaze, | ANew ) | Mg 11
FEVILTD Fater Tech
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Mot | The s of the guarmiess sl endossmemends for o siigle simiey company shall non exceed 300 of te Cormpmay s i wanh of 9559 700 thomand whe the
puarmiees and endorsemenss was providsd; the wial smeunt of eoriges anel erafrmements proided Iy (e Compuny shall nos eseeed $0% of the Dompame's net
warth of $1.708 520 tlhowsmd

Nome 1 COREN (PTY LTEL beemne i wholly dmried | 100° ) sabsidiane of tie Compars im Janusy 202

(iii) Securities held as of December 31. 2020 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures):
Unit: thousand shares/thousand units
Catezory and Relarlunship Enicliang bailamoe Highewt baknce during the vear
Hudifer annie Ao Shures] nits Carvying Pevaeninge of | Fairvalue Shares wits | Percestnge of | Rensark
mame ol seeurits fwith o nemean i D el 1) ilhms;nn];i amnership (%)
ik
he U sy ITy ™ ASAFE Mo =curmeni fimancinl 3 [ EER 133 144 s 1,362 2000 fNae 1}
laeets at Gy vnlog
M:raussh profid or keas
" HDE Huoldsus Linutad il 1kl = Bl 1% x
- VOB i . 42 . 1 042 .
TECHNOLDGIES, (N
Tauch Cloud Inc . 2 Al e | Al lr ] 174 ¥
" Wemini Daip, Inc bl 11 B e ] B840 il 200
v I NGTEL . 143 EREAL ] 1&24% .9 a1 164 '
E3T 004 1576594
pen-end fanids
he Compemy L apiral Mo ey Marke - Currenl fnanaal s ol L Frei:| 130 4003 S 140, (i 3T M F
-l Fur vakue through predi
fr hss
[EPIC CLOUD Capial Money blladks - (4] 20 - RRITIES 2y =
IVFORNIATION Fnd
s TEGIA TION
SEOTREND TECH  [Hua MNan Pheemis hlaney - . 1073 251G - 15000 ks | -
M laek= Fund
177417 177017

Nows 10 Unheted compasy

{iv) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of
NTS$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:

Caregory Mame ol | Relativuship | Beginning Balance Purchises Sulis Eneling Balanes
Nameof fomd name of] Aceounr | eounrer with the Ginim [ Toss)
company | secority party campsiny Shares | Amount | Shiares | Amount | Shores Price Cust | an disposal | Shares | Amowni
{Mutel)
e O cepiganes [ g tal Wy Hut i fome 12350 | 200,087 15395 | 250000 18523 300,243 | 300,000 154 922 | [a0,003
Pebomay tinmscinl  [Bunk
Pelarket Fund [pssels of
[ner volise
hrganh
profit o
luss
Nie 1 Vilusiion adyusiments are snclsded,
o] . ;
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(v)

20% of the capital stock:None

{(vi)
of the

(vii)

capital stock:None

Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or

Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20%

Related party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of
NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:None

(viil) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20%

of the

(ix) Trading in derivative instruments:Please refer to notes 6(b).

capital stock:Mone
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(x) Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:
Mature of Intercompany iransactinons
No. o Name of company| Name of counter-party [relationship Aceount Amaunt Trading terms ':2::::;::’::{:;":::
revenue or lotal assels
1l e Camipany GLOBAL | Sales revenue L1593 |0l days from the end (3%
INTELLIGENCE of the maonth
P TWIORK
“ " i | LA ecounis 1,324 " 0.14%
receivahle
] " | Rantal income 3097 |Pavment on [0th af 0.04%
ezch month
" DAWNING I [Sales rovenue 24181 JA0 days from the end 0.18%
TECHMOLOGY ol the month
" " e | fSale remurns 24 dbg n 0.14%
“ i J I Aecounts 9.593 i 012%
recervable
" " I Rental mcome FA091 [Payment on [0th of DOTY
cach month
| IDAWNING fthe Camparny 2 Nales revenue 24635 B0 dovs from the end .18
[TEC HNOLOGY ol the month
# " " 2 Aecounts 6,563 " D08
receivahlc
Mote | Mo are filled v as tollows:
(1) 07 represents the purent compiany
(11} Subsidivries are nunibered starting from =™
Note 2: Mature of relationship with counterparty are as below
|.Parznt to subsidiory
2 Subsidinry o parem
3 Subsidiary o subsidiary.
MNote 3: [hsclosure of only the amoums exceeding of NTS3 million
Mote - Reluted trunsactions bove heen <liminated during prepanng the consobidated financial statements
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Information an investees:

The following is the informartion on investees for the year ended December 31. 2020:

sl imvestment Highesi baulasee
At ¢ Ualawre as of Dol 31, 2020 dhering the yeir S| Shure ol
income
“me ol Mame of bwvestes | Loeitlim | Muin basioesies and | Decemiber | Decomber Shaves Perevntuge | Caerying | SharesUnity | Pervemize of (lesses) of |prafievlosses)  Nate
Invesing proshug i 3|, 220 AL 200% | il b Jof anmershigl  amount | {thesands) | Owaceship | invesies | of investee
the Comrpmry JGLOBAL Tawsan  [Trading i hearclenre 42 EROBD |o47s T BE 183,471 1N47% TIE % AT 1333 fivodes |
INTELLIGENCE vl = frwnre For | fumst 21
MNETWORK re=tarirk el
EonamscTems
kystims
1 [BAWNING Fiswaa  [Trachng in hardwne 108,008 106,018 7280 [RER] 123432 7280 0N B 30,879 253 | Netes 1
TECHOLOGY hnd softwars for | [t 3
nenwork svsens
L] EFIC CLOLD Favyask  Dnis sofhwase 400 | EEEET iy 4,00 #, &.18% adn 0400 ¥ [2417 RN BT
NFORMATION frocessing serees fund 1
WTEGRATION
» WED TREND Tawwin  [Falecommin estios SO0 - S:0600 Tk i1 4 5 ) .00 o000 Y {14,037 (14057 -
TECH ey
4 [Lil5 A GE Tawwan Planuiseniring medieal] [N | BET 275 LIV e 5 ol Y 4452 |10y =
[ruysmp=n
GRASDEY'S Tanvan  J3aen sofnsars a4 847 = 5,641 I15L CLETR ENI R INAEAY W 8.0 5
frcnsn
d ADVANCEDTER | Torvam  fapplicaisins 301w - I, 151 Moge 32120 .05 MY 11 aia =
mplzmenimiy services |
[GLOBAL AN NG Tavsae (Fracang in hardwai: e 4,3 AR ENTR ST 1384 A0y 30 4947 i votes 1
ISNTELLIGESCE [TECHNOLOGY aruf anbisiqm fr I, und |
WETWH etk oyEeme
MED TREND LM AL Tarwim  [Trading i bardkaase (R - n og " 17 L TR [ T s = a1
TECH ENTELLIGENCE e sofiname fpr | [ and 4|
ETWORK mevark md |
comnmInica s [
) : i |
" ErC CLOLD Farwan  [Dun safrware and Jan in | i ® 1aik it LoD® (2T 5 .
| M ECHRALATION CETRI R e ]
I STEGILATIIEN

(©)
(d)

Mot b Subsdiany of the o pany

Mol 2 The eyuety answctions on (e lef have slresds been dimmaisd dirsie prepanng the

lid

d Ftanersl

Motz 3 The Groep has raclass fed DAWNING TECHNOLOGY 1o non=cumrsni assess elssaifiod as hald far sale: please-nefer ionome S0 for details
MNoted The zown’ inleeest in NEQ TREND TECH wad neyuired on Deceober 31 202 which wos ot requined 1o be recosnized sz s of peofit had of iy esdee

Information on investment in Mainland China:None

Major shareholders:

Unit: share

Shareholding : Percentage of
Major shareholders e Ownership
Qisda 66,000,000 35.04 %
(Continued)
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(14) Segment information:

{a)

(h)

General information

The Group has four reportable product line segments: networking, computing, tools, and technical
services. The networking segment distributes and resells products from Cisco and other brands, the
computing segment distributes products from IBM, Dell, EMC, and other brands, the tool segment
distributes products from Oracle and other brands: the technical services segment generates revenue
by providing technical support and after-sales services, the installation and support of software and
hardware. foreign domain integration, as well as information system integration.

The Gmup's reported segments consist of strategic business units which provide different products
and services, Since each strategic business unit requires different technology and marketing
strategies. it must be administered separately.

Information for reportable segment profit or loss. segment assets and their measurement and
reconciliations

The Group did not allocate operating expenses, income tax expense, and non-operating income and
expenses to reportable segments, The reported amount is the same as the amount of the financial
statements used by operating decision makers,

The measurement of the profit or loss of the Group’s operating segments was based on gross profit
from operation, which has also been taken as the basis of performance evaluation. The accounting
policies for the operating segments are the same as those in the summary of significant accounting
policies described in note 4. Besides, sales and transfers between the segments are regarded as
second party transactions and are measured based on current market prices.

Other segments of the Group mainly sell communications equipment and provide education training
services and cloud products. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the aforementioned
segments did not reach the quantitative thresholds of a reportable segment.

The Group's operating segment information and reconciliation are as follows:

Fur the year ended December 31, 2020

Reconciliation

Metworking  Computing Taol Technical Oriher aml
products products products services products eliminations Total

Revenue;

Revenue friom external - § 3606424 (.284.693 3051486 440504 119414 . 13512521
CHISIOMETS

Intersegment revenies 3.039 51,832 1328 4,823 £.751 (75,7733 -

Total revenue 5 3611463 6346525 3058514 5326 126,165 (75.772) _ 13,512,521
Coross profin ¢loss) £ 475,250 (59,387 243,597 2UT.6054 11.013 (65,528} 1.6G21,382

(Continued)
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Far the year ended December 31, 20049

Reconciliation
Networking  Computing Toaol Techmical Oiler ELT
producis products produets services products eliminationg Tatal

Revenue:

Revenue from external 5 3800244 3056000 3032544 410,720 7401 . 12306999
customers

Intersegment revenue 58381 37.008 7712 4476 Tds £108.25959) .

Total revenue 5 JB5RA25 3,093,008 J040.256 415,196 8.123 (108,299 12,306,999
Cinass proli (loss) 5 390457 472,424 205,336 228,449 3.908 {49.685) 1,251,889

Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography. revenue is based on the geographical location
of customers, and non-current assets are based on the geographical location of the assets,

Revenue from the external customers:

For the years ended December 31

Geographic information 2020 2019
Taiwan b 13,331.085 12.038. 487
Others 181.436 268.512
Total by 13.512.521 12.306,999

Mon-current assets:

December 31, December 31,
Geographic information 2020 2019
Taiwan g 1,232,181 1,268,552

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment. investment property. right-of-use assets.
and other assets. but excluding financial instruments and deferred income tax assets.

Major customers

The Group’ s revenues from a single customer did not exceed 10% of operating revenues in the
statements of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, so the Group
does not disclose any information on major customers.
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Independent Auditors” Report

To the Board of Directors of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD.:
Opinion

We have audited the parent company only financial statements of SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.(*the
Company” ), which comprise the parent company only balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
parent company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then
ended and notes to the parent company enly financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion. based on our audits and the reports of other auditors (please refer to Other Marter paragraph).
the accompanying parent company only financial statements present fairly. in all material respects. the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and i1s cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Antestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China
{"the Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code, Based on our
audits and the reports of other auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matter

We did pot audit the financial statements of certain invesiments accounted for using equity method. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors. Therefore, our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts
included for those investees. is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The recognized investments
accounted for using the equity method constituted 1.83% of the total assets as of December 31, 2020, and the
recognized share of profit or loss of associates accounted for using equity method constituted 1.56% of profit
before tax for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our audit of
the parent company only financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of parent company only financial statements as a whole. and in forming our opinion thereon. and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters 1o be communicated in our report.

Valuation of inventories

Please refer to Note d(g) for the accounting policy for inventories, Note 3 for significant accounting
assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty, and Note 6(e) for the details and
related expenses for inventories.

Description of key audit matter:

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Since information products, such as
network and servers, are constantly evolving, and prices impact end-consumers” decisions on expenditure. sales
of related products may fluctuate, resulting in a risk that the cost of inventories may exceed their net realizahle
values. Consequently, the estimate of the net realized value of inventories. dependent on management” s
subjective judgment, was considered to be a matter of high concern in our audit of the financial statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our audit procedures included understanding the Company”s policy for recognizing inventory allowances so as
to assess whether inventory valuation was conducted pursuant 1o the policy: comparing the reasonableness of
management's recognition of the allowance for inventory loss for prior years with the approach and assumption
about the recognition of the allowance for inventory loss for the current period, in order to evaluate the
appropriateness of the latter; looking into and sampling the sales prices adopted by management and reviewing
sales transactions after the balance sheet date. with a view to assessing whether the estimate of the net realizable
value of inventories and the loss allowance was reasonable.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company Only
Finanecial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial
statements in accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent
company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the Audit Committee) are responsible for overseing the Company's
finaneial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial statements
as & whole are free from material misstatrement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors® report
that inc¢ludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will alwavs
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad
material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

|, Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

3. Ewaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s abilily to continue as a going ¢oncern. It we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
parent company only financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditors’ report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the parent company only financial statements.
including the diselosures, and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in
other entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the parent company only
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit, We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought 1o bear on our independence. and where applicable. related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our anditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when. in extremely rare ¢ircumstances. we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are HUNG-WEN, FU and
MEI-PIN, WL,

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
Eebruary 23, 2021

Sotes to Headers

The accompanying parent company only finanecial stiements are inended only w present the statement of financial position, financial
pertiormance and s cash Nows i sceordanee with the aecounting principles und practices penerlly accepted in the Republic of Ching
and not these ol any othér jurisdictions, The standards. procedures and proctices o undit such parent compans only financial statements
are those genperally accepted and npplied in the Republic ol China.

The auditors” report wnd the accompanying parent company only Gnancial statements are the English vanslution of the Chinese version

prepared and used in the Republie of China, [ there-is any contlict berween. or any dilTerence in the interprelation of the English and
Chinese bogungs auditors” report and parent company only finoneial statements. the Chinese version shall peevail,
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{English Translition of Parent Company Only Finaneial Stitements Originally bsoed in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD.

Statements of Com prehensive Tncome

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

For the vears ended December 31,

2020 2019
Amount % Amount %
Operating revenue {Sotes 65} and 7) FOTLS3Y 100 10286217 100
Crperating costs (Netes Gle) and T) 8753493 b SI8T 756 W)
Coross profit from operations 318446 |3 G846l _ 10
Chperating expenses ( Sotes ek, (o), (1 and 12);
Selling expenses 310,552 i 124010 | 4
Greneral and adminestealiyve espenses M, T3S 3 | 85 0T a
Research and development expense 16.382 D& -
Expected credit loss 11326 _ - - -
150065 7 622901 _ &
Net operating income 570381 __ 5 35E60 4
Mon-gperating income and expenses:
Onher mcome [ Maotes Stm o (m ), () and T 26.71% 21903
Interest meome 336 - e
Other gaimns and losses (Motes Slo), (u) and 7) a8.321 | 3t H63 |
Finance costs {Notes Him | (u) and 7) (Th84) - (1328 -
Share of profit (loss | of subsidiaries and associntes aecounted for using equity method {note &z ) 1B730 - WA -
esn | LA |
Frofit hefore income tux BE6O1T 4 464 350 3
Lesst Fncome tax expenses (Sote Gip)) 37000 | L
Profit YOI .3 39436 4
Other comprehensive income, net of tas = - -
Total comprebensive income 5 49017 3 IT0A5 4
Earnings per share (Sote 6ir)): T
Busic carmings per shave (NT dollirs) 3 1% 258
Dituted carnings per share (ST dollars) 5 1.89 .55

Se@ Hecompany ing notes W parent eompany only finaneial statemeants,
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(English Transkation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Oviginally Issued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Fuor the years ended December 31

20240 g
Cash flows from operating activitics: —= e
Prafit belore income tax b 6E60LT 46k 350
Adjustments:
Adjustments wo reconeile profit (loss):
Deprecialion expense F6 T 37127
Amortizulion expense 1057 3.764
Expected eradit loss 11226 -
Met prafit from fAmanciml assers or labilies at fwr value through profit or loss (29311 [ H000E)
Share of prafit |Ioss) of subsidiaries and asseciates accounted for using equity methad [ 18.730) {28471
Interest expense 7884 13.280
Interest ineame (336) (He6)
Dividend income (100185} (7462
Cithers [ it 1638}
Tatal adjustmenes (o reconcile profic (loss) 16500 26 604
Changes in operating assets and liahilities:
Tuotal met chamges in operating sssets:
Current linaneml gssets gt fir value through profitor logs 250,73 {0t
Wotes and accounts regeivahle (4821015 (127640
Inventornes (33828 (22 ].250)
Other current assels 0.57] 4024
Lither non-current ussets L1123 o1
Taotal net ehanges in operating assets 133 546 [T45.515)
Total net changes in operating liabiliies:
Contract labil ity {367,160 |2;328)
Accounts payable 237535 (122,123
Chber puvohles 6,364 13217
Advanee reesipls 124723 230006
Other current Habilities 124 a8
Uther nen-eurrent habilities - (2318}
Total nerchanges i operating fabilities (137 860) (88 8300}
Total net changes in operating assets and lnbilities 17,686 (834 363}
Tt anel justiments 34,186 (807.756)
Cash inflows (outfiows) senerted from operations 20,203 {341 d0A
[merest reeeived 336 agE
Dhividends received AT.405 RNV
[mterest pakd (7.823) (13.481)
Inersme taxes poid (92008 L0617
Net cash inMows (eufflaw ) from operating activities: H38.333 431,978
Cash Mows from investing activities:
Acquisition of non-current fnancead wssets al e value through profit or liss (H0.732) {30,700y
Returm ol capital om capstal reduetion or hiquidstion of finaneial assets at far value Birough profit or less : 258
Praceeds from disposal ol mon-cucrent lnancin) assets at (e value through profitor loss 627 194
Acquisition of investments gecounted for using equity method (200,853 136,797y
Proceeds from liquidation of myestmenis aecouniad (e using aguity method = 2 a0
Acquisition of property. plung and equipment (3,15 (U331
Proceeds from dispesal ol peepercy, plant, and aquipment 786 330
Decrease in refundable deposiis 4.275 4800
Net cush outflows from investing aetivies oI (1714243
Cush Mows from fAnuncing netivities:
Increase (decrense ) in shor-term bomrow ings 3000 R ILRESTT
Procesds from long-term borrowings . SN
Repayments of long=term borrowings 113.673) (12845
Increise | decredse ) in suarintve deposits {3.584) 4.l
Iavymints of lease hakhilitias {23.3%5) {26 280)
Cash dividends pand {56072y flaa850)
Cupital incrense by cash - 1815000
Neteash inflows (nutflows) from Anancing activities o £308.225)
Inerease in cash and cash equivalents 1110137
Cash und cush equivalénts, beginning of period 478 658
Cash wnd eash equivalents, end of period S5 SHULA0S

Soe pecompany ing notes to parent company only Arancil stolements,
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(1)

(2)

(3)

{English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statéments

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

Company history

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.. LTD. (“the Company™) was incorporated on April 16, 1998 under
the approval of Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of China (“R.0O.C."). The address of its
registered office is I10F, No. 516, Sec. 1, Neihu Rd.. Taipei City 114064, Taiwan (R.O.C.), The
Company’s major business activities include distributing and reselling ICT software and hardware
from Cisco and other companies. workstations and servers from I1BM, Dell. EMC, and other
companies. tools integration applications from Oracle and other companies. The Company
provides integrated planning for the products it sells, including related consulting education
services. as well as research and development of information applications.

Approval date and procedures of the parent company only financial statements:

The parent company only financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on
February 23, 2021.

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. ("FSC™) which have already been adopied.

The Company has initially adopted the following amendments to IFRSs from January 1, 2020, which
did not have any material impact on ils parent company only financial statements;

o Amendments to IFRS 3 ~Delinition of a Business™
o Amendments to [FRS 9 TAS3Y and IFRST ~Interest Rate Benchmark Reform”
e Amendments to 1AS | and [AS 8 *Delinition of Material™

o Amendments to [FRS 16 “COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions™

(b} Impact of IFRSs endorsed by FSC but not yvet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the amendments to IFRSs effective from January 1, 2021
would not have any material impact on its parent company only financial starements,

o Amendments to [FRS 4 “Extension of the Temporary Exemption lrom Applying [FRS 97

e Amendments to [FRS 9, TAS39, [FRST. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 ~Interest Rate Benchmark Reform—
Phase 27

(Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Finaneial Statements

The impact of [FRSs issued by IASB but not vet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards. which may be relevant to the Company, have been
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“1ASB™), but have yet to be endorsed by

the FSC;

Standards or
Interpretations

Content of amendment

Effective date per
IASB

Amendments to [AS |
“Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Mon=current™

The amendments aim to promote consistency
in applying the requirements by helping
companies  determine whether, in the
statement of balance sheet, debt and other
liabilities with an uncertain settlement date
should be classified as current (due or
potentially due to be settled within one vear)
or non-current.

The amendments include clarifving the
classification  requirements for debl a
company might settle by converling it into
equity.

January 1, 2023

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its financial position and financial performance. The results thereof will be
disclosed when the Company completes its evaluation.

The Company expects no material impact of new and amended standards not vel endorsed by the
FSC on the parent company only financial statements.

e Amendmentsto IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
lts Associate or Joint Venture™

Amendments to IAS 37 ~“Onerous Contracts— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract™
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework™

~176~

IFRS 17 * Insurance Contracts™ and amendments to [FRS 17 * Insurance Contracts™
Amendments to IAS 16 “Property. Plant and Equipment— Proceeds before Intended 1se™

{Continued)



(4)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these parent company only financial
statements are set out as below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

(a)

(bl

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance

These parent company only financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (= the
Regulations™).

Basis of preparation
(i) Basis of measurement

Except for financial assets (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss. the parent company
only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,

(i} Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency is determined based on the primary economic environment in which
the Company operates. The parent company only financial statements are presented in New
Taiwan Dollars. the Company®s functional currency. All financial information presented in
New Taiwan Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Foreign currency transactions and operations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Company entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period (“the reporting date™) monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the functional
currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies measured based on historical cost are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of transaction,

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria. and all other assets are classified
A& non=cLrrent,

{i)  ltexpects to realize the asset. or intends to sell or consume it. in its normal operating cvele:
(it} Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading:
(iii) Itis expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date: or

{(iv} The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted [rom being exchanged or
used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

{Continued )
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current,

(i} [tis expecied to be settled in its normal operating cycle;
(ii) Tt is held primarily for the purpose of trading:
(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date: or

(iv)  The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could. at the aption ol
the counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits. Cash equivalents comprise short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes should be recognized as cash equivalents.

Financial assets

Accounts receivables issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) er financial liability is initially measured at fair value, plus. for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL™). transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. An account receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(i)  Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date and settie date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assels are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

1y Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meeis both of the following
conditions and is not designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows: and

(Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset measured at amortized cost is initially recognized at Fair value.
plusiminus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest methad. and adjusted
for any loss allowance. Interest income. foreign exchange pains and losses, and
impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or fair value through comprehensive
income (~FYOCI™) described as above are measured at FVTPL, including derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate g
financial asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCIL, as a1t FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise. These assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Net gains and losses. including any dividend and interest income. are recognized in profir
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses ("ECL™) on Mnancial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents. amortized costs.
notes and accounts receivable. other receivables, guarantee deposits and other financial
assets).

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. except for
the following which are measured as 1 2-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for accounts receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the | 2-month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk,

{Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company” s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the eredit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
onece it is past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 120 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Ciroup
in full.

ECL are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of financial
assets. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls ii.e, the
difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive), ECL are discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried ar
amortized cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
+ @ breach of contract such as a default or being more than 120 days past due:

the lender of the borrower. for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty. having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider:

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganization: or

+ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets,

The gross earrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expeciations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof,
The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of
write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The C omparny
expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However. financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire. or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assels are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1

4)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the
amount of consideration received less the direct issuing ¢ost.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL it it is held for trading. it is a derivative. or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense. are recognized in
profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligation has been
discharged, cancelled or expired. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different. in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value,

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability derecognized and the

consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognized in profit or loss.

(Continued)
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

)
—

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

(i) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives held for hedging risk exposure to currency and interest rate are initially measured
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition. derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

[nventories

[nventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The costs of inventories
weighted-average principle include expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs
incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition,

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less, the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities that are expected to be
recovered primarily through a sale transaction, rather than through continuing use. are reclassified as
non-current assets held for sale. Immediately belore the initial classification of the non-current assels
or disposal groups as held for sale. the carrying amount of the assets (or all the assets and liabilities
in the group) is measured in accordance with the Company”s applicable accounting policies.
Thereafter. the assets or disposal groups are generally measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell,

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, are no longer
amortized or depreciated and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity aceounted.

Investmenl in associales

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence. but not control, over
their financial and operating policies,

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition. less. any accumulated impairment losses.
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The parent company only financial reports include the Company™s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of those associates. after adjustments to align their accounting policies
with those of the Company from the date on which significant influence commences until the date on
which significant influence ceases. When an associate’s equity changes due to reasons other than
profit and loss or comprehensive income. which did not result in changes of the Company’s
shareholding percentage in the associate, the Company recognizes equity changes attributable to the
Company by its shareholding percentage as capital surplus.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are
recognized only to the extent of unrelated party’s interests in the associate.

When the Company’s share of losses of an associate equal or exceed its interest in an associate, it
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses, Afiter the recognized interest is reduced to zero,
additional losses are provided for. and a liability is recognized. only to the extent that the Company
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made pavments on behalf of the associate.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity method when preparing the parent
company only financial reports. There is no difference between net income and comprehensive
income in the Company™ s parent company only financial statements and net income and
comprehensive income attributable to stockholders of the parent. The equity in the Company” s
parent company only financial statements and the equity attributable to stockholders of the parent in
the Company ‘s consolidated financial statements are also the same.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accountad for as equity transactions.

Investment property

Investment property is the property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. lnvestment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition, and subsequently at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, Depreciation expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful lives, and
residual value which are the same as those adopted for property. plant, and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment properly is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line hasis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.
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Property. plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost. which includes capitalized
borrowing cost, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives. they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is caleulated on the cost of assets less their residual values and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant, and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative vears of significant items of
property, plant, and equipment are as follows:

[} Buildings and improvements: 30 vears
2)  Office and other equipment: 2 to 7 years

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each annual reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

Reclassification to investment property

The property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.,
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Leases

(i)

(1i)

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract. the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset-this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly. and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity
of a physically distinet asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the
asset is not identified: and

2} the customer has the right 1o obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the assel throughout the period of use: and

3)  the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use only
if either:

e the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used
throughout the period of use; or

. the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asser would be used
were predetermined and:

—  the customer has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use.
without the supplier having the right to change those operating instructions;
ar

—  the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what
purpose it will be used throughout the period of use.

When the lease is established or the contract is reassessed whether consists of lease. the
Company allocates the consideration in the contract to individual lease components on the
basis of respective individual prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it
is a lessee. the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the
lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a leasee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease pavments made at or béfore the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located. less any
lease incentives received.
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if'any. and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or. if that rate cannot be reliably determined. the Company’ s
incremental borrowing rate, Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

—  payments or penalties for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to
be exercised.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
methed. 1t is remeasured when;

—  there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate: or

—  there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be pavable under
a residual value guarantee: or

— there is a change in the assessment of whether it will have the option to exercise a
purchase: or

—  there is a change in its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or termination
option: or

—  there is any lease modification in lease subject, scope of the lease. or other terms.

When the lease liability is remeasured. other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset. or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease. and recognize the difference in profit or
loss any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease,
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The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and
lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the balance sheets.

The Company has elected not to recognize right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases of office equipment of low value assets. The Company recognizes the lease pavments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

{111} Asa leasor

When the Company acts as a lessor. it determines at lease commencement whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers 1o the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlving asset. If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease: if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset,

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its inferests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-pf-use asset arising from the head lease. not with reference to the underlving asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above,
then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease,

I an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components. the Company applies IFRS15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

For operating lease. the Company recognizes rental income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term,

Impairment of non-derivative financial assets

At each reporting date. the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
[ any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing. assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generales
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash generating units (“CGU™).

The recoverable amount of an individual asset or a CGU is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. An impairment loss is recognized if the carryving amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Thev are
allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of assets in the CGL on a pro rata basis,

For non-financial assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized in prior years.
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(0} Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured basing on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a zood or a service to a customer. The
following is a description of the Company’s major revenues:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of moods

Revenue is recognized when the control over a product has been transferred to the customer.
When the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location. the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred 1o the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract. the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that
all eriteria for acceprance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Advance sales
receipts are recognized as contract liabilities and are transferred to revenue upon the delivery
of zoads,

Services

The Company provides installation and maintenance services on hardware and software, The
recognition of the revenue generated was based on the progress towards completing the
transaction recognized by the two parties as of the reporting date.

Financing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of
the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year,
As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the ransaction prices for the time value
of money,

(p) Employvee benefits

(i)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
employees.
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(i)  Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that managers have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.

When the benefils of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service cost or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs.

(iii) Short-term employee benefils

Short-term employee benefit obligations are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

Income taxes

Income taxes include both current taxes and deferred taxes, Except for expenses related 1o business
combinations, or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income. all current and
deferrad taxes are recognized in profit or loss,

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous vears, The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are measured using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred income taxes are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation

purposes. Deferred taxes are not recognized for the following exceptions:

(i)  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits {losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(ii) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries. associates and Joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future: and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date.

(Continued)

~189~



(5)

ir}

LA
e

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities may be offset against each other if the following criteria are met:

(i) the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities: and

(ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1} the same taxable entity: or

2)  different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax labilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future axable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will he
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Earnings per share

The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share atiributable to ordinary
equity holders. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholder of the Company divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. The calculation of diluted earings per share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Dilutive
potential ordinary shares comprise accrued employes remuneration.

Orperating segiments

Please refer to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31,
2020. for further details.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the parent company only financial statements in conformity with the Regulations
requires management to make judgments, estimates. and assumptions that affect the application of the
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets. liabilities, income. and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. Any changes in accounting
estimates are recognized during the period and the impact of those changes in accounting estimates are
recoenized in the following period.
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Regarding control of investees. please refer to the Company™s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2020, for further details. There are no critical judgments made in applying the
accounting policies that have significant effects on the amounts recognized in the parent company only
financial statements.

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the parent company only financial statements is as follows:

Valuation of inventories

As inventaries are measured al the lower of cost or net realizable value. the Company estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for normal loss. obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the
reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net realizable
value of the inventory is mainly based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific time horizon.
Due 1o the rapid industrial transformation. there may be significant changes in the net realizable value of
inventories. Please refer to note 6{e) for the valuation of inventories.

Valuation process

The Company”s accounting policies and disclosure include measuring financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, The Company’s financial instrument valuation group
conducts independent verification on fair value by using data sources that are independent, reliable, and
representative of exercise prices. This financial insttument valuation also periodically adjusts valuation
models, conducts back testing, renews input data for valuation models. and makes all other necessary fair
value adjustments to assure the rationality of fair value.

The Company strives to use market observable inputs when measuring assets and liabilities. Different
levels of the fair value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair value of financial instruments are as
follows:

e | evel |:guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identified assets or liahilities.

® Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or
liability. either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived {rom prices).

® Level 3:input for the asset or liability is not based on the observable market information,

For any transfer within the fair value hierarchy, the impact of the transfer is recognized on the reporting
date.

Explanation of significant accounts:

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Cash on hand and petty cash & 228 228
Check and demand deposits 589.467 478,430
% 589.695 478,658
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Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Details are set out in the following table:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Finanecial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Current:
Open-end funds 5 150.003 400,323
Mon-current:

Foreign and domestic unlisted stocks 157.694 104.362
Total 8 307.697 504,685
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss:
Current:
Pre-purchased foreign currency forward contracts S (635) (4,935)

{ily  The Company acquired 18.89% of equity interest in GRANDSYS. an unlisted company. at a
price totaling $74.580 thousand in May 2020, resulting in significant impact on GRANDSYS.
which was transferred to investment under the equity method, Please see Note 6z for
information on the equity interest transaction.

(iii) Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge assets or liabilities denominated in foreiun
curencies for risks arising from exchange rate fluctuations. The following table sets out the
Company’s derivatives recognized as held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities to which
hedging accounting was not applicable:

December 31, 2020

Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign curreney USD22.818 2021.01.04~ 28.096 10 28.655
forward contracts Buy USD/Sell TWD thousand  2021.03.25

December 31, 2019

Nominal Maturity Pre-agreed
Financial instruments amounts period exchange rate
Pre-purchased foreign currency USDIS.172  2020.01.02~  30.046 to 30.497
forward contracts Buy USDrSell TWD thousand  2020.04.08

(iv)  Note 6(u) details the net profit or loss on the valuation of financial assets and liabilities arising
fram changes in fair value.
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{c) Notes and accounts receivable (including long-term and related parties)

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Notes receivable {including long-term) £ 172,478 347.965
Accounts receivable 1,689,794 | 465,836
Accounts receivable due from related parties 31,136 46,148
Less: loss allowance (42.500) (46.000)
Toral b} 1,850,928 1,813,949
Current $ 1.826.767 1,809,547
MNon-current 24.161 4,402
Taotal 5 1,850,928 1,813,949
(i)  The Company did not discount or provide any of the notes and accounts receivahle {ineluding

(ii)

(i)

long-term and related parties) as collateral. The aforementioned notes and accounts receivable.
whose maturity period were less than 1 year, were not discounted, and their carrving amounts
were assumed Lo approximate their fair values,

MNon-current notes receivable mainly arose fram installment sales,

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its ECL. the use of lifetime ECL
provision for all notes and accounts receivables (including long-term and related parties). To
measure the ECL. notes and accounts receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and customer’ s ability to pay all the amounts due based on the terms of the
contract as well as incorporated forward-looking information. The analysis of expected credit
losses on notes and accounts receivable was as follows:

December 31, 2020
Loss allowance

Weighted- for lifetime
Gross carrving average loss expected eredit
amount rale losses

Current § 1.796.892 0.11% 972
| to 30 days past due 14474 3.000% 434
31 to 60 days past due 22.014 10,005 2.201
61 to 90 days past due 16,787 20.00% 3,387
G1 o 120 days past due 17451 S0.000% 8.726
Maore than 121 days past due 25.810 1 00.00% 23.810
b 1,893,428 42,500
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December 31, 2019

Loss allowance

Weighted- for lifetime
Gross carrying average loss expected eredit
amount rale losses

Current $ 1,746,003 0.38% 6.663
| to 30 davs past due 40.812 3.00%% 1224
31 to 80 days past due 31,063 10.00% 3.106
61 to 90 davs past due 936 N.00% 187
Q1 to 120 days past due 12,627 50.00% 6,314
More than 121 days past due 28.506 100.00% 28.506
S 1,859,949 46,000

The movements in the loss allowance for notes and accounts receivable (including long-term
and related parties) were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

20210 2019
Beginning balance £ 46,000 46,000
Impairment |osses recognized 11.226 +
Transferred to other receivables (14.726) =
Ending balance S 42,500 46,000
Other receivables
December 31, December 31,
2020 . 2019
Other receivables L3 18,004 6,785
[ess: loss allowance (16.927) 15.156)
5 2,077 1.629

(i)

(i)

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, there was no other receivable that was past due but not
impaired.

The movements in the loss allowance for other receivables were as follows;

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Beginning balance i) 5.156 5.156
Write-offs of uncollectible amount for the period (2.935) -
Transferred from accounts receivable 14.726 -
Ending balance % 16,927 5.156
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[nventories
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Merchandise inventory S 2.734.354 2,686,068

During 2020 and 2019. losses on inventories written down to net realizable value and recognized as
cost of goods sold amounted to $37,000 thousand and $48.000 thousand. respectively.

MNon-current assets classified as held for sale

On November 3, 2020, the Company. pursuant to a resolution of the Board. approved a change in the
shareholding in its subsidiary. DAWNING TECHNOLOGY. The Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in January 2021 and commenced the disposal process. Accordingly. the earrying
amount of investments accounted for using equity method was $123.922 thousand and was
recognized as non-current assets classified as held for sale. In addition. no impairment loss was
recognized after measuring at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs 1o sale.

Investments accounted for using equity method

Investments accounted for using the equity method were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2021) 2019
Subsidiaries b 225,587 273.794
Assoeciates 132.265 2.419
5 357,852 276.213

(i)

(i)

Subsidiaries

Please refer to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December
31, 2020, for details of subsidiaries.

Associates

1)

The Company originally held 3.46% equity interest in GRANDSYS. which Wis
acceunted for under non-currem financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. In
May 2020. pursuant to the resolution of the Board. the Company purchased 4.520
thousand shares (18.89% ownership) from their former shareholders. resulting in a total
percentage of ownership of 22.35% with significant influence on GRANDSYS,
Consequently. the investment. as a whole. was transferred from non-current financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss to investments accounted for using equity
methad, The transaction price totaling $74.580 thousand has been fully paid up.

In September and October. 2020, the Company purchased 1,153 thousand shares of
ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL from their former shareholders at a price totaling
530,091 thousand. representing a percentage of ownership of 34.09% with significant
impact on ADVANCEDTEK INTERNATIONAL. The above transaction price has been
fully paid up.
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3)  In November and December, 2020. the Company purchased 239 thousand shares of
GRANDSYS (1.08% ownership) and 36 thousand shares (0.15% ownership) at $4,138

thousand and $582 thousand, respectively. The payments of the aforesaid transactions
have been fully paid up.

4)  Aggregate financial information of associates that were not individually material was
summarized as follows. The financial information was included in the Company’s paren!
company only financial statements,

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Attributable to the Company:
Profit 5 9.042 3
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive income S 9.042 3

5)  As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, none of the investments accounted for using the
equity method was pledeed as collateral,

(h)  Property. plant and equipment

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of property. plant and equipment was
presented below:

Office and

Buildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Total
Cast:
Balance on fanuary 1, 2020 3 495211 324912 179113 Oou 136
Additions - - 3054 3.154
Disposal - . (11.207) {(1.2om
Transferred from inventories - - 7.542 7.542
Balance on December 31, 2020 g 495.211 424912 178.602 998,725
Balance on January 1, 2019 % 433,200 331,888 68,306 955,394
Additions 63.790 6,164 23.560 3,514
Disposal - - {17.726) (17.726)
Transferred from investment property 763 480 =+ 1,243
Transferred from inventories - - 4973 4973
Translerred o investment property (24.542) (13.620) - (38.162)
Balance on December 31, 2019 8 495211 324,912 179,113 999,235

(Continued)
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Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on lanuary |, 2020
Depreciation
Disposal
Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1. 2019
Depreciation
Disposal
Transferred to investment property
Balance on December 31, 20119

Carrying amount:

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019

lanuary |, 2019

Office and
Buildings and other
Land improvements  equipment Total

] - 37,243 107.362 led.605
= 0,446 23,040 29.486
= (10.746) (10.746)

L3 63,689 119,656 183.345
b = 30.551 102,117 132,668
- 6,541 22485 29.026
= (17.240) (17.240)

131 . 131

5 - 57.243 107.362 164605
5 495211 261,223 S8.946 815,380
5 495,211 267,669 71.751 834,631
5 455,200 281.337 66,189 802,726

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 property, plant. and equipment were pledged as collateral for
short-term and long-term borrowings. please refer to note §,

Rizhr-of-use assets

Information about the costs and accumulated depreciation of leases for which the Company as a

lessee was presented below:

Cuost:

Balance on January |, 2020
Additions

Decrease

Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1. 2019
Additions

Decrease

Balance on December 31, 2019
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Buildings and
improvements

217.000
1714
(0.320)

212,194

177.046
39.790
(436)

217,000

(Cantinued)



)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on January 1. 2020
Depreciation
Decrease
Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1, 2019
Depreciation
Decrease
Balance on December 31, 2019

Carrying amount:

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019
January 1. 2019

Investment property

Information about investment property was presented below;

Cost:
Balance on January 1, 2020
Balance on December 31, 2020

Balance on January |, 2019

Buildings and

improvements
b 27,510
26,717
(6.520)
47.707
% &
27,655
(145)
b 27,510
b 164,487
5 189,490

S 177,646

Buildings and

Transterred from property, plant and

equipment

Transferred to property. plant and
equipment

Balance on December 31, 2019

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance on January 1, 2020
Depreciation

Balance on December 31. 2020

Land improvements Total

B 51.382 28408 79,790
5 51.382 28,408 79,790
i 27.603 15,268 42,871
24,542 13,620 38,162
(763) (480) (1.243)

5 51,382 28,408 79,790
$ - 5110 5110
- 357 557

g = 5.667 5,667

{Continued)
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Buildings and
Land improvements Total

Balance on January 1, 2019 b - 4.815 4815

Depreciation o 446 446

Transferred to property, plant and

equipment - (151) (151)

Balanece on December 31, 2019 L) - 5110 5,110
Carrying amount:

December 31, 2020 5 51,382 22,741 74,123

December 31, 2019 s 51,382 23,298 74.680

January 1, 2019 b 27,603 10,453 J8.056
Fair value:

December 31. 2020 224,183

December 31, 201% 224,183

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Investment property comprises a number of commercial properties which are leased to third
parties. Each of the leases contains an initial non-cancellable period from 1 to 3 years.
Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the lessee, and no contingent rents are charged.
Please refer to note 6(n) for further information (including rental income and related direct

operating expense).

As there is no readily comparable information regarding the fair value of the aforementioned
investment property, management determined its fair value according to the latest prices within
the vicinity. The inputs used to evaluate the fair value belonged to Level 3.

As of both December 31, 2020 and 2019, investment property was pledged as collateral for

short-term borrowings, please refer to note 8,

Short-term borrowings

(i)

(i)

The details of the Company’s short-term borrowings were as follows:

Credit loans
Secured loans

Range of interest rates at the end of period

For the collateral for bank loans, please refer to note 8,
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December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
250,000 -
50,000 -
300,000 -

(.82 %o ~0.90%,

(Continued)



(h

(m})

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Long-term borrowings

The details of the Company’s long-term borrowings were as follows:

December 31, 2020
Range of
Curreney interest rates  Maturity period Amounl
Secured loans TWD 1.10%~1.30% 2021.01-2039.03 § 263,529
Less: current portion (14.109)
Total ] 251,420
Lnused credit lines g 5
December 31, 2019
Range of
Currency interest rates Maturity period Amount
Secured loans TWD 1 45%~1.55% 2020.01-2039.03 § 279,502
Less: current portion (13.568)
Tatal s 265,934
Unused credit lines 9 z

For the collateral for bank loans. please refer to note 8,
Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Company’s lease liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Current 5 23,702 24,957
MNon-current 143,308 163,933
5 167,008 190,890

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows :

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest on lease liabilities 5 1,721 1.838
Revenue from sublease of right-of-use asset ] 10,350 8.559
{Continued)
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The amounts recognized in the statements of cash flows of the Company were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest payments for lease liabilities in operating activities  $ L.721 1,838
Payments of lease liabilities in financing activities 25.596 26.280
Tatal cash outflow for leases 8 27.317 28.118

Real estate leases

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company leases buildings and improvements for its office
and warehouse space. The leases typically run for 2 to 10 years. Some leases include an option to
renew the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

For the Company’s leased right-of-use assets under operating leases, please refer to note 6(n).
Operating leases

The Company leases out its investment property. The Company has classified these leases as
operating leases, because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of the assets. Please refer to note 6(j).

A maturity analysis of lease payments. showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after
the reporting date was as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Less than one vear $ 11.513 15,131
l to 2 years 4,655 14,788
2 to 3 vears - 6,162
LIndiscounted lease payments 5 16.170 36,081

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the amounts of rental income from investment
property were $6.496 thousand and $6,149 thousand. respectively.

Emplovee benefits
(i} Defined benefit plans

The Company makes defined benefit plan contributions to the annuity insurance account for
life insurance. The pension payment to appointed managers is calculated pursuant to the
manager’s plan for appointed managers.

Based on the manager” s plan for appointed managers, the Company reached an agreed
settlement with its employees on October. 2019. and recognized the settled pension benefit of

$2.073 thousand as other gains and losses,

(Continued)
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Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% of each employee’s monthly wages to the Labor Pension personal
account of the Bureau of Labaor [nsurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to
the Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligation.

The Company’s pension costs under the defined contribution method amounted to $14.462

thousand and $12,165 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Payment to the Bureau of Labor Insurance has been made.

{p} Income taxes

(i}

(ii)

(iii)

Income tax expense
Income tax expenses are summarized as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Current income tax expense $ 144,103 82,503
Deferred income tax expenses (7.103) (7.609)
Income tax expense b 137,000 54,894

The Company had no income taxes recognized directly in equity and other comprehensive
income.

Reconciliation of income tax expense and profit before tax was as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019

Profit before income tax kY 686.017 464,330
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 137,203 92.870
Uindistributed earnings additional tax - 3,189
Share of profit accounted for using equity method (5.734) {(3,704)
Gains on evaluation of financial assets at fair value (4.979) 2.650)
through profit or loss

Others 10.510 (2.771)
Income tax expense 5 137,000 84,894

{(Continued)
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The Company had no unrecognized deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Changes in the
amount of deferred income tax assets and liabilities for 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Balance on January 1, 2020
Debit profit or loss

Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1, 2019
Debit profit ar loss

Balance on December 31, 2019

Deferred income tax assels:
Balance on January 1. 2020
Debit (cradit) profit or loss
Balance on December 31, 2020
Balance on January 1, 2019
Debit (credit) profit or loss

Balance on December 31, 2019

Fair value gains

and others
$ 1,112
802
) 1914
978
134

5 1,112

Allowance
Inventory limit on
allowances  bad debts Others Total
$ 0 (37.000) (6.501) (5.410) (48,911
(7.400) (1.564) .09 (7.905)
5 (d4440m (8.065) (4.351) (56,816)
£ (27.400) (6,736) (7.012) (41.168)
(9.600) 255 1.602 (7.743)
5 (37,000) (6.501) (5410) (48.911)

The Company’s tax returns have been assessed and approved by the R.O.C. tax authority

through the years to 2018,

Capital and other equity

As of both December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company’s authorized shares amounted to $2.500.000

thousand, divided into 188.357 thousand shares, with par value of $10 per share. The issued 250.000
thousand shares comprised only ordinary shares, and all issued shares were paid up upon issuance,
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Reconciliation of shares outstanding for 2020 and 2019 was as follows:

Unit: Thousand shares
For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Balance on Januvary | 188,357 [11.233
Capital increase by cash - 66.000
Retained earnings transferred to capital increase - 5.562
Capital surplus transferred to capital increase - 5.562
Balance on December 31 188,357 188,357

(1) Ordinary shares

A resolution was passed in extraordinary general meeting of shareholders held on August I,
2019 and authorized the chairman or his designee for the issuance of ordinary shares for cash
within a year under private placement, with the number of shares issued not exceeding 66.000
thousand shares. Subsequently, another resolution was passed in the Board of director” s
meeting held on August 9, 2019 for the issuance of 66,000 thousand ordinary shares at $27.5
per share under private placement. with par value of $10 per share, totaling $1.815.000

thousand. The date of capital increase was August 16, 2019 and relevant statutory registration
procedures have since been completed.

The transfer of the aforementioned private placement of ordinary shares and any subsequently
obtained bonus shares would be subject to section 43(8) under the Securities and Exchange
Act. The application of these shares to be traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange is in
accordance with the said section where the shares should be elapsed after a three vear period
from the delivery date of the private placement securities before applying for a public offering
with the FSC.

On May 28. 2019, the Company's shareholders” meeting approved a resolution to transfer its

retained earnings of $55,617 thousand and capital surplus of $35,617 thousand to capital
increase, with an aggregate amount of 11,124 thousand shares issued. All statutory registration
procedures for the capital increase dated July 7. 2019 have been completed.

(ii) Capital surplus
The components of capital surplus were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Share capital b 1,249,850 1438307
Treasury share {ransactions 54.637 54,637
Difference arising from subsidiary’s share price and its
carrying value from acquired or disposed of 28.424 27.964
) 1,333,011 1,520,908

(Continued)
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According to the R.O.C, Company Acl. capital surplus can only be used o offset a deficit. and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding. The capital increases by transferring
capital surplus in excess of par value shall be capitalized in the subseguent vear afier such
capital reserve has been authorized for registration by the regulator,

Retained earnings

In accordance with the Company’s articles. if there are earnings at year end, 10 percent should
be set aside as legal reserve (unless the amount in the legal reserve is already equal to or
greater than the total paid-in capital) and special reserve according to the Securities and
Exchange Act and the Company’s operations after the payment of income tax and offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years. The remaining portion will be combined with earnings
from prior years. and the Board of directors can propose distribution plan to be approved by
the shareholders” meeting. The abovementioned distribution plan by way of cash dividends
should be approved by the Company’s Board of directors and should be reported to the
Company’s shareholders’ meeting.

As the Company is in its growth phase, it has adopted a residual dividend policy to pay
dividends after the end of the year from the earnings of the current year and accumulated
earnings from prior years, and to determine dividend appropriation afier taking into
consideration the Company' s profit, capital structure, and future operating needs.
Dividends are distributed as either cash or stock, where cash dividends represent no less than
20% of the total dividends and the actual amount distributed is based on the amount approved
by the Board of directors.

1) Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss. it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’
meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and
only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Order No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, a portion
of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be reclassified
should equal the current-period total net reduction of other sharcholders’ equity.
Similarly. a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as special
earnings reserve (and does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior perieds. Amounts of
subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’ equity shall
qualify for additional distributions.

(Continued)
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3)  Eamings distribution

On May 28, 2020 and 2019, the distribution plan for 2019 and 2018 was approved in
shareholders” meeting. The amounts of dividends distributed to shareholders were as

follows:
For the years ended December 31
2019 2018
Dividends to shareholders - cash, $2 and $1.5 per$ 376,715 166,851
share
Dividends to shareholders - capital increase 188,357 -
transterred from capital surplus, $0.5 per share
Dividends to shareholders - capital increase
transferred from capital surplus, $0.5 per share - 55,617
Dividends to shareholders - capital increase
transferred from retained earnings, $0.5 per
share = 535617
5 565,072 178,085

(r) Earnings per share
The Company's basic and diluted earnings per share were calculated as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Basic earnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company ) 549017 379456
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic/thousand shares) 188,357 147,107
Basic earnings per share 5 2.91 2.58

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

( hasic/thousand shares) 188.357 111,233
Effect of capital surplus transferred to capital increase & 5.562
Effect of retained earnings transferred to capital increase s 3.562
Capital increase by cash - 24.750
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding

(basic/thousand shares) 188.357 147,107

(Continued)

~206~



(s)

SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO.,LTD.
Notes to the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

For the yvears ended December 31

2020 2019
Diluted earnings per share:
Profit attributable to the Company 5 549017 379,456
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted/
thousand shares) 190,106 148.740

Earnings per share g 2.89

1.55

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic/ thousand
shares) 188.357 147,107
Effect of employee remuneration 1.749 1.633
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(diluted/thousand shares) 190,106 148,740
Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregation of revenue
2024
Networking  Computing Tool Technical Other
privlucts products products SErvices products Total
Major productservice
lines:
Sale of goods 5 3204339 4.391.088 3,00 1,696 - 114455 1,731,578
Rendering of services - - - 3401561 - 340,361
Tutal 5 3214330 4390088 3.010.69% 340,361 114,455 11071939
2019
Networking  Computing Tool Technieal Other
products products products services prodiets Total
Mujor product/service
lines:
Sale of goods 5 3363792 3010469 2066011 E - b.942.272
Rendering of services - - - 343045 - 343,945
Tutal % 3365702 3,610,469 2966001 J43. 45 - 10,286,217
(Continued)
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(ii) Contract balances
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019

Notes receivable (including long-

term) 3 172,478 347.963 248,826
Accounts receivable (including

related parties) 1.720.950 1,511,984 1,483,479
Less: loss allowance {42.500) (46.000) (46.000)

b 1.850.928 1.813.949 1,686,305

Contract liability 5 295,836 662,996 665,824

1) For the impairment of notes and accounts receivable (including long-term and related
parties), please refer to note 6{c).

2)  The amounts of revenue recognized for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
that were included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period were
$609,971 thousand and $376.056 thousand. respectively.

3)  The major changes in the balance of contract liability is the difference between the time
frame in the performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment to be received.

Remuneration to employees, directors, and supervisors

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. the Company should contribute no less
than 8% of the profit as employee remuneration and less than 2% as directors® and supervisors’
remuneration when there is profit for the year. (In May 2019, according to a reselution reached in
shareholders” meeting, the Company established an audit committee to replace supervisors.)
However. if the Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the
deficit. Employees entitled to receive the aforementioned employee remuneration, in shares or cash,
include employees of affiliates whose company shares of more than 50% are held by the Company.

The Company estimated its remuneration to emplovees at $60,430 thousand and $45.200 thousand
tar 2020 and 2019, respectively, and remuneration to directors and supervisors at $5.650 thousand
and $5,040 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts recognized as operating expense were
based on the profit before income tax of each respective ending period before deducting the amount
of the remuneration to employees. directors and supervisors multiplied by the percentage of the
remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors as specified in the Company's article. Related
information is available on the website of the Market Observation Post System, The differences
between the estimated amounts and the actual amounts approved by the Board of directors for 2020,
if any. shall be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and recognized in 2021, The actual
amounts distributed for 2019 and the estimated amoums for 2019 in the financial statements were
the same,
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MNon-operating income and expense

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Other income
The Company’s other income was as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Rental income % 16.633 14.503
Dividend income 10,083 7.463
b 26,718 21.965

Other gains and losses
The Company’s other gains and losses were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Net foreign exchange gains b 29.882 32.424
Net gains on valuation of financial assets (liabilities) at 29311 10,453
fair value through profit or loss
Revenue from system consulting and technical services 5,345 4,858
Others 3.983 2.933
b 68.521 30.668

Finance costs
The Company’s tinance costs were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Interest on bank loans b 6,168 11.442
[nterest on lease liabilities 1,421 .83%
% 7,880 13,280
(Continued)
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Financial instruments

(i)

(11)

Credit risk

A credit risk is the risk of having financial losses arising from counterparties failing to meet
their required contract obligation. The major potential credit risks are from defaults from
counterparties who fail to meet their required contract obligation.

1y Accounts receivable and other receivables

The Company” s credit policy is transacting with creditworthy customers, and obtains
collateral to mitigate risks arising from [inancial loss due to default if necessary. The
Company assesses the ratings based on publicly available financial information and
transactions records with its major customers. The Company continuss to monitor the
exposure to credit risk and the credit rating of counterparties, transaction amount to all
qualified customers, and review annually the credit limit of counterparties, so as to
manage risk exposure,

2y Other financial assets

The credit risk exposure in cash and cash equivalents, fixed income investments and
other financial instruments are measured and monitored by the Company” s finance
department. As the Company deals with the banks and other external parties with good
credit standing and financial institutions which are graded above investment level, the
management believes that the Company does not have any compliance issues, and
therefore, there is no significant credit risk,

The carrying amount of financial assets, represents the maximum amount exposed to
credit risk. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the maximum exposure to credit risk

amounted to $2.805,287 thousand. and $2.858.086 thousand, respectively.
Liquidity risk

The followings were the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated
interest payment.

Carrying Contractual Within 1 1-58 Over 5
aAmount cash flows venr vears Vears
December 31, 2024
Mon-derivative financial liabilities
Lomg-term and short-lerm ,
bomwings 3 365,324 594071 317.530 63.863 7.678
Lease liabilities A7, 008 172006 35,194 91,835 55979
Aceounts payabie 1463165 1.465.163 LA463. 163 - -
Chher pavables 285,302 285,502 285302 - .
Ciugrantee deposits 1,227 227 1.227 - -
Prerivative finaneial liabilitics
Chitflosy has 647,224 647224 - i
Inilo - [H46.560) {A46.56%) - -

§_ 2482886 2517426 2,093,073 160,696 263.657

{Continued)
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Carrying Contractual Within | 1-5 Dver 5
amouni cash Mows yeur vears VEArs
December 31, 2019
Long-term and short-lerm
borrowings 5 279.502 314362 17.673 T0.710 230979
Lease linbilities 190890 198,341 6667 92,105 79.819
Accounts pavable 1.235.630 |.235.630 1,235,620 - -
Cither payahles 258,873 138.873 258.873 - -
Guarantee deposils 4.811 4811 4.811 - -
Dervative financial lHobilitics
Clutflo 4,835 SE1.144 51144 - -
Inflow - 1546.209) (546,209 5 i
S 1,974,641 2,022.202 1.548.589 162,815 310,798

The Company does not expect the cash flows included in the maturity analysis to occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amounts.

(iii) Currency risk
I} Exposure to currency risk

The Company’s significant exposure to foreign cu rrency risk was as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Forcign Foreign
curreney (in  Exchange curreney (in  Exchange
thousands) rafe TWD thousands) rate WD
Finuneinl nszery
Monetary items
LISDITWD b 834 28.33 21635 1.522 3011 45,819
liahilities
UsSD/TWD 3 24557 2835 Hta, 198 15,542 L0 467.4922
{Continued)
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2} Sensitivity analysis

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from the translation of
the foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, and accounts payable denominated in foreign currency. To avoid the
decrease in the value of foreign currency assets and fluctuations of future cash flows
resulted from changes in exchange rates, the Company uses derivative instruments to
hedge exchange rate risk (see Note 6(b)). An appreciation (depreciation) of 1% of the
USD against TWD as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, with all other variables including
derivative financial instruments remaining constant. would have increased or decreased
the profit before income tax by $257 thousand and decreased and increased the profit
before income tax by $1.250 thousand for the years ended December 31. 2020 and 2019,
respectively, The analysis for both periods was performed on the same basis.

3)  Foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary items

The Company”s functional currency is New Taiwan Dollar, and foreign exchange gain
(loss) on monetary items are recognized as foreign exchange gain (loss): please refer to
6(u) for details.

Interest rate analysis
The details of interest-bearing financial instruments at the reporting date were as follows:

Carrying amount
December 31, December 31,

2020 2019
Variable-rate instrument;
Financial assets $ 589,467 478,430
Financial liabilities (365.529) (279.502)
b 23,938 198,928

According to the Company’s sensitivity analysis of risk exposure to non-derivative instruments
on the reporting date. if the interest rate had increased or decreased by 0.25%. with all other
variable factors remaining constant, the Company’ s profit before income tax would have
increased or decreased by 360 thousand and $497 thousand for the vears ended December 31.
2020 and 2019, respectively. This is mainly due 1o risk exposures to borrowings at variable
interest rate.

{Continued)
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(v) Fairvalue of financial instruments

1)

Kinds of financial instrument and fair value hierarchy

The fair value of finanecial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured on a recurring basis. The following sets out carrying amount and fair value of
the Company's financial assets and liabilities, including the information on fair value
hierarchy but excluding financial instruments not measured at fair value with carrying
amount reasonably close to their fair value, and lease liabilities. disclosure of fair value
information is not required:

December 31, 2020

Carrying Fair value
amount Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at tair
value through profit
or loss
Open-end funds g | 50,003 - 150,003 - 130,003
Foreign and domestic
unlisted stocks 157,694 - - 1537.694 157.694
S 7697
Financial assets at
amortized cost
Cash and cash
equivalents $  580p05
Motes and accounts
receivable, nat
{including long-term
and related parties) 1.850,928
Other receivables 2077
Refundable deposits 54,890

5_2.497.590
Financial linbilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
Pre-purchased foreign
currency forward
contracts 5 655 - - 655 055

(Continued)
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Financial liabilities
measured at
amortized cost

Long-term and short-
term borrowings

Lease liabilities

Motes and aceounts
payable

Other payables

Giuaraniee deposits

Financial assets at tair
value through profit
or loss

Open-end funds

Foreizn and domestic
unlisted stocks

Financial assets at

amortized cost

Cash and cash
equivalents

MNotes and accounts
receivable, net
{including long-term
and related parties)

Other receivables

Refundahle deposits

Financial liabilities at
tair value through
profit or loss

Pre-purchased foreign
currency forward
contracts

December 31, 2020

Carrying
amount

Fair value

Level |

Level 2 Level 3 Total

§ 565529
167,008

5_2.482.231

December 31, 2019

Carrying
smount

Fair value

Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ 400,323

104.362

§__ 5046835

§ 478658

LL815.5949
1,629

30165

% 2353401

5 4,235
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400,323 - 400,323

- 104,362 104362

- 4,935 4.935
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December 31, 2019

Carrying Fair value
amount Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortized cost
Long-term and short-
term borrowings 279,502
Lease liabilities 190,890
Motes and aceounts
payahle 1,235,630
Other pavables 258873
Guarantee deposits 4811

5_ 1,269,706
Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

The measurements of fair value of equity instruments without an active market are based
on the market comparable listed company approach, which assumes that the fair value is
measured by the investee’ estimated net worth and the price-book ratio estimated based
on comparable quoted market price. The estimate of the fair value of equity instruments
has been adjusted due to the effect of the discount arising from the lack of market
liguidity of the equity security.

Measurement of the fair value of derivative instruments is based on the valuation
techniques that are generally accepted by the market participants. For instance, discount
method or option pricing models. Fair value of forward currency exchange is usually
determined by using the forward currency rate.

Transfers between Level | and Level 2

There was no transfer between the level 1 and level 2 of fair value hierarchy for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.

(Continued )
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Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values

January 1, 2020
Recognized in profit or loss
Additions
Disposal

Reclassified to investments accounted for using

equity methad
December 31, 2020

January 1, 2019

Recognized in profit or loss

Return af capital on capital reduction or

liquidation
Acquisifions
Disposal
Reclassification
December 31,2019

Measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Noo-derivative
financial assets
measured at

Derivative fair value
financial assets  through profit
(liabilities) or loss
(4.9335) 104,362
4.280 24,620
- 40,732
- (627)
- (11.413)
(655) 157,694
(968) 59351
(3,967) 13,649
- {1.258)
- 30,790
g (199)
= 2,029
g (4,935) 104.362

The aforementioned total gains and losses that were recognized in “ other gains and
losses™. The gains or losses attributable to the assets and liabilities held on December 31.

2020 and 2019 were as follows:

Total gains and losses

Recognized in profit or loss (recognized as other

zains and losses)

~216~

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019

23,965 8,515
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Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Company” s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure fair value
include financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial instruments.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments resulted from the quotation of a third
party and did not use any unobservable inputs in its calculation. Therefore, the Company
did not disclose the quantitative information about significant unobservable inputs and
sensitivity analysis.

Quantified information on other significant unobservable inputs was as follows:

Interrelationship
between significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value

Item technigue unobservable inputs measurement
Financial assets at Comparable + Market liquidity * The higher the
fair value through  listed company discount rate market liguidity
profit or loss- approach (25.00%-34.61% asof  discount rate, the
domestic or December 31, 2020, lower the fair
foreign unlisted and 25.00%~28.21% value
stocks as of December 31,

2019)

Fair value measurements in Level 3 — sensitivity analysis of reasonably possible
alternative assumptions

The Company’ s measurement on the fair value of financial instruments is deemed
reasonable despite different valuation models or parameters may lead to different results.
For fair value measurements in Level 3, changing one or more of the assumptions would
have the following effects on profit:

Current profit (loss) arising

from
changes in fair value
Inputs 0% incréase  10% decrease

December 31, 2020
Finoneial assets al nir value through profit

or loss

Forcign and domestic unlisted stocks Markel liquidity discount S (22,574) 12579
December 31, 2009
Finonciol assets al fair value through prefit

or logs

Foreign and domestic unlisted stocks Marleet Hguidity discount (14.063) 14063

(Continued)
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Financial risk management
(i) Owerview
The Company is exposed to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
1} Credit risk
2} Ligquidity risk
3y Market risk

This note expressed the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of
risk measurement and management of the Company. For more details about the quantitative
effects of these risk exposures, please refer to respective notes in the report.

(i)  Structure of risk management

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Campany s activities, so as to minimize risk exposure.

The Board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of directors is assisted in
its oversight role by an internal auditor, The internal auditor undertakes both regular and ad
hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedutes, the results of which are reported to
the Board of directors.

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base. in order to maintain investor, creditor. and
market confidence, Capital consists of ordinary shares. capital surplus and retained earnings. As of
December 31, 2020, the Company had sufficient capital to meet the needs for working capital and
other expenditure in the next 12 months, The Company’s approach to capital management has not
changed on each reporting date.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019. the debt ratios were 40% and 39%. respectively.
Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

(i}  Non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were transferred to investments
accounted for using equity methed. please refer to notes 6(b) and (g).

(ii) The investments accounted for using equity method were transferred to non-current assets
classified as held for sale, please refer to notes 6(1) and (g).

{Continued)
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{(iii) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities was as follows:

Jannary 1, Non-cash December
2020 Cash flows changes 31,2020
Long-term borrowings % 279,502 (13,973) - 263,529
Short-term borrowings - 300,000 - 300,000
Guarantee deposits 4811 (3.584) - 1,227
Lease liabilities 190,890 (25.596) 1.714 167.008
Total liabilities arising from & 475,203 256847 1,714 733.764
financing activities
January 1, Non-cash December
2019 Cash flows changes 31,2019
Long-term borrowings $ 242,345 37157 - 279,502
Short-term borrowings 101 0,000 {1.010.000) - =
Guarantee deposits 4511 5 4811
Lease liabilities 177.646 (26.280) 39.524 190,890
Total liabilities arising from & 1,430,291 (994.612) 39,524 475,203

financing activities

(7} Related-party transactions:

(a)

(b)

Parent company and ultimate controlling company

In August 2019, Qisda Corporation (*Qisda™) acquired 35.04% of equity interest in the Company
through subscription for ordinary shares under private placement, taking more than half of the Board
directors and hence the control over the Company. Both the parent and the ultimate controlling party
of the Company are Qisda. Qisda has prepared consolidated financial statements for public use.

Mames and relationship with related parties

The followings are the subsidiaries and related parties that have had transactions with the Company
during the periods covered in the parent company only financial statements:

Name of related party

Relationship with the Company

Qisda Corporation (Qisda)

GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK CO., LTD.

(GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK)

DAWNING TECHNOLOGY INC. (DAWNING

TECHNOLOGY)

EPIC CLOUD INFORMATION INTEGRATION

CORP (EPIC CLOUD INFORMATION
INTEGRATION)
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Parent of the Company

Subsidiary of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company

Subsidiary of the Company
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Name of related party

Relationship with the Company

NEO TREND TECH CORPORATION (NEO
TREND TECH)

KINGTEL CORPORATION (KINGTEL)

Ben() Material Corporation (BenQ Material )

Partrier Tech Carporation (Partner Tech)
BenQ Guru Corporation ( Ben) Guru)
BenQ) Corporation (New Ben())

Ben() ESCO Corporation (Ben() ESCO)
DFI Inc. (DFL)

Data Image Corporation { Data Image)

Interactive Digital Technologies Inc. (Interactive
Digital)

HITRON TECHNOLOGIES INC. (HITRON
TECHNOLOGIES)

Webest Solution Corporation (Webest Solution)
COREX (PTY) LTD.
AU Optronics Corporation (ALO)

DARWIN PRECISIONS CORPORATION
(DARWIN PRECISIONS)

Darfon Electronics Corporation (Darfon Electronics)

UNISAGE DIGITAL CO., LTD. (UNISAGE
DIGITAL)

GRANDSYS INC. (GRANDSYS)

DYNASAFE TECHNOLOGIES, INC,
(DYNASAFE)

Key management personnel

Subsidiary of the Company

Subsidiary of the Company (Mote 1)

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent comparny

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company

It and the Comipany have the same ultimate
parent company (Note 2)

It and the Company have the same ultimate
parent company (Note 2)

Subsidiary of Partner Tech
Subsidiary of Partner Tech
Associate of the parent company

Subsidiary of AUO

Associate of the parent company

Associate of the Company

Associate of the Company (Note 3)

The Company is its legal person (Note 4)

Key management personnel of the Company

Note 1:As of April 26, 2019, the Company did not subscribe for KINGTEL's newly issued shares
for capital increase in proportion to its shareholdings, losing its control and significant
influence over KINGTEL. As a result. KINGTEL is no longer its related party.
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Note 2: The parent company of HITRON TECHNOLOGIES and INTERACTIVE DIGITAL is
Alpha Networks Inc. (“Alpha™), a former associate of Qisda. after which Qisda acquired
Alpha inJuly 2020, making them have the same ultimate parent company with the Company.,

Note 3: The Company acquired the shares of GRANDSYS in May 2020, after which the percentage
of ownership in GRANDSY S was 22.35%. making it an associate of the Company.

Note 4: DYNASAFE re-clected its directors on February 16, 2019, after which the Company is no
longer its legal person and related party.

Significant related-party transactions
(i) Sales
The amounts of significant sales by the Company to related parties were as follows:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Parent company 5 34.843 -
Subsidiaries 42 809 69,167
Associates 408 .
Other associates 101.544 6,467
Other related parties 67.368 128.166
b 246,972 203,800

The selling price for related parties approximated the market price. and the credit terms for
2020 and 2019 ranged from 30 to 120 days from the end of the month and 60 to 120 days from
the end of the month, respectively. Receivables from related parties were not pledged as
collateral, and were assessed not to provide any allowance for impairment |oss.

(ii} Purchases
The amounts of significant purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows:

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Parent conpany g 200 -
Subsidiaries 27.602 34,172
Other associates 6.728 -
Other related parties 20 2
5 34,550 3172

Purchase prices and payment terms from related parties were similar to those from third-party
suppliers. The payment terms ranged between 30~120 days from the end of the month and
60~120 days from the end of the month for the vears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,

(Continued)
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(iii) Receivables from related parties

The receivables due from related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2020 2019
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries § 21,202 36.922
Accounts receivable Associates 3 -
Accounts receivable Other associates 9.921 8,226
3 31,156 46,148

(iv) Pavables to related parties

The payables to related parties were as follows:

Category of December 31, December 31,
Account related party 2020 2019
Accounts pavahle Subsidiaries b 6,999 9,932
(v) Lease
1y  Lessor

The Company leased out buildings 1o its related parties, The amounts of rental income
were as follows;

Rental income
For the vears ended December 31

Lessee 2020 2019
Subsidiaries:
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK 5 5,697 4,363
DAWNING TECHNOLOGY 9.09] 7.243
Other subsidiaries - 38
Associates 3 -
Tatal 8 14,791 11,644

According to the terms of the contracts, the deposit and the rental were by reference of
the rental price of the nearby offices. The rental was collected on a monthly basis. For
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, receivables of the rental income have been
fully paid up.

(Continued}
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Lessee

The Company rented buildings from GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK and
entered into 2-years lease contract by reference of the rental price of the nearby offices.
As of January 1, 2019, The Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

both amounted to $436 thousand. In April 2019, the Company ended the lease contract
early,

In June 2019, The Company rented buildings from GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE
NETWORK and entered into 3-years lease contract by reference of the rental price of the
nearby offices. The Company recognized right-of-use assets and lease liabilities both

amounted to 52,858 thousand. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the

Company recognized the amounts of §17 thousand and $13 thousand, respectively, as
interest expense. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance of lease liabilities

amounted to $1,359 thousand and $2,308, respectively.

Guarantee and endorsemeants

The company guarantees and endorsements for related parties are as follows:

Guarantees and
endorsements amount
Counterparty of guarantees December 31, December 31,
and endorsements 2020 2019

Other associates

COREX (PTY) LTD. 5 141,750 -

(vii) Services revenue

The Company provided system consulting and project supporting services to its related parties.
The amounts of services revenue were as follows:

Services revenue
For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Subsidiaries
GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK 3 2354 2.429
DAWNING TECHNOLOGY 2.991 2.429
5 5,345 4.858
(Continued)
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The outstanding balances for providing system consulting and project supporting services o its
related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Account Category of related party 2020 2019
Subsidiaries
Other receivables GLOBAL INTELLIGENCE $ 618 638
NETWORK
Other receivables DAWNING 7835 638
TECHNOLOGY
) 1.403 1,276

(viil) Investments accounted for using equity method acquired
The Company acquired investments accounted for using equity method from its related parties.

For the years ended December 31
__Account Category of related party 20240 2019
[nvestments accounted Key management personnel  § 10,344 6,151
for using equity method

Key management personnel compensation

For the years ended December 31

2020 2019
Short-term emplovee benefits 8 62,352 52,701
Post-employment benefits 600 394
Termination benefits = =
Other long-term benefits . 4
Share-based payment 2 =
$ 62,952 53.095

Pledged assets:

The carrying amounts of the assets which the Company pledged as collateral were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Assel Name Object 2020 2019
Property. plant and equipment Long-term and short-term  § 701,501 707,511
borrowings
Investment property Short-term borrowings 74,123 74,680
S 775,624 782,191
(Continued)
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(9) Commitments and contingencies:

{a)

(b

The promissory notes, issued by the Company for loans from financial institutions, forward
exchange transactions, and purchase limits, are detailed as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Currency 2020 2019
Promissory notes issued T™WD 5 3,965,000 3,985,000
USD 5 13.850 13,850

For the amounts of guarantees and endarsements for related parties, please see note 7(c)6.

(10) Losses due to major disasters:None

(11) Subsequent Events:

(a)

(b)

ich

The Company”s Board of directors passed a resolution for shareholding change in DAWNING
TECHNOLOGY, the subsidiary. on November 3, 2020. The Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in January 2021 to sell all the shareholdings in DAWNING TECHNOLOGY at
a contract price of $181,997 thousand, wherein all statutory registration procedures had been
completed as of issuance date of this financial report and the contract price has been fully received.

The Company’s Board of directors passed a resolution on December 18. 2020 to acquire the entire
shareholdings in COREX(PTY) LTD.. and its newly issued shares for capital increase by cash. In
January 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire all the
shareholdings in COREX(PTY) LTD. at a contract price of $140.000 thousand, and issued shares
for capital increase totaling $111.872 thousand. wherein the statutory registration is in progress as of
the issuance date of this financial report. The contract price has been f ully paid up.

On January 28, 2021, the Company. according 1o a resolution of the Board of directors. acquired

1,504 thousand preference shares issued by STATINC COMPANY and purchased 251 thousand
ordinary shares from their former shareholders with a total price of 70,023 thousand. representing
35% of voting rights. As ol the issuance date of this financial report, the registration is in progress
and the contract price has been fully paid up.

(Continued)
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(12) Other:

(a) The summary of employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization. by function, was as follows:

For the yvears ended December 31,
2020 2019
By function Operating Operating

By item EXpEnses cxpenses
Employee benefits

Salary 425078 348.876

Laber and health insurance 29,286 25219

Pension expense 14462 12,165

Benefits of directors 13,102 7.331

Other emplayee benefits expense 20,7638 21,574
Depreciation 56,700 37,127
Amaortization 1,057 3.764

The following were the additional information on the Company’s employees and employee benefits
for the yvears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

For the vears ended December 31

2020 2019
Numbers of emplovees 404 352
Numbers of directors, but not employees concurrently 7 5
The average employee benefits § 1,236 1,175
The average salaries 5 1,073 1,005
Adjustment of the average salaries 6.77 %o
Benefits of supervisors 5 = 835

The following was the information about the Company®s benefits policies (including directors,
executive officers and employees):

The Company’s directors™ benefits consisted of remuneration and compensation. In accordance with
the Articles of the Company. the Company should contribute less than 2 percent as directors’
remuneration when there is profit for the year. The compensation is evaluared by Human Resources
Department and based on competitive environment and operational risk. It is proposed by
management after considering regulation and bonus plan then submitted to the Board of Directors
for approval,

The benefits of executive officers and employees consisted of fixed salary and variable salary. The
former is basic salaries of employees and the latter is connected to operational performance and
strategic objectives that the Company wants to achieve, The Company’ s benefits policies are
proposed by Human Resources Department, which is based on management reeulation and bonus
plan and then submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.

{Continued)
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(a) Inlformation on significant transactions:
The following is the information on significant transactions required by the *Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers™ for the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2020:
(1)  Loans to other parties:None
(ii) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Kario ol
Cnamier=parmy al nexannlated
gz e anid Highest Baknnce of LR INTITTER g Fareni Crmranices)
cadar il Ldmdiidos on | lalsmee for | gnacnness ounan e anid Enmpnmy Sobidinmry emlursements
g & gaaraniees nmid Actul Propery enilnrsemens in|  Vavimom e s guaininiees’ | do third parties
EURPRRELE A endorsements|  isndr pledgeid far et wiwth of the | aaomnt for eodersoments e onibarsements | an beligll of
Relationshig | widorsemmenis fendorzemest|  as of ameunt (puavanies i T et muarniees (Wil potse onf o ilded porties | canpanies i
Miiaine ol with the T i specife during repartiig  [duaring the| eniloseinens T il amd Dbl l wit bl § el Mainland
Mo, | guarantnre e Cmmpiny EErpirise e perinil dikis e rind | Aty Statesmenty  lendersements)  sehsdioy  [pores) commeiny Ching
0 phe Congimy [COREX Submiciary el | ¢Niode 1) 141,730 141,750 i gazw, | (NoaE 1y Nz 2 3 B
Prvy LT | Partner Tech

(iii)

Note | The amouar of lee sormtess and endorssments thi 8 angle et company sholl non aveasd 2085 of the Compamy™ s el warth oF S350 360 thsmand when ihe

sraidevs wed emdorssn

worth of & [T, 520 thosusd
Neplg ZUOREN (PTY) LTD became a wholly-ommed | 101 subsidaany of the Compais s D 3021

joint ventures )

vt s provided, the ol smeunt of sanintes and endocscneis posviled be e Comygany dhall not exeoed WP of e

Cainpan

LR L)

Securities held as of December 31. 2020 (excluding investment in subsidiaries. associares anc

Unit: thousand shares/thousand units

Cagury and Relnrinmship Ending halupee
Halder name e ol Aewoume Aliwres nies 7 Y Percentage of] ]
securiy it comrpamy Carvying | gy, nership Fuir value | Renpiels
AN ™
5 ek
e Company ¥ NASAFE [Man-cugrent Gsnnl 3,906 |43.695 1953 145.695 | {Nare [}
fuasetsat fir volue
hroely e fie o loss
. 0% Haldings v i) = 111
L it
4 VBN ¥ 3 [T E
TECHNOLOGIES,
i1
. Tl Clotd Bae . 00 |1 M 410 ¥
" temin Datw, Ine, i 2,700 B 5 240 K540 "
u IRINGTEL - T 443 3045 1500 2,099 v
157,694 157,404
Ciper-end fimds
I Crnmiparny [Capital Money Curreni financil nesers 8133 150003 - 150,003
larket Fsd ot i value throad
prafit or loss
EFIC CLOWVD (Capital Monzy 123 R 2004
INFORMATION  [hadeei Fuoed
INTEGRATION
NEOQ TREND [Hun Man Phoenis ¥ 2073 FEA D =000
TECH Moy Morket Fund
177,017 177017
Mote |- Linbssed company
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(iv) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of
NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:

Cutegery Namw of | Relotiinship | Beginning Balance Purcluases Sales Envding Balanee
Name of | and same [ Aceount | counder- with il Ciain (losg)
company | of security party enmpuny Shures | Amount | Shares | Amonnt | Shares Frice Cost ondisposal | Shures | Awweunt
{Muste 1}
ve: oy 4 ngnital KCurrem Hiia Na e 12330 | 205087 13305 230,000 18324 200212 3000 158 PEEed BNETTE
Toney (inmecinl |k
Morkes Fund hissets at
hr.l'q value
Mhrowzh
et or
loss
Mo |+ Valwation adjustisents are e luded
(vl Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or
20% of the capital stock:None
(vi) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20%
of the capital stock:None
(vii) Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of
NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock:-None
(viii) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20%
of the capital stock None
(ix) Trading in derivative instruments:Please refer to notes the Company’s consolidated financial
statenm 6(b).
(b} Information on investees;

The following is the information on investees for the years ended December 31, 2020:

~228~

Orvbghnal iimestmeeni Tibniaee oy of Decembeer V1, 3000 | Net imenmie | Shore of
Amouni
BT Somt ol lovester | Location | Mo bosivesses angd | Decembios | December Bhares Peveentage | Corrving | (dossesi ol [proft Nale
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Mot 1 Sab=iliary of the Company

Nare X The Compan and GLOEAL INTELLIGENCE NETWORK buve rockeaified D4 WSENG TECHNOLOGY to saibeurmnt ases classifled w8 held For mla; plense refer 1 noie
a1 for detby

Miite 5 The equify sftenest i NEC TRENTI TECH was acqunred on December 81, 2000, swhich was not iigairad 1o be recngmzed a3 $hare of pmabit (e b of invesies.
{c) Information on investment in Mainland China:None

(dy Major shareholders:

Uinit: share

Shareholding Shareholdin Percentage of
Major shareholders & Ownership
Qisda 66.000.000 35.04 %

(14) Segment information:

Please refer to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.
for details.
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SYSAGE TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Chairman: Michael Lee



